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The Odisha Coal and Power Limited (OCPL), a Govt. of  Odisha Company, 

engaged in Coal Mining Development and Operation in IB Valley Coalfields in 

Sundargarh District of Odisha. Joint Venture Company At present the OCPL is a 

of Odisha Power  Generation Corporation Limited (OPGC) and Govt. of Odisha 

with a shareholding ratio of 51:49 respectively.

II

About OCPL



Performance of OCPL in Brief

• Consistently ge�ng 5-star ra�ng from MoC 

for the Last three years.

• Achieved FIMI award for CSR

• Winner of Apex Safety Leadership Award-

2023 & Apex Safe Workplace Award-2023

• Winner of Apex Safety Culture Award-2024

• Winner of Corporate excellence award in 

Gold Category & Best PSU in Odisha

• Par�cipated in Annual Mines Safety 

Fortnight-2022 and 2023 organised by MCL 

and DGMS, GoI & bagged the following 

Prizes:
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About the Report

This report presents clear and comparable informa�on on key financial and non-
financial ma�ers, alongside our “strategic plans, and holis�c approach to 
sustainable development.

Approach 

The informa�on presented in this Annual Report pertains to the period from 
April 1, 2023 to March 31, 2024.

Frameworks,  guidelines and standards 

This Annual Report has been prepared with reference to Companies Act, 2013, 
Indian Accoun�ng Standards, Cost Audi�ng Standard and Secretarial Standard.

Report Methodology
The report's content and aspect boundary have been reviewed and approved by 
the company's top management.

Audit/ Assurance of the Report 
The annual financial statements have been audited by statutory Auditors. 

Forward-looking statements

Certain sec�ons of this report contain forward-looking statements. 

These can typically be iden�fied by terminology such as' 'may,' 'shall,' 'could,' 
'should,' 'intends,' 'es�mates,' 'plans,' 'assumes,' and 'an�cipates,' or similar 
phrases, including nega�ve varia�ons. 

These statements are subject to specific risks and opportuni�es that could be 
beyond OCPL's control or based on OCPL's current beliefs and assump�ons 
about future events. Consequently, the actual performance of the company may 
differ from the expected outcomes and performance implied in this report. 
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NOTICE FOR THE 9TH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

No�ce is hereby issued that the 9th Annual General Mee�ng of the members of Odisha Coal and Power 

Limited will be held on 24th December, 2024 at 4.45 P.M. at a shorter no�ce at Department of Energy, 

2nd Floor, Mini Conference Hall, Kharavela Bhawan, Bhubaneswar, Odisha-751 001 to transact the 

following business: -

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. To receive, consider and adopt Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the financial 

year ended 31st March 2024, together with the reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon 

and the comments of the Comptroller & Auditor General of India(C&AG) thereon, and, in this regard, 

to consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modifica�on(s), the following resolu�on as an 

Ordinary Resolu�on:

“RESOLVED THAT the Financial Statement Consis�ng of Audited Balance Sheet of the Company as on 

31st March 2024 and Statement of Profit & Loss for the year ending on that date, Cash Flow Statement, 

notes together with the Directors' Report, Auditors' Report, observa�ons of Statutory Auditors and 

Comments of C & AG of India and replies of the management thereon be and are hereby received, 

considered and adopted.”

2. To Take Note of the appointment of Statutory Auditors by the Comptroller & Auditor General of 

India for the F Y 2024-25 and their remunera�on and, in this regard, to consider and if thought fit, to 

pass, with or without modifica�on(s), the following resolu�on as an Ordinary Resolu�on:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sec�ons 139, 142 and other applicable provisions, if any, 

of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, (including any 

statutory modifica�on(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the �me being in force), appointment of  M/s 

Singh Ray Mishra & Co. Chartered Accountants, Premises 4-P & 5-P, 3rd Floor, BMC Panchadeep Complex, 

Bhoumya Nagar, Bhubaneswar- 751001 as the Statutory Auditors of the Company for Financial Year 

2024-25 as communicated by the Comptroller and Auditor General (C&AG) of India vide Le�er No. 

CA.V/COY/ ODISHA.OCPL/867 dated 21/09/2024 be and is hereby noted with a fees Rs. 385,000/-  to hold 

office from the conclusion of 9th Annual General Mee�ng un�l the conclusion of the 10th Annual 

General Mee�ng of the Company.”

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

Item No. 1 –ALTERATION OF THE ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION (AOA) OF THE COMPANY: 

To consider and if thought fit to pass with or without modifica�on(s), the following resolu�on as Special 

Resolu�on: 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sec�on 14 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read 

with the Companies (Incorpora�on) Rules, 2014 and all other applicable provisions, if any, of the Act 

(including any statutory modifica�on(s) or re-enactment thereof for the �me being in force), approval of 

the shareholders of the Company be and is hereby accorded to adopt altered Ar�cles of Associa�on of 

the Company replacing the exis�ng Ar�cles of Associa�on of the Company, as per the dra�  Ar�cles at 

Annexure-1 placed before the Mee�ng.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and are hereby authorised 

Company Secretary to do all such acts, deeds and things as may be required for giving effect to this 
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Resolu�on and to se�le all ques�ons, difficul�es or doubts that may arise in this regard at any stage 

without requiring the Board to secure any further consent or approval of the members of the Company to 

the end and intent that they shall be deemed to have given their approval thereto expressly by the 

authority of this Resolu�on.”

 By Order of the Board 

 For Odisha Coal and Power Limited 

Place: Bhubaneswar (Ajaya Kumar Majhi)   

Date: 03.12.2024 Company Secretary        

NOTES: 

1. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE MEETING IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY TO 

ATTEND AND VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF/HERSELF AND THE PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE 

COMPANY. 

2. The instrument appoin�ng the proxy, duly completed, stamped and signed must be deposited at the 

Company's registered office not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the mee�ng. The Proxy 

form for the EGM is enclosed herewith. 

3. In case of joint shareholders, any one shareholder may sign the proxy form. 

4. In the case of joint holders, the vote of the senior who tenders a vote, whether in person or by proxy, 

shall be accepted to the exclusion of the votes of the other joint holders. 

For this purpose, seniority shall be determined by the order in which the names stand in the register of 

members.

Copy to: -

1) Mr. Vishal Kumar Dev, IAS, Principal Secretary to Govt. of Odisha, Department of Energy and 

Chairman, OCPL., Bhubaneswar for kind informa�on with a request to kindly make it convenient 

to preside over the mee�ng.

2) M/s Singh Ray Mishra & Co. Chartered Accountants, Premises 4-P & 5-P, 3rd Floor, BMC 

Panchadeep Complex, Bhoumya Nagar, Bhubaneswar- 751001, for kind informa�on with a 

request to make it convenient to a�end the mee�ng.

3) M/s Prabhat Nayak & Associates, Company Secretaries, Secretarial Auditors, Plot No.84, 

Bhagabanpur Industrial Estate, Bhubaneswar, Odisha for kind informa�on with a request to make 

it convenient to a�end the mee�ng.
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DIRECTOR'S REPORT

Dear Members,

On behalf of the Board of Directors, it is our privilege to present the 9th Directors Report on the project 

development, performance and opera�ng results of the Company for the financial year 2023-24 

together with the Audited Statement of Accounts and the Report of the auditors thereon. The 

observa�ons of the Statutory Auditors U/s 143(2),(3)&(4) and comments of Comptroller and Auditor 

General of India U/s 143 (6) (b) of the Companies Act, 2013 respec�vely on the said Accounts also form a 

part of the report. 

1. Project Development Highlights:

 I. Performance of OCPL in Brief

• Consistently ge�ng 5-star ra�ng from MoC for the Last three years.

• Achieved FIMI award for CSR

• Winner of Apex Safety Leadership Award-2023 & Apex Safe Workplace Award-2023

• Winner of Apex Safety Culture Award-2024

• Winner of Corporate excellence award in Gold Category & Best PSU in Odisha

• Par�cipated in Annual Mines Safety Fortnight-2022 and 2023 organised by MCL and 

DGMS, GoI & bagged the following Prizes:

First Prize : AMSF 2023

• MDO Category (Overall)
• Mine Opera�on
• Nukkad Natak
• Electrical Installa�on

Second Prize : AMSF 2023

• Haul Road & Dust 
Suppression

• Illumina�on
• Substa�on
• VTC
• Quiz Compe��on

First Prize : AMSF 2022
• Contractual Category 

(Overall)
• Swacha�a Award
• Mine Ligh�ng & 

Electrical Installa�on
• VTC
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II. Mine Performance:

 The Mine Opera�on started from Manoharpur coal mine from 01-11-2018 by removing top-soil 

and OB. The Produc�on was started from 10-10-2019.OCPL started selling coal from December 

2019 onward. Our persistent efforts have made the Manoharpur mine much progressed. The 

detailed sta�s�cs of achievement for the FY 2023-24 are as under:

Details in F.Y.2022 -23 in F.Y.2023 -24 YOY Growth 
Since Incep�on 
(up to Mar'24) 

Details Coal Produc�on 7,999.97  8,509.35   24,764.76  

OB Produc�on 26,322.26  19,780.89  (  74,500.77  

Total Coal Despatched 8,218.776 8,345.80

6.37%

-)24.85%

1.55% 24,454.27 

III. Coal Produc�on:

 During the financial year 2023-24, our company demonstrated a strong commitment to efficient 

and sustainable coal produc�on. Despite the challenges posed by various factors, including 

regulatory changes and market fluctua�ons, our coal produc�on remained robust. We achieved a 

total coal produc�on of 85,09,347.127 million tons, a 6.37% increase compared to the previous 

financial year.

 This increase in coal produc�on was the result of our relentless focus on opera�onal excellence, 

the implementa�on of advanced mining technologies, and the dedica�on of our skilled 

workforce. Our commitment to safety and environmental sustainability remained unwavering 

throughout the produc�on process.

IV. Dispatch and Transporta�on:

 Efficient dispatch and transporta�on are crucial components of our business, ensuring that our 

coal reaches customers and end-users in a �mely and cost-effec�ve manner. During the financial 

year 2023-24, we have successfully dispatched 83,54,801.425 million tons of coal, reflec�ng a 

1.6% improvement from the previous year. 

(Figures in 000 tons)
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V. Sales Performance:

 In terms of sales, the financial year 2023-24 witnessed remarkable achievements for our 

company. Our total coal Auc�oned for the year was 18.53 Lakh tons through 16 numbers of e 

Auc�ons. The average base sales price of such auc�oned coal was ₹1,716/- per ton (excluding 

taxes). Despite the downtrend in coal market, this excep�onal sales performance can be 

a�ributed to our strong customer rela�onships, consistent product quality, and adaptability to 

changing market demands. 

Despite the evolving energy landscape and the shi� towards renewable sources, our coal 

products con�nue to meet the requirements of various industries, contribu�ng to economic 

growth and energy security.
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VI. Market Expansion and Sustainability:

 Our company recognizes the importance of sustainable prac�ces in the coal industry. Throughout 

the financial year 2023-24, we con�nued to invest in research and development to improve the 

efficiency of our produc�on processes and reduce our environmental footprint. We ac�vely 

engaged with stakeholders, including local communi�es and regulatory bodies, to address 

concerns and incorporate best prac�ces.

VII. Performance Security and Upfront Payment:  

 In compliance with the requirements of the Allotment Agreement, Performance Security (for 

Peak Rated Capacity of 16 MTPA) in shape of Bank Guarantee (BG) for Rs. 329.79 Cr. has been 

submi�ed with the Nominated Authority, Ministry of Coal, Government of India on 24.10.2024. 

OCPL has obtained the following statutory permits / clearances:

VIII. Manoharpur Coal Block:

 Statutory Permits / Clearances:

Sl.  Permits/Clearances  Authority/Department  

1.  
Revised Mining Plan and 
Mine Closure Plan (Revision-
III)-16MTPA  

Ministry of Coal, Govt. of India  

2.  
Stage-I & II Forest Clearance 
of Manoharpur coal mines in 
favour of OCPL  

Ministry of Environment & Forest and Climate 
Change (MoEF & CC), Govt. of India (GoI) 

3.  
Environment Clearance of 
Manoharpur coal mines in 
favour of OCPL  

Ministry of Environment & Forest and Climate 
Change (MoEF & CC), Govt. of India (GoI) 

4.  Consent to Establish for Coal 
Mine in favour of OCPL  State Pollu�on Control Board, Odisha  

5.  Consent to Operate for Coal 
Mine in favour of OCPL  State Pollu�on Control Board, Odisha  
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6.  Grant of 5.55 Cusecs of water 
from Hirakud back water  

Department of Water Resources, Govt. of 
Odisha  

7.  
Explosive License  Ministry of Commerce & Industry, Petrol eum 

& Explosive Safety Organisa�on (PESO), GOI.  

8.  Non-Mineralisa�on 
Clearance in favour of OCPL  Directorate of Geology, Odisha  

9.  Permanent Power drawal 
from NTPC  Ministry of Power, Govt. of India    

10.
 Power supply permission for 

R&R colony Phase-I
 
at 

Sukhabandh 
 

WESCO 
 

11.
 Nalla Diversion Permission in 

favour of OCPL
 

Department of Water Resources, Govt. of 
Odisha

 

12.
 Road Diversion Permission in 

favour of OCPL
 

Department of Rural Development, Govt. of 
Odisha

 

13.
 Environment Clearance for 

R&R Colony in favour of 
OCPL

 

State Level Environment Impact Assessment 
Authority, Odisha /

  
State Pollu�on Control 

Board, Odisha
 

14.
 

Consent to Establish for R&R 
Colony in favour of OCPL

 State Pollu�on Control Board, Odisha
 

15.
 

Consent to Operate for R&R 
Colony of OCPL 

 State Pollu�on Control Board, Odisha
 

16.
 Site Specific Wildlife 

Conserva�on Plan for Coal 
Mine

 
Principal Chief Conservator of Forest & Chief 
Wildlife Warden, Odisha

 

17.
 

Ownership of ITC Hemgir
 Directorate of Technical Educa�on and 

Training, Odisha, Cu�ack
 

18.
 

Mining Lease execu�on
 

Collector, Sundargarh, Govt. of Odisha
 

19. NOC for abstrac�on of 
Ground Water 

Central Ground Water Authority, Govt. of India 

20. Mine Opening Permission 
Coal Controller’s Organisa�on, Ministry of 
Coal, Govt. of India 

21. 
Exemp�on under Sec (31) of 
the Contract Labour Act, 
1970 

Ministry of Labour and Employment. 

22. 
Environment Clearance for 
the Manoharpur Township 
Project (Mine Colony) 

State Environment Impact Assessment 
Authority (SEIAA), Odisha 

23. 
Consent to Establish and 
Consent to Operate for the 
Manoharpur Township 
Project (Mine Colony) 

State Pollu�on Control Board, Odisha 

 



11

IX. Dip-side of Manoharpur Coal Block:

 Statutory Permits / Clearances:

1 Prospec�ng License (PL) deed 

execu�on
 

Collector, Sundargarh, Govt. of 

Odisha
 

2 Permission for drilling of boreholes 

in forest area  

Forest & Environment 

Department, Govt. of Odisha 

3 Grant Order for Mining lease Dept. of Steel & Mines, Govt. 

of Odisha

4 Land Acquisi�on under CBA (A&D) 

Act, 1957-Gaze�e no�fica�on under 

Sec�on 3, 4 (1), 7(1), NOC from CCO 

under 8(2), 9(1) & 11(1) issued. 

Ministry of Coal, Govt. of India 

5 Environment Clearance Ministry of 

Environment,  Forest & Climate 

Change (MoEF&CC), GoI 

6 Forest Clearance (Sage-I) Ministry of 

Environment  Forest & Climate 

Change, GoI 

7 Integrated Site Specific Wildlife 

Conserva�on Plan 

Principal Chief Conservator of 

Forest & Chief Wildlife 

Warden, Odisha 

8 Diversion of Garia Nalla passing 

through Dip -side of Manoharpur 

coal Mine   

Department of Water 

Resources, Odisha 

X. Looking Ahead:

 As we move forward, we shall remain commi�ed to achieve leadership posi�on in the state coal 

sector. Our focus will con�nue to be on opera�onal excellence, sustainable growth, and the 

responsible u�liza�on of resources. We will seize opportuni�es presented by technological 

advancements and changing market dynamics to ensure our company's con�nued success.

XI. Mining Plan: 

 OCPL has obtained the approval of Mining Plan & Mine Closure Plan (Revision-III) on 26-09-2019 

with the peak rated capacity of 16 MTPA for Manoharpur and part of Dip-side Manoharpur coal 

mine. 

XII. Progress of Dip-side Manoharpur Coal Block

 a. Land Acquisi�on:  Government of India in Ministry of Coal has issued 11 (1) No�fica�on 

for Dip-side Manoharpur Coal Mine on dated 07.09.2020 and vested the acquired land 

measuring 684.620 hectares (Approximately or 1691.730 acres (approximately) and all 

rights in and over the said lands with OCPL with effect from 18.07.2020. Payment against 
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Govt. Land has been made on 29th September 2023 followed by taking of paper 

possession on 10th October, 2023.

 b. Environmental Clearance:  The Environment Clearance (EC) le�er for expansion of 

Manoharpur Coal Mine from 8 MTPA to 16 MTPA Peak Rated Capacity (PRC) has been 

granted by MoEF&CC, Govt. of India on 05.02.2024.

 c.        Forest Clearance: The Forest Clearance (Stage-I) proposal for the development of Dip-

side Manoharpur Coal Mining Project was accorded on 29.12.2023 from MoEF&CC, New 

Delhi. In compliance with the condi�on s�pulated in FC Stage – I, the payment for 

deposi�on of Net Present Value (NPV) was made on 20.05.2024 and the payment 

towards Compensatory Afforesta�on (CA) and Addi�onal Compensatory Afforesta�on 

(ACA) was made on 24.07.2024. The proposal for aliena�on and muta�on of CA land i.e. 

434.102 ha has been iden�fied and muta�on for the same is in process.

 d.        Approval for Garia Nalla Diversion:  The Garia Nalla is a Seasonal stream passing through 

the Dip side of Manoharpur coal block is required to be diverted for opera�on of mine. 

Approval for diversion of the same has been obtained from DoWR, Odisha vide le�er dt. 

07.02.2023.

XIII. Land and Rehabilita�on & Rese�lement:

 OCPL has obtained the approval of Mining Plan & Mine Closure Plan (Revision-III) on 26-09-2019 

with the peak rated capacity of 16 MTPA for Manoharpur and

 a. Private Land: Out of the total area of 1039.43 Ac., allotment of an area of 1037.24 Ac. in 

favour of Odisha Coal and Power Limited is complete. The balance Ac. 2.19 is under 

process for Signature of Collector, Sundargarh at Collectorate Sundargarh for Registra�on 

of lease deed between Collector, Sundargarh and IDCO, Bhubaneswar.

 b. Government Land: Out of the total area of 1033.48 Ac., aliena�on for an area of 1033.48 

Ac. in favour of Odisha Coal and Power Limited has been completed.

 c. Forest Land: Possession of 491 Ac. out of 495 Ac. of forest land is taken over by OCPL. The 

balance 4 Ac. land is pending due to stay order of the Hon'ble High Court of Odisha 

because of Forest Right Act (FRA) compensa�on ma�er. In addi�on to the above 141.04 

Ac. of forest land has been transferred from OPGC to OCPL.

XIV. Rehabilita�on and Rese�lement:

 Two villages namely Manoharpur and Ghumudasan are relocated to rehabilita�on and 

rese�lement colony at Sukhabandh and Hemgir respec�vely. The RoR (Pa�a) of house plots are 

handed over to the Project Displaced Families (PDFs) in the R&R colony by the district 

administra�on along with the displacement card. 

 The Annuity Scheme has been provided to the PDFs through LIC of India ltd. for Manoharpur 

village and directly by OCPL for Ghumudasan village.  OCPL has also engaged MART, an expert 

agency for promo�on of sustainable alterna�ve livelihood among PDFs. 

XV. Manoharpur Project:

 R&R (Ph-I): The reloca�on of the en�re Manoharpur village was completed on 23-11-2019.
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 R&R (Ph-II): The reloca�on of the en�re Ghumudasan village was completed on 02-04-2022. (122 

DFs have taken possession of houses at R&R colony and 49 DFs have self-relocated to the site of 

their choice.)

XVI. Dip-Side Manoharpur Project:

 Socio-Economic Survey completed for Kathafali, Paramanandpur, Katarbaga and Durubaga. 

Socio-cultural mapping and Infrastructural survey completed. The same report has been 

submi�ed to Collector, Sundargarh and accordingly Collector, Sundargarh forwarded the same to 

Tahasildar, Hemgir and Sarpach, Durubaga for wider circula�on among the project affected 

villages for inclusion and dele�on of their name in the report.

 Regarding construc�on of R&R colony, the villagers of Kathapahli and Parmanandapur have 

submi�ed their consent for establishment of R&R Colony at designated site at Sukhabandh, 

Hemgir.

XVII. Sustainable Livelihood Program for Project Displaced Families:

 The Manoharpur coal mine project led to the displacement of families in Sanghumuda village. 

Although these families received compensa�on according to the R&R Policy 2006 and 

government provisions, many struggled to use the funds effec�vely. Recognizing the need for 

more than just financial compensa�on, Odisha Coal and Power Limited (OCPL) decided to invest 

in sustainable livelihood restora�on and economic rehabilita�on for these families.

 In 2020, OCPL appointed MART Global Management Solu�ons LLP, a renowned consul�ng firm 

with over 31 years of experience in social development across India and Southeast Asia, to lead 

this important ini�a�ve. MART's role is to implement a five-year (2020-2025) project aimed at 

crea�ng las�ng livelihoods for the displaced and affected families of Sanghumuda village. In total, 

122 displaced families are residing inside R&R colony built by OCPL where as some of the 

displaced and affected families have opted out to live in alterna�ve loca�ons.

 Objec�ve: The core objec�ve of this project is to help the displaced families rebuild their lives 

through extending guidance and support towards produc�ve u�liza�on of released 

compensa�on towards different sustainable op�ons for livelihood interven�on in farm, off farm 

and non-farm sectors The project is commi�ed to:

 1. Income enhancement: By the end of the five-year project, the project aims at a 

substan�al enhancement of the annual income of all par�cipa�ng families compared to 

their annual income prior to displacement.

 2. Crea�ng Sustainable Livelihoods: The project focuses on establishing livelihoods for the 

displaced families that are not just short-term solu�ons but will con�nue to benefit the 

families long a�er the project is over. 

XVIII. Key Highlights: 

 The project was incepted in 2020, but due to the Covid19 pandemic, the first year was 

slow, and gradually take the momentum from 2021, whereby different interven�ons 

were ini�ated. The current year has been a frui�ul year in respect as some of the key 

livelihood interven�ons were ini�ated, which are depicted below.
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1. Disposable buffet plate unit: Jayan� Sahu from HH 08 ini�ated a disposable buffet plate 

manufacturing unit in Sanghumuda R&R Colony. The Rs. 2.86 Lakh project was converged 

under the PMEGP scheme through DIC. It included 95% bank finance, 5% own 

contribu�on, and a 35% subsidy. Hydraulic automa�c machines were chosen for be�er 

quality and produc�vity. 

Funding was finalized by 

PNB Hemgir a�er DPR 

submission. Produc�on 

began in January 2024. 

Over 10 months, sales 

reached Rs. 1.53 Lakhs 

with a profit of Rs. 1.25 

Lakhs. The unit operates 

smoothly, fulfilling local 

demand and ensuring 

steady income. 

2. Bakery Unit: Mrs. Gouri 

Pandey, with her family's 

experience in selling bakery items, was encouraged by MART to establish a bakery unit 

under the PMEGP scheme. The Rs. 4.93 Lakh project (90% bank finance, 35% subsidy) was 

approved by SBI Hemgir. Following exposure visits and training, gas-operated ovens were 

installed, and produc�on 

began in July 2024.The unit 

produces 12 bakery items 

like bread, buns, and cakes, 

achieving Rs. 4.53 Lakhs in 

sales and Rs. 1.65 Lakhs in 

profit. MART con�nues to 

support product branding, 

m a r ket  l i n ka ge s ,  a n d 

capacity building, ensuring 

business growth. 

3. C o n c e p� n g  a  Po u l t r y 

Cluster: Poultry farming 

was chosen as a livelihood 

opportunity to support displaced families of the village due to its affordability, quick 

returns, and sustainable income poten�al. The project team collaborated with veterinary 

experts and Parba� SHG to establish a 1,000-capacity Chicks Rearing Unit, fully funded 

under the OMBADC at Rs. 2.54 lakh. Addi�onally, five individual households were 

promoted to set up poultry farms who would be granted with subsidies with the 

convergence with line departments: 
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• HH-99 Santosh Majhi: 500-capacity Poultry Farm cos�ng Rs. 1.80 lakh with 60% subsidy.

• HH-81 Pradeep Bhoi: 500-capacity Poultry Farm cos�ng Rs. 1.80 lakh with 50% subsidy.

• HH-52 Upendra Bhoi: 500-capacity Poultry Farm cos�ng Rs. 1.80 lakh with 50% subsidy.

• HH-26 Haripriya Bhaisal: 200-capacity Poultry Farm cos�ng Rs. 76,000 with 100% subsidy. 

(Under OMBADC)

• HH-89 Jharana Majhi: 200-capacity Poultry Farm cos�ng Rs. 76,000 with 100% subsidy. 

(Under OMBADC)

The first procurement 

process is completed, 

with 1,064 chicks placed 

in the Parba� SHG's Chick 

rearing unit. Construc�on 

of the rest five individual 

units is ongoing. The 

project team is facilita�ng 

the DFs in procurement of 

construc�on materials, 

drinkers, feeders and 

chicks for the farms. This 

ini�a�ve aims to promote 

local entrepreneurship, 

economic stability, and 

job crea�on, enhancing the livelihoods of displaced families in the Sanghumuda R&R colony. 

4. Forma�on of 2 Village Development Commi�ees (VDCs) in both colonies: To foster 

integra�on and create opportuni�es for development in the rese�led villages, OCPL 

envisioned the establishment of community-owned ins�tu�ons. In line with this vision, 

MART officials facilitated mul�ple rounds of mee�ngs with influen�al members from 

both villages, leading to the forma�on of two Village Development Commi�ees (VDCs). 

 The process involved the selec�on of general and governing body members, along with 

the prepara�on of necessary documenta�on, including cashbooks, resolu�ons, bylaws, 

and KYCs, which were ini�ally submi�ed to the district-level registrar authori�es. Upon 
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learning that only online applica�ons were accepted, MART officials facilitated the digital 

submission process. In September 2024, the cer�ficates for Jay Bajrang Gramya Unnayan 

Commi�ee and Manohar 

G r a m y a  U n n a y a n 

Commi�ee were issued by 

the registrar authori�es. 

Members of both VDCs, 

accompanied by MART 

o ffi c i a l s ,  v i s i t e d  t h e 

R e g i s t r a r  O ffi c e  i n 

Sundargarh to receive their 

cer�ficates, marking a 

significant milestone in 

formalizing the VDCs' roles. 

Going forward, regular 

mee�ngs will be held with 

VDC members to guide 

them in planning and execu�ng various development and income-genera�on ac�vi�es 

for the be�erment of the colonies.

5. Supply of school uniform by Durga SHG: Durga SHG successfully ventured into a new 

livelihood ac�vity by supplying school uniforms to 1,600 students across 21 schools in 

Hemgir block, with facilita�on by the MART project team. Following contract finaliza�on, 

t h e  S H G  p r o c u r e d 

materials from a vendor in 

Gandhi Chowk and u�lized 

t h e i r  e i g h t  s e w i n g 

machines for produc�on. 

Despite challenges such as 

s i z e  e x c h a n g e s  a n d 

addi�onal demands from 

s c h o o l s ,  t h e  g r o u p 

completed the distribu�on 

on �me, ensuring phased 

payments and vendor 

se�lements. A dissemina�on mee�ng highlighted financial transparency, revealing a 

surplus of Rs.70,000. The SHG's efforts were recognized through a thanksgiving visit to 

Block Educa�on and Mission Shak� officials, with a request for future opportuni�es. This 

ini�a�ve not only enhanced their income but also demonstrated their capacity to 

manage large-scale projects efficiently. 

 Building on their previous success, Durga SHG was awarded further contracts for the 2024 

session. In October, they successfully distributed uniforms to 391 students of classes 9 



17

and 10 across four schools in 

Hemgir block, with a total 

project value of Rs.3,91,000. 

The income from this ac�vity is 

expected to be Rs.39,000, with 

t h e  c o l l e c � o n  p r o c e s s 

ongoing. Addi�onally, the SHG 

has been entrusted with a new 

contract to supply uniforms to 

704 students from classes 1 to 

8 across 12 schools, a project 

slated for comple�on by December 2024. This demonstrates growing trust in the SHG's 

capabili�es to manage and execute large-scale assignments efficiently

6. Forma�on of a new SHG 

(Brundaba� SHG): In February 

2024, a new Self-Help Group 

(SHG) named Maa Brundaba� 

S H G  w a s  f o r m e d  i n 

Sanghumuda R&R Colony with 

faci l ita�on support from 

MART. The SHG successfully 

opened a bank account in 

Punjab Na�onal Bank, Hemgir. 

As of now, the group has 

a c c u m u l ate d  s av i n g s  o f 

Rs.8,000 but has yet to ini�ate any income-genera�ng ac�vi�es. MART is consistently 

guiding and encouraging the SHG to ac�vely par�cipate in livelihood ac�vi�es to enhance 

their income and contribute to 

their economic growth. 

7. New Grocery Shop (Naresh 

Bhoi, HH53): In the first week 

of March 2024, Naresh Bhoe 

(HH-53) opened a grocery 

shop in Sanghumuda R&R 

Colony, providing essen�al 

daily consumables for the 

community. MART supported 

the setup by facilita�ng goods 

procurement from nearby 

wholesale markets. To date, the shop has achieved total sales revenue of Rs. 3.6 lakh, with 

a cumula�ve profit of Rs. 65,000. 
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8. Duck Rearing Unit: (HH-110)- 

In September 2024, a duck 

rearing unit was established by 

HH-110 in Sanghumuda R&R 

Colony with support from the 

A n i m a l  H u s b a n d r y 

Department and facilita�on by 

MART. The family received 50 

duck chicks along with Rs. 500 

directly deposited into their 

account to assist with setup 

and care. This ini�a�ve aims to provide the household with a steady source of income and 

promote self-reliance. The ducks are currently growing, showing progress toward 

achieving these goals. 

9. Supply of food supplements to 

TB pa�ents (Minikeswari 

SHG): With the contract from 

O C P L ,  M i n i ke s w a r i  S H G 

c o n � n u e d  t o  s u p p l y 

nutri�onal food supplements 

to the TB pa�ents of Hemgir 

block, The said ac�vity was up 

to  Mar  2024 as  per  the 

contract period, where by the 

have generated an income of 

Rs 54,000 during the current opera�onal year. The project team has facilitated all the 

support to the SHG such as procurement, logis�c, distribu�on and invoice raising,  

10. Supply of food supplements to 

orphanage inmates (Parba� 

SHG): During the current year 

23-24, OCPL granted another 

contract to Parba� SHG to 

s u p p l y  n u t r i � o n a l  fo o d 

supplements and sta�onaries 

to the inmates of Hemgir 

Orphanage. The ac�vity was 

started from Nov 2023, and 

ends in May 2024. The SHG has 

con�nuously supplied the 

prescribed products to about 29 inmates of the orphanage. The SHG has been able to 

generate a collec�ve income /service charge of Rs. 54,000 from the said ac�vity during 
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the year. The project team has facilitated all the support to the SHG such as procurement, 

logis�c, distribu�on and invoice raising.

XIX. Major Contracts and Agreement:

 OCPL Board on 28th August, 2018 had approved for execu�on of “Mining Service Agreement” 

(MSA) with M/s BGR Mining & Infra Limited (BGR) for a period of 10+2 years on its selec�on 

through the open tendering process conducted in 2018.  The “Mining Service Agreement” (MSA) 

has been executed between OCPL and M/s BGR Mining & Infra Limited in this regard on 31st 

August 2018 for Development, Opera�on & Maintenance of Manoharpur Mine Project of OCPL. 

 Mining Plan in the MSA approved by the Ministry of Coal and includes the Revision of Mining 

Plan-III. The Schedule-9, Clause no. 14.2 (c) of MSA pertains to Annual Contract Quan��es (ACQ) 

for respec�ve opera�ng years with 8.0 MTPA PRC. 

 OCPL has obtained all regulatory clearances by 12th March, 2024 such as Stage-I Forestry 

Clearance for Dip-Side Coal Block, EC for 16 MTPA, CTE for 16 MTPA and, CTO for 13 MTPA for FY 

24-25 and has communicated M/s BGR on this status on 12th March, 24. 

 Since all the regulatory clearances for 16 MTPA are in place, therefore OCPL was required to 

accomplish coal produc�on as per the schedule and accordingly amendment in MSA contract or 

otherwise is essen�al.

 The ma�er was discussed in the MSA Commi�ee and Board mee�ng of OCPL. It has also obtained 

the approval of Govt. of Odisha.

 The company has signed an addendum to the Mine Service Agreement (MSA) on dated 03-09-

2024 

XX. Project Target-Project Schedule:

 Allotment Agreement was signed with the Nominated Authority, Ministry of Coal specifying the 

�me line to start the mine opera�on within 44 months i.e. May 2019 from the zero date (i.e. 31st 

August 2015). However, OCPL commenced mining opera�ons on 1st November, 2018 which was 

well within the scheduled �meline. Coal produc�on from Manoharpur Coal Block commenced on 

10th October, 2019 and coal despatch started on 14-12-2019. 

 Achieved Coal produc�on for FY 2023-24 is 8.51 Million Tonne against Target produc�on for 10.0 

Million tonne of coal and the target coal produc�on for FY 2024-25 is 13.0 Million Tonne as per the 

approved Mining Plan (Rev-III). All the statutory clearances and permits for Manoharpur Coal 

Mine is in place. The Statutory Clearances and permit are in place for Dip side Manoharpur Coal 

Mine except Forest Clearance (FC) Stage-II. 

2. Financial Highlights

I. Capital Structure:

 The Authorised Share Capital of the Company is Rs.750.00 Crores, divided into 75,00,00,000 

Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each. The paid up Equity Share Capital of the Company stands at 

Rs.425.95 Crores. The en�re paid up Equity Share Capital are held by Odisha Power Genera�on 

Corpora�on Limited (OPGC) and Governor represented by Govt. of Odisha in the ra�o of 51:49. 
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II. Long Term Financing: 

 Term loan of Rs.50,000 lakhs, Rs. 53,600 lakhs and Rs. 57,130 lakhs were sanc�oned from Union 

Bank of India, Punjab Na�onal Bank and Rural Electrifica�on Corpora�on Ltd respec�vely for the 

development of Manoharpur Coal Mine at Sundargarh district. Subsequently, the sanc�oned 

term loan from REC has been revised to Rs. 27,530 lakhs and a fresh sanc�on of Rs. 29,600 lakhs 

were obtained from Punjab Na�onal Bank by way of carry-out from the term loan of Rs. 57,130 

lakh sanc�oned ini�ally from REC Ltd. The sanc�oned term loan of Rs. 29,600 lakhs against which 

Rs.9,00 lakh drawn stands closed during the current financial year. 

III. Security:

 The term loans including interest and other charges have been secured by way of pari-passu basis 

through equitable mortgage by way of hypotheca�on of all tangibles, movable 

plants/machinery/other assets, both present and future including Book Debts and immovable 

property situated at Manoharpur or other places along with Building in favour of the lenders.

IV. Financial Results/Highlights:

 The statement of accounts for the year under considera�on accompanied by the auditors' report 

and management's views on the audit observa�ons form an integral part of the report 

(Annexure-III). 

 The following summarised financial results are furnished as follows for easy apprecia�on of the 

financial health of the company.

Par�culars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023 

Secured borrowings - at 
amor�sed cost   

    Union Bank of India (UBI)
 

15597.76
 

18931.01
 Punjab Na�onal Bank (PNB)

 
22914.71

 
27382.04

 Rural Electrifica�on Corpora�on 
Limited (REC Ltd)

 
21332.56

 
22932.47

 
Total  59845.03 69245.52 

Par�culars 
FY. 2023-24 

(Rs. in Lakhs) 

FY. 2022-23            

(Rs. in Lakhs) 

  

  

Revenue from Opera�ons  1,18,925.79 1,84,864.41

Other income 2,969.31 4,417.53

Total Income  121,895.10  1,89,281.94

Cost of mine opera�on  71,948.56 58,613.88

Change in inventory  (1,174.28) 1,356.15

Cost of transporta�on - 18.82

Employee benefit expenses 1,410.89 1,276.98

Finance cost 7,393.29 8,479.49

Other expenses 7,793.89 4,661.54
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V. Review of Opera�ons:

 The revenue from opera�on represents the revenue generated from sale of coal to Odisha Power 

Genera�on Corpora�on Ltd (OPGC) and to various customers from commercial sales made 

through e-auc�on. Revenue includes sale of Coal (net off of taxes) to OPGC for Rs. 80,836.80 

lakhs, E Auc�on of coal in commercial market for Rs. 38,055.15 lakhs and others for Rs.33.85 lakh 

for the period under repor�ng (March 31, 2023: Rs. 77,113.54 lakhs against coal sale to OPGC and 

Rs.1,07,750.87 lakhs from commercial sales).

VI.  Dividend and Dividend Policy:

 The Company's overarching objec�ve is to strike the right balance between adequately 

rewarding shareholders through dividend and providing enough funds to drive future growth to 

maximize long term sustainable shareholder value.

 The Company did not declare any dividend during the FY 2023-24.

VII. Changes in Leverage Ra�os:

i)  The current ra�o is at 1.61 in current year as against 1.07 in previous year is primarily due 

to increase in stock and trade receivable during the year.

ii)  The debt-equity ra�o is at 0.48 in current year as against 0.71 in previous year is primarily 

due to repayment & prepayment of term loans during the year.

iii)  The Debt service coverage ra�o is at 2.90 in current year as against 8.21 in previous year is 

primarily due to repayment of term loans and decrease in profit during the year.

iv)  Return on equity is at 14.50 in current year as against 89.19 in previous year is due to 

decrease in profit during the current year.

v)  The increase in Net capital turnover ra�o is primarily due to decrease in average working 

capital.

vi)  The decrease in net profit ra�o to 0.16 in current year as against 0.44 in previous year is 

primarily due to decrease in revenue and profit in current year.

vii)  The decrease in return on capital employed is primarily due to decrease in profit a�er tax 

during the current year.

Deprecia�on & Amor�za�on expenses 6,935.58 6,119.28

Total Expenses 94,307.93 80,526.13

Profit before Excep�onal items 27,587.18 1,08,755.80

Less: Excep�onal items – –

Profit/(Loss) before tax 27,587.18 1,09,255.21

Less: Tax expenses 8,323.85 28,332.64

Profit/(Loss) a�er Tax 19,263.33 80,423.17

Less: Any appropria�ons, if any – --

Balance carried to Balance Sheet 19,263.33 80,423.17
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VIII. Reserves and Surplus:

 The balance amount in Reserves and Surplus stands at Rs. 99,858.95 lacs (Previous year Rs 

80595.63 lacs) at the year under review. 

IX. Transfer of Unpaid and Unclaimed amounts to IEPF:

 Since there was no unpaid/unclaimed Dividend declared and paid, the provisions of Sec�on 125 

of the Companies Act, 2013 do not apply to the company.

X. Contracts and Arrangements with Related Par�es:

 Your Directors draw the a�en�on of members to note no. 38 of the Financial Statements which 

sets out the disclosure of Related Party Transac�ons. The related par�es' transac�ons for supply 

of coal to OPGC have been made in ordinary course of business and on arm's length basis. 

XI. Par�culars of Loans, Guarantees or Investments Under Sec�on 186 of the Companies Act, 2013:

 The details of loans, guarantees or investments are given under Note No. 20 & 34 of Financial 

Statements.

XII. Transfer to Reserves:

 The Board did not recommend any amount for transfer to reserves during the financial year 

under review.

XIII. Unsecured Loan:

 During the year under review the Company has not availed any inter-corporate loan from OPGC & 

Govt. of Odisha.

3. General

 Your directors state that there is no disclosure or repor�ng requirement in respect of the 

following items as there were no transac�ons rela�ng to these items during the year under 

report:

 Details rela�ng to deposits covered under Chapter V of the Act.

 Issue of equity shares with differen�al rights as to dividend, vo�ng or otherwise. Issue of shares, 

sweat equity shares and ESOS to employees of the Company. Neither the Managing Director nor 

the Whole-�me Directors of the Company receive any commission from the Company.

 No significant or material orders were passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals which 

impact the going concern status and Company's opera�ons in future.

I. Material Changes:

 No material changes and commitments have occurred a�er the close of the year under review �ll 

the date of this Report which affect the financial posi�on of the Company.

II. Risk and Areas of Concern:

 The Company is having a close vigil on the business and non-business risk and reviewing the same 

in regular intervals. It is also considering to implement a more comprehensive and well.

III. Material Changes and Commitment, If any, affec�ng the Financial Posi�on of the Company 

Occurred Between the End of the Financial Year to which this Financial Statement relate and 

the Date of the Report:
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 No material changes and commitments affec�ng the financial posi�on of the Company occurred 

between the end of the financial year to which these financial statements relate and on the date 

of this report.

IV. Statement Concerning Development and Implementa�on of Risk Management Policy of the 

Company:

 OCPL has iden�fied the risk management prac�ces to address various developmental and 

opera�onal risks. The Company has standard opera�ng processes for various developmental 

ac�vi�es at present in order to mi�gate and prevent risk arising out of various ac�vi�es and 

opera�ons. OCPL is currently carrying out coal mine developmental works and its opera�on has 

just been commenced for which permits and clearances from different State and Central Govt. 

agencies are in place. However, the Policy of Government may impact OCPL's development as 

well as opera�onal strategy in case of any change in law as may be promulgated by Govt.

V. Conserva�on of Energy & Technology Absorp�on:

 The par�culars rela�ng to Conserva�on of Energy, Technology Absorp�on, Foreign Exchange 

Earnings and Outgo, as required to be disclosed under the Companies Act, 2013 are given in the 

Annexure-I to this report.

VI. Extract of Annual Return:

 Extract of Annual Return of the Company is annexed herewith as Annexure -II to this Report.

VII. Statutory Audit:

 M/s Singh Ray Mishra & Co., Chartered Accountants have been appointed as the Statutory 

Auditors of the Company by Comptroller and Auditor General (C&AG) of India for the year under 

report. 

VIII. Management Comments on Statutory Auditors' Report:

 The comments of the statutory auditors and management's reply on each of the observa�ons are 

placed at Annexure – IV which form a part of the Directors' Report.

IX. Management Comments on C & AG of India Review- Supplementary Audit :

 Review of the Accounts and comments for the year ended 31st March, 2023 by the Comptroller 

and Auditor General (C&AG) of India is furnished at Annexure – V and management's reply on 

each of the comment are placed at Annexure – V(A) which also forms a part of this report.

X. Internal Audit:

 The Board of Directors of the Company has appointed, a�er recommenda�ons of the Audit 

Commi�ee, M/s Jalan & Associates, Chartered Accountants as internal auditors for conduc�ng 

Internal Audit. The Internal Auditors monitor and evaluate the efficiency and adequacy of 

internal control system in the company, its compliances with opera�ng systems, accoun�ng 

procedures and policies at Corporate and Site Office of the company and reports the same at end 

of financial year to the Audit Commi�ee and Board.

XI. Cost Audit:

 The Companies (Cost Records and Audit )Rules, 2014, states that , every company specified in 

item (B) of rule 3 i.e. the company coming under non-regulated sector shall get its cost records 
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audited in accordance with the rules 4, if the overall annual turnover of the company from all its 

products or Services during the immediately preceding financial year is rupees one hundred crore 

or more (100 Cr. or more) and the aggregate turnover of the individual product or service for 

which cost record are required to be maintained under rule 3 is rupees thirty five crore or more 

(35 Cr. or more).

 The category of companies specified in rule 3 and the thresholds limits laid down in rule 4, shall 

within one hundred and eighty days (180 days) of the commencement of every financial year, 

need to appoint a cost auditor.

 M/s Niran & Co, Cost Accountants was appointed as Cost Auditors of the company for the FY-

2023-24. The Cost Audit Report is enclosed as Annexure-VI and replies of Management is 

enclosed at Annexure-VI(A).

XII. Secretarial Audit:

 In pursuance of Sec�on 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 9 of the Companies 

(Appointment and Remunera�on of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 and other applicable 

provisions, if any, the Company was required to appoint Secretarial Auditor for the Financial Year 

2023-24.

 M/s Prabhat Nayak & Associates, Company Secretaries, Bhubaneswar was appointed as 

Secretarial Auditors of the Company for the Financial Year 2023-24. The report of the Secretarial 

Auditors to the shareholders on the accounts for the year 2023-24 is enclosed as Annexure-VII.

XIII. Internal Financial Control:

 The Company has a well-placed, proper and adequate Internal Financial Control system aimed at 

achieving efficiency in opera�ons, op�mum u�liza�on of resources and compliance with 

applicable laws and regula�ons. It ensures that all assets are safeguarded and protected and that 

the transac�ons are authorised, recorded and reported correctly. M/s Batra Swain & Associates, 

Chartered Accountants have been appointed for assessment and evalua�on of the Internal 

Financial Control systems of the Company and have found the same in order for the FY 2023-24.

4. Environment, Health & Safety (EHS):

 Mining is one of the industrial sector with greatest poten�al impacts in terms of environmental 

pollu�on, land-use and social implica�on. The environmental pollu�on will be always key thrust 

area to manage the impacts of mining opera�on through an implementa�on of robust & rigorous 

management plan. The environmental management plan is a systema�c programme integrated 

into the process of mine planning so that ecological balance of the area is maintained and 

an�cipated impacts are assessed and the management plan to mi�gate these impacts s�pulated 

in advance. 

 i. The Environmental Management Plan (EMP):

 The Environmental Management Plan (EMP) consists of a set of monitoring programme, 

mi�ga�on measures, management control strategies and audit of environmental performances 

to minimize adverse environmental impacts. The Environmental Management Plan (EMP) is a site 

specific plan developed to ensure that the project is implemented in an environmental 

sustainable manner.
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 Thus to ensure the mining of coal in an environmental friendly and sustainable manner, Odisha 

Coal and Power Limited (OCPL) has setup its mission sta�ng that “Produc�on of coal with 

con�nuous focus on safety, efficiency and quality in an eco-friendly environment”. 

 Keeping the above statement in the vision as well as mission of company, OCPL has implemented 

various pollu�on control measures at Manoharpur Coal Mine to carry out the mining opera�on in 

an environmental friendly and sustainable manner. The glimpses of environmentally sound 

features are as per below:

ii. Air Pollu�on Control Measures:

 In the planning phase of the project, OCPL has iden�fied the major sources of dust genera�on 

which mainly causes the air pollu�on are drilling, blas�ng, loading, unloading and transporta�on 

of coal and OB. Thus to minimize the dust genera�on at source itself, drill machines are fi�ed with 

dust suppression system and wet drilling is being prac�sed. To extract the coal, surface miners are 

being used at site which minimises the requirement of drilling and blas�ng for coal extrac�on; 

thus reduces the significant air pollu�on load. The photographs of the same are depicted below:

 

 Further, Dust suppression systems have also been installed at loading, unloading and all transfer 

points of belt conveyor in Coal Handling Plant (CHP). The CHP have 6.6 km length belt conveyor 

for covered transporta�on of coal to Rake Loading System (RLS) which ul�mately load the coal to 

wagons of Merry Go Round Rail (MGR) for use in End Use Power Plant (OPGC). Thus 100% of coal 

evacua�on to power plant is almost dust free and environment friendly. The photographs of the 

same are depicted below:

Drill Opera�on by Wet Drill Machines Coal Extrac�on through Surface Miner
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Fixed Water Sprinkling Rain Guns Mobile Fog Canon

Wheel washing facility Instant Shower System 28 KL Water Tankers

ETP STP Permanent Se�ling Tank

 Addi�onally, to arrest the fugi�ve dust emission generated from the various areas such as haul 

road, coal stock yard, transporta�on road; effec�ve water sprinkling system i.e. fixed water 

sprinkling along the transporta�on road, rain guns around the coal stock yard, Mobile fog canon 

with rear water sprinkling system, Wheel washing facility with instant shower system & 28KL of 

water tankers for sprinkling on haul road have been provided at site.

 Moreover, all the roads connec�ng to mine premises, CHP's, township and R&R colonies have 

been black topped & concreted to prevent fugi�ve and airborne dust emissions.

iii. Water Pollu�on Control Measures: 

 The pollu�on control measures for the waste water generated from the various area such as 

workshop, township, CHP area have also been provided at site to treat and re-use of the same 

within the project premises. In workshop area, 50 KLD of Effluent Treatment Plan (ETP) has been 

provided wherein the treated water is being reused for washing of vehicle purpose. Sewage 

Treatment Plant (STP) of 120 KLD capacity has been provided inside the township area and the 

treated water is reused for development of green area and hor�culture purpose. The CHP area 

has the 5 nos. of permanent se�ling tank equipped with dosing system to se�le down the 

suspended par�cle and reuse the water for sprinkling purpose. The photographs of the same are 

depicted below: 
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iv. Soil Erosion Control Measures: 

 Soil erosion control measures such as construc�on of toe wall, garland drains, se�ling ponds, 

recharge ponds have been constructed at site to reduce the soil erosion and to arrest the 

suspended par�cles before discharging the run-off water into the natural water course. The 

photographs of the same are depicted below:

Toe Wall Concrete Drain Recharge Pond

v. Adop�on of Renewal Energy Sources:

 Management and protec�on of environment can also be done by usage of renewal energy 

sources such as solar power. OCPL has adopted the scien�fic prac�ces in the project premises to 

harness the solar energy through solar panels and reuse of same during the night. Thus, it 

significantly reduces the load on thermal energy as also reduces the carbon footprint among the 

industries. 

9 Kwp solar panel installed at Roof-top 450 Wa� Solar Lights

 OB Dump Reclama�on: The stabilized bench of OB dump has been reclaimed by spreading of top 

soil over the slope of bench and grass carpe�ng over it through grass seed balls. Further, 

planta�on has also been developed over the 30m wide stable ramp of OB dump. Drip irriga�on 

system have been provided between the plant species for effec�ve watering to the plants and to 

ensure the sustainable growth of trees for be�er stability of the dump.

Dump Reclama�on Planta�on on 30m wide ramp
of OB dump

Drip Irriga�on
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vi. Planta�on: 

 OCPL has planted more than 55,000 nos. of tree saplings in and around the project premises to 

enhance the green cover and bio-diversity of the area. The planta�on covers all variety of species 

including indigenous such as Neem, Mahul, Pipal, Harida, Radha & Krishna Chuda etc. with fruit 

bearing species i.e. Mango, Guava, Amla, Coconut etc. Further, Miyawaki planta�on technique 

has also been adopted in the project premises to develop the more greenery in a small patch of 

land. Apart from this, avenue planta�on has been developed along the roads and safety zone of 

7.5m has also been developed & maintained as dense green belt in and around the ML area.

vii. Ambient air quality in comparison with Baseline:

 The ambient air quality in and around the Manoharpur coal mine is being monitored periodically 

as specified under statutory s�pula�ons and their results are also shared with regulatory 

agencies such as SPCB, CPCB, MoEF&CC. Further, Con�nuous Ambient Air Quality Monitoring 

System (CAAQMS) has also been installed in the project area which is connected to OSPCB server 

for real �me monitoring of Ambient Air Quality Parameters. A�er adop�on of all above 

men�oned environmental friendly prac�ces in the project, there is only minor increment (7 to 

13%) in the values of par�culate ma�er (i.e. PM10, PM2.5) in ambient air quality due to mining 

ac�vi�es as compared to baseline data of prior to mining opera�on. Thus, it is concluded that 

mining opera�ons can be con�nued for the development of na�on & to meet the energy demand 

in sustainable manner without destroying the environment.    

 Apart from the above, OCPL has also awarded the 5-star ra�ng from the Ministry of Coal (MoC) to 

keep, operate and maintain the Manoharpur Coal mine as per the latest standards / guidelines in 

an environmental friendly and sustainable manner. 

Planta�on
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5. Health, Safety, Environment & Sustainability In Manoharpur Coal Mines

 Mining poses several inherent, opera�onal and occupa�onal hazards and risks to the work 

persons. Hence, safety should always be the utmost priority for Coal Companies. Safety 

Management Plan is designed to ensure safety in order to achieve “Zero Harm Poten�al (ZHP)”.

 EHS is the management of an organiza�on's environmental, Health & Safety objec�ves in a 

comprehensive, systema�c, progressive and documented manner. It includes the organiza�onal 

structure, planning, ac�vi�es, resources and responsibili�es for developing, implemen�ng, 

achieving and monitoring the environment, health and safety policy of OCPL. The ul�mate aim is 

to have no incidents that harm its people, neighbours or put environment at risk. OCPL 

management gives utmost importance to providing a safe working environment and crea�ng 

safety awareness among its employees.

 The steps taken by OCPL includes:

• Implementa�on of safety consciousness among its employees including Mine Operator(MO), 

their family members and local villagers by means of various orienta�on programmes & 

awareness programmes.

• Regular mine inspec�ons and review with higher management are undertaken. Safety audits 

by re�red mining professionals and by reputed organiza�ons are carried out at Manoharpur 

Coal Mine Project. Their recommenda�ons are regularly reviewed and duly complied with.

• Adequate numbers of statutory officers are posted at mine & MO units as per rules and 

provisions. 

• Safety Management Plan for Mining has been prepared and submi�ed with Directorate 

General of Mines Safety, Ministry of Labour & Employment, Govt. of India. Further, Revision in 

Safety Management Plan is under process in collabora�on with M/s Bureau Veritas Industrial 

Solu�ons (India) Ltd. 

 The Na�onal Electrical Safety Week is observed every year in India from 26th June to 2nd July. 

We need to highlight the importance of electrical Safety awareness in all spheres of life so as to 

prevent mishaps and accidents resul�ng out of negligence or lack of awareness. 

 On this occasion of the 5th Na�onal Electrical safety week, at Manoharpur coal mines the 

following programme has been conducted to propagate Electrical safety awareness among the 

employees and the contractual workers.

 i. Safety Oath taking 

 ii. Electrical Safety Hand book distribu�on.

 iii. Lock out and Tag out training from external agency

 iv. CPR first aid Training.

 v. Electrical safety devises display and demonstra�on. 

 vi. Electrical safety quiz for staff's and workmen.

 vii. Electrical safety training.

 viii. Prize distribu�on for role model technician and engineer. 

 ix. Apprecia�on on concluding day.  
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TABLE-1: SAFETY STATISTICS OF MANOHARPUR COAL MINE:

 
Fatal Accidents

 Reportable 
Accidents 

Fatality Rate
 

Injury Rate
 

Accident

 

Fatali�es

 

Accident

 

Injuries

 

 
 

 

2021-22 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

2022-23 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

2023-24 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Per 
Million 

Tonne of 
coal 

produced

Per 
Million 

Tonne of 
coal 

produced

Per 3 
Lac 

Man 
shi�s 

Per 3 
Lac 

Man 
shi�s 

Time 
frame

 a) Statutory Frame Work for Coal Mine Safety:

  o Details of Safety ini�a�ves/ac�vi�es carried out during the year 2023-24

  o Monthly safety commi�ee mee�ng conducted as per statute.

  o Mock drill, Illumina�on Survey were conducted as per statute.

  o Organized training with the help Simulator were conducted by OEM for Dumper 

Operator.

  o Ini�al/ basic training, refresher training, special training was given as per statute

  o Special awareness drive on SOP & safe working was organized for operators & 

workmen

  o SOP for 100Tn dumper opera�on was prepared

  o Booklet of SOP/COP in Odia, Hindi, English languages has been prepared and 

distributed to all workmen (contractual &Dept.) during Annual Mine Safety 

Fortnight-2024

  o Safety talks, Safety Line walks were conducted.

TABLE-2: SAFETY STATISTICS OF MANOHARPUR COAL MINE:

Refresher 
training

Year Basic training Cumula�ve

79

319 

429 

490 

671 

468 

382 

12

84

106

13

0

38

133

67

235

323

477

671

430

249

2018 (From 24.10.2018)

2019

2020

2021

2022

2023

2024 (Upto 15.11.2024)
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 b) Safety Audits 

  1. Mines are inspected everyday by Statutory officials.

  2. Workmen Inspectors inspect various parts of the Mines twice in a week and 

maintain the records as per statute.

  3. Pit Safety Commi�ee Members inspect the Mines once in a month and 

observa�ons are deliberated in the monthly PSC mee�ng.

  4. ISO Members inspect the mines once in three months.

  5. External Safety Audit are conducted every year.

  6. The audit recommenda�ons are implemented and compliance reports are 

furnished regularly.

 c) Safety Events

•  Annual Mines Safety Fortnight in mines was celebrated between 5 Jan 2024 to 18

 Jan 2024.

•  Electrical Safety Week was celebrated Between 26 June 2024 to 02 July 2024

TABLE-3 SAFETY STATISTICS

TABLE-4: TRAINING DATA OF VOCATIONAL TRAINING CENTRE

Sl.No  Descrip�on  Cumula�ve Till October 2024 
(Since Incep�on)  

1  Man Hours worked  22228708  

2  Safe Men Hours  14459177.9  

3
 

Accident Free/Safe
 

Men Days
 

1807397.238
 

4
 

Safety Commi�ee mee�ng
 
461

 

5
 

Work Permit
 

65524
 

Year Basic training Refresher 
training

Cumula�ve

79

319 

429 

490 

671 

468 

382 

12

84

106

13

0

38

133

67

235

323

477

671

430

249

2018 (From 24.10.2018)

2019

2020

2021

2022

2023

2024 (Upto 15.11.2024)

 d) Performance of OCPL

• Zero accidents from the Last Four years and overall only one reportable injury 

since incep�on of the Mine. 

• Achieved 16.7 Million accident free man days.
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• Produced 8.5 MT of Coal in FY23-24 achieving the PRC of Manoharpur coal block 

as per schedule.

 e) Accident History during last three years

Sl no Par�culars -   2023-2024 

a. Fatal Accident 0

b. Non-Fatal Accident 0

c. Near Miss Inci dents 6

d. First Aid Cases 0

e. Fire Accidents 0

f. Risk Assessment & Analysis mee�ngs 4

   

   

   

   

   

  

2021 2022

0

0

4

0

0

4

 

 

 

 

 

 

2022-2023

0

0

2

1

0

4

 

 

 

 

 

  

 f) OHS Plans  

  1. OHS Policy-A wri�en statement showing employees commitment to occupa�onal 

health and safety, authorized by the Top Management.

  2. Apex Safety Manual-Detailed Descrip�on of Safety, Health & Environment 

management system,  standards and documenta�on procedures.

  3. Safety Standard-Applica�on of Safety policies across the company.

  4. HIRA-Iden�fica�on of Hazards and Risk Assessment in the form of SMP

  5. Safety Plan-Implementa�on of SMP and its ac�on plan.

  6. Site Specific HSE Documents-Documenta�on of HSE policies, plans in different 

sites.

  7. Measurement & Evalua�on-Feedback/Sugges�ons/Review for improvement 

a�er implementa�on of policies and plans.

 g) Hazardous Chemical/ Substances Handling

Magazine License & 
Tripar�te agreement

between OCPL,
MO & Manufacturer

Transporta�on
of Explosive

from Manufacturer

Storage of
Explosive in
Magazine

Transporta�on of 
explosives &

accessories to 
the blas�ng patch 

Blas�ng
Opera�on

Return of explosives &
accessories to the 

Magazine

Explosive Handling
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Mud Water
collected and

se�led

Effluent Treatment Plant

Sump

Vehicle
Washing Point

Oil Waste

Tank 1 Tank 2 Tank 3 Tank 4

Fresh
Water
Tank

Secondary
Tank Primary

Tank

Ac�vated Carbon
Pressurized
Sand Filter

Clarified/
Filter Tank

Oil 
Separator

Mechanical 
Hesitator

Air
diffuser

Solid waste
(Air filters, ba�eries,

damaged parts, metal piece etc.)

ETP Sludge

Co�on waste
& lube waste

Workshop

Effluent 
Treatment Plant

Maintenance Area

SPCB/CPCB

Handover to authorized 
agencies

for future safe disposal

Hazardous Waste Storage
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 h) Safety Promo�on Ac�vi�es 
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 i) Fire Mi�ga�on

  A systema�c Fire Preven�on and Fire Protec�on plan is in place for all types of fires in the 

Mines.

• All HEMM in mines are equipped with the AFDSS and portable fire ex�nguishers.

• 6km Fire ex�nguisher line has been laid in the mine. 

• MVWS (Medium velocity water spray) through out conveyor line.

• 47km water pipe line from Hirakud reservoir.

• Fire tender and fog canons.

• Fire detec�on and Alarm system in all substa�on and control rooms

HVWS

1. High velocity water spray system is installed at 33/6.6 
KV Main Receiving Substa�on at Mines end for fire 
protec�on of 20MVA Power transformer.

2. The automates HVWS System runs through Main 
pump and diesel engine pump which are triggered 
through Deluge valve sta�on.

FDA Fire Point

Fire Detec�on and Alarm system is installed at all substa�ons, Fire hose box and hose reels are provided at each floor of 
control room and in all office buildings at Manoharpur Mines substa�ons, control room and all office buildings.

Fire Figh�ng Arrangement Facili�es at CHP
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 j) Safety Interlocks for CHP Opera�on

 1. Automa�c opera�on of CHP through SCADA system.

  2. Pull cord switch

  3. Belt sway switch

  4. Zero speed switch

  5. Chute block switch

  6. Emergency stop push bu�on at field

  7. Thruster brake release limit switch

  8. Control supply at HT/LT panel healthy

  9. Remote selec�on at HT/LT Panels

  10. Motor Overload

  11. Concern DFDS System control panel at TH healthy

  12. Public Address and VHF sets for all TH

  13. CCTV at all TH.

  14. Numerical Relay for electrical equipment's protec�on at all substa�ons.

MVWS

1. Medium velocity water spray systems are installed through out the 6 Km conveyor line to mi�gate the any fire Hazard.

2. The automated MVWS System runs through Main pump and diesel engine pump which are triggered through Deluge valve 
sta�on.
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 k) Procedure for controlling risks

Effec�ve of Control Methods

Elimina�on

Removal of 
hazard 

altogether

Personal 
Protec�ve 
Equipment 

(PPE): 

Worn by 
exposed 

employees to 
provide a last 

line of defence 
where other 

controls prove 
ineffective or 

used together 
with other 

control 
measures. 

The protection 
offered by PPE 

relies on the 
correct 

selection, fitting, 
maintenance 

and use.

Administra�ve 
Controls: 

Reduction of 
exposure to 

hazards 
through 

procedure, 
Instructions, 
training and 

competency. 

Engineering 
Controls: 

Structural 
change to the 

working 
environment or 

work process 
that forms an 

additional 
protective 

barrier between 
the hazard and 
the employee. 

Subs�tu�on

Replace the 
hazardous 
system or 

process with 
one that 

presents a 
lower risk

 l) Equipment Safety Checks

  i.  For Dumpers/Tippers:

  1) Cabin guard extension.

  2) Limi�ng speed device.

  3) Proximity warning device.

  4) Dump body raised posi�on indicator with warning.

  5) Provision of two brakes (Service brake & Parking Brake).

  6) Exhaust/Retard Brake.

  7) Body raised posi�on mechanical locking arrangement.

  8) Ba�ery cut-off switch.

  9) Load indicator and recorder.

  10) Auto-dipping system.

  11) Fa�gue sensor device.

  12) Portable fire ex�nguisher.

  13) AFDSS - Automa�c fire detec�on and suppression system.

  14) Seat belt reminder with audio alarm.

  15)  Tail gate protec�on.

  16)  Audio visual alarm.

  17)  Rear view camera.

  18) Blind spot mirror.

  19)  Rock ejector.

  20)  Propeller sha� guard.

  21)  Fire resistant hoses

  22) Turbo Charge guard.
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  ii.  For Machines/Equipment:

1) All func�on hydraulic cut-off switch.

2) Swing motor brake & swing lock.

3) Fire resistant hydraulic hoses.

4) Turbo charge guard.

5) Seat belt.

6) Vent valve on the top of hydraulic tank.

7) Ba�ery cut-off switch outside cabin.

8) Two way communica�on system other than mobile phone.

9) Fa�gue Sensing device.

10) Rear view camera.

11) AFDSS- Automa�c fire detec�on and suppression system.

12) Strobe light.

13) Portable fire ex�nguisher.

14) Emergency stop switch.

15) FOPS/ROPS.

1. Pre-start Inspec�on Checklist of Equipment's.

2. Daily Checklist of Equipment's.

3. Weekly working and Examina�on Reports of Equipment's.

4. Fortnightly Report.

5. Monthly Fire Ex�nguisher Report.

6. Induc�on Inspec�on of Equipment's.

 m) Safety Check Records:

6. Corporate Social Responsibility for Fy-2023-24:

 In Line with the sec�on 135 of the Companies Act and CSR policy of OCPL, different Program are 

ini�ated in the project and periphery villages to improve the physical quality of life of the people 

living in the area. OCPL works in the core sectors of Rural Infrastructure, Educa�on, Community 

Health, Training, Skill development and supports to Rural sports. Out of the Seventeen (17) 

defined SDGs, OCPL works on the nine (09) SDG areas under the CSR ac�vi�es at present. The 

Projects / Ac�vi�es are decided through a par�cipatory approach with all Key Stakeholders. All 

the CSR projects have been prepared a�er necessary consulta�on of District Administra�on 

through SDPDS (Sundargarh District Peripheral Development society) to meet the requirements 

of the district. Further, the OCPL is contribu�ng to District Mineral Founda�on and also to the Red 

cross society. 

 A CSR commi�ee has been cons�tuted with three Directors as members in the Commi�ee. All the 

CSR projects are approved by the CSR Commi�ees and the Commi�ee monitors the 

implementa�on of CSR projects. 

 i. Community Infrastructure: 

  Development of community infrastructure in and around the project area, OCPL 

undertaking different ac�vi�es i.e. renova�on of pond, construc�on of bathing ghat, 
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Construc�on of boundary wall of Anganwadi Center and UP school of R&R Colony

construc�on & renova�on school building, construc�on of community centre and Kirtan 

Mandap etc. Some of major ac�vi�es ini�ated in the area of Rural Infra includes.

• Construc�on of Toilet Complex at Orphanage of Hemgir. Total 40 no of inmates will be 

benefited from the project with a budget of Rs.6,80,566/- (Excluding GST)

• Constructed two no of Kitchen room at Budajharia & Durbaga Anganwadi centres. 

Total 52 children will be benefit from the project with a budget cost of Rs.4,06,821/- 

and Rs.4,25,229/- (Excluding GST)

• Constructed the boundary wall of Anganwadi Center and UP school of Manoharpur at 

R&R colony, Sukhabandh with a budget Cost of Rs. Rs.21,02,017/- (Excluding GST) 

Total 87 students and staff will be benefited from the project.

• Centenary Higher Secondary School, Khandagiri, Bhubaneswar   has been supported 

with Rs.20,000,00 (1st Phase) for construc�on of 03 No of new class room un their 

school.

• Renova�on of Pathway and landscaping work of Tankapani Sai Mandir at 

Bhubaneswar, Odisha with a cot of Rs. 36,61,025/-

• Renova�on of internal village Road of Kathphali-Dulinga (Inside Mine) with cost of 

Rs.7,07,172/-

• Construc�on of Community Hall at Tourist place of Koulighughar with a cost 

Rs.17,06,236/-
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Construc�on of boundary wall of 
Anganwadi Center and UP school 

of R&R Colony

Tailoring Center at R&R colony, 
Sukhabandh

ii. Skill Development: 

 Under Skill Development Ini�a�ve different ac�vi�es has been ini�ated by OCPL in project 

area. Which include tailoring training, Mushroom cul�va�on, Paper plate, agarba�, 

phenyl making training.

• Eight no of local youths from the project area has been offered with training program 

on Mining Sardar for 3 years. During the training period they will be given with s�pend 

of Rs.7,000/- per month.

A�er comple�on of the training they will a�end the examina�on conducted by DGMS.

• Shree Ramakrushna Ashram, M.Rampur, Kalahandi has been supported with 

Rs.24,93,260/- towards for establishment of Food Processing and spice making Unit 

at their Campus. 

iii. Health & Sanita�on: 

 Under Health Sectors different Program has been organised.

• OCPL supported Rs. 20,000,00 to District Administra�on of Sundargarh towards Road 

Safety Program under FARAH Scheme.

• Regular Health Check-up Camps were organised at R&R Colony-I &II and Kathphali 

Village with distribu�on of free medicine for the pa�ents.

• All the inmates of Eklabaya Ashram, Hemgir supported with Nutri�onal food every 

day. The Nutri�onal food includes milk (250 ml per day/per inmates), biscuits (100 gms 

per day/per inmates), 1 Kgs of Protein Power, Sta�onary Kits for study and cosme�c 

kits, Total 32 inmates benefited from the program. For managing the said program, 

M/s Maa Parba� SHGs of R&R colony, Sukhabandh has been awarded the contract.

• Con�nuing the program on TB, OCPL adopted the Hemgir Block as Ni-Khya Mitra for 

provided with Nutri�onal Kit to all the 62 TB pa�ents on every Months. The Nutri�onal 

Kits includes 1 Kgs pf Pulses, 1.5 Kgs of Millet, 30 no of eggs, 1 Kgs of Protein Power and 

one no of Mosquito Net.
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Supply of Nutri�onal Food 
for inmates of Ekalvaya Ashram, 

Hemgir

Supply of Food Supplements 
to TB pa�ents by Minikeswari SHG

iv. Development Programs:

Construc�on of New Bus stop 
wai�ng Hall at Hemgir

Inaugura�on of Food Processing and spice making 
Unit by CEO cum Director Sri Saripu�a Mishra.

Furthermore, the Annual Report on CSR & Sustainability ac�vi�es, in compliance with Sec�on 135 

of the Companies Act, 2013, and the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 

2014, are placed as Annexure-VIII, is appended to this report, forming an integral part of it.
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7. Board and Commi�ee Mee�ngs

 Number of Board Mee�ngs Conducted During the Year under Review: 

 The Company had held Six Board mee�ngs during the financial year under review.

 Change of Nominee Directors and Chairman:

 As per the No�fica�on No. 13768 dated 25.11.2024, Energy Department, Government of Odisha, 

Shri Vishal Kumar Dev, IAS, Principal Secretary to Government, Department of Energy is 

appointed as Chairman of Board of Directors of Odisha Power Genera�on Corpora�on(OPGC) in 

place of Shri Saswat Mishra, IAS, Principal Secretary to Government, Department of Finance, Ex-

Chairman OPGC & OCPL.  

 Pursuant to the No�fica�on No. 8555 dated 06.08.2024, Shareholders Agreement dated 21st 

April, 2016, Deed of Assignment dated 30th April, 2022 and Ar�cles of Associa�on, Shri Saswat 

Mishra, IAS, (DIN-01724416),  Principal Secretary to Government, Department of Energy and 

Chairman OPGC is appointed as Chairman of the Board of Directors of Odisha Coal and Power 

Limited (OCPL) in place of Shri Vishal Kumar Dev, IAS, Principal Secretary, (DIN- 01797521) 

Department of Energy,    Ex- Chairman, OPGC & OCPL. 

 Pursuant to the No�fica�on No. 1471 dated 29.06.2024, Public Enterprise Department, 

Government of Odisha, the Board may take note of Cessa�on of   Shri Sailendra Kumar Dwivedi, 

OAS (SS) (DIN-  09523620) with effect from 30th June, 2024(AN) on a�aining age of 

superannua�on. 

 Pursuant to the No�fica�on No. 8584 dated 06.08.2024, Energy Department, Government of 

Odisha, Shri Manas Ranjan Rout, (DIN- 09355946), Director(Opera�on), OPGC and I/c Managing 

Director, OPGC to remain in addi�onal charge of Director & CEO, OCPL w.e.f. 15.08.2024 in place 

of Shri Saripu�a Mishra, (DIN- 02791739), Ex- Director & CEO of OCPL”. 

 The Board of Directors placed on record their deep apprecia�on for the valuable contribu�on 

rendered by the Directors during their incumbency as the Director of OCPL.

 As the OPGC le�er No.1441 dated 27.09.2024, Clause No. 8.1 of the Shareholders Agreement 

dated 21st April, 2106, Deed of Assignment dated 30th April, 2022 and Ar�cles of Associa�on, Mr. 

Gagan Bihari Swain, Director (Finance), OPGC as the Director of OCPL on behalf of OPGC in the 

Board of OCPL in the Board mee�ng held on 5th October, 2024.
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II. Audit Commi�ee:

 As a measure of good Corporate Governance your company has volunteered to adopt 

governance norms of the corporate administra�on and in order to provide assistance to the 

Board of Directors in fulfilling  its oversight responsibili�es, an Audit Commi�ee has been 

cons�tuted by the Board in its 19th Mee�ng held on 2nd July, 2016 to review the adequacy and 

effec�veness of internal audit and to monitor the implementa�on of internal audit 

recommenda�ons including those rela�ng to strengthening of company's control system against 

unscrupulous, unethical and fraudulent transac�ons.

 The Company had held four Audit Commi�ee mee�ngs during the financial year under review.

III. CSR Commi�ee:

 As per requirements under sec�on 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, CSR commi�ee has been 

formed with three directors. All the CSR ac�vi�es and programs during the year under review are 

approved by CSR Commi�ee. CSR Commi�ee also looks a�er the day to day monitoring of CSR 

ac�vi�es.

 The Company had held two CSR Commi�ee mee�ngs during the financial year under review.

I. Board Committees and their responsibilities:

T h e  A u d i t  C o m m i t t e e 
reviews quarter ly/annual 
fi n a n c i a l  s t a t e m e n t s , 
adequacy of internal control 
systems, internal audit reports 
and ensure independence of 
auditors.

The Corporate Social 
Responsibi l i ty  (CSR) 
Committee formulates and 
recommends  the  CSR 
policy to the Board and 
moni tors  CSR budget , 
activities and expenditure.

T h e  R i s k  M a n a g e m e n t 
Committee assists the Board in 
o v e r s e e i n g  t h e  r i s k 
management process, controls, 
risk tolerance, mitigation and 
reviewing the Company's risk 
governance.

The Human Resource (HR) 
Committee provides various 
HR recommendations to the 
Board on the Remuneration 
Pol icy,  HR Pol ic ies and 
culture.

The Company has constituted 
a n  i n t e r n a l  C o m p l a i n t 
Committee under section 4 of 
The Prevention of Sexual 
Harassment Act, 2013 for 
w o m e n  a t  w o r k p l a c e .

The  Safety,  Hea l th  and 
Sustainability Committee 
r e v i e w s  t h e  C o m p a n y ' s 
performance and oversees the 
implementation of relevant 
policies and strategies.
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IV. Vigil Mechanism:

 The Company believes in the conduct of the affairs of its cons�tuents in a fair and transparent 

manner by adop�ng the highest standards of professionalism, honesty, integrity and ethical 

behaviour. Pursuant to Sec�on 177(9) of the Act, a vigil mechanism was established for directors 

and employees to report to the management instances of unethical behaviour, actual or 

suspected, fraud or viola�on of the Company's code of conduct or ethics policy. The employee 

has an op�on to approach the Ethics Officer. Whistle Blower Policy is available on the Company's 

website at URL: h�ps://www.ocpl.org.in/pdf/OCPL_WHISTLE_BLOWER_POLICY-27-02-2023.pdf

8. HR Development & Ini�a�ves in the FY 2023-24

 I. Manpower Planning

 OCPL is ini�ated Manpower Planning for pu�ng right number & right kind of people at the right 

place, right �me, doing the right things for which they are suited for the achievement of goals of 

the organiza�on.

 Manpower Planning is a two-phased process. It analyses the current human resources as well as 

forecasts manpower and accordingly, draw employment programmes. Manpower Planning has 

got an important place in the arena of industrializa�on. Manpower Planning has to be a systems 

approach and is carried out in a set procedure. OCPL follows the procedure is as follows:

Step 1: Analysing the Current Manpower Inventory

Step 2: Making Future Manpower Forecasts

Step 3: Developing Employment Programmes

Step 4: Design Training Programmes
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II. Recruitment

 We have a robust talent acquisi�on process to hire talents from various fields. We hire talents 

with the objec�ve of raising a cadre of home grown professionals through a robust selec�on 

method. We shortlist the eligible candidates through renowned ins�tu�on of repute and finally 

the personal interview is conducted by the Corporate Selec�on Commi�ee comprising of 

nominated members of Govt. representa�ves from various Govt. organisa�ons and Energy Dept, 

Govt. of Odisha. We believe in diversity hiring and also, in the process to hire diversity talents for 

future needs which allows for more ideas and processes. The diversity talents means a broader 

range of skills among employees, as well as a diversity of experiences and perspec�ves, which 

increases the poten�al for increased produc�vity. 

 Hiring is followed with induc�on training and orienta�on program consis�ng of theore�cal input, 

on job training, management modules, informa�on about the company, its product, services and 

the job newcomers will be performing. The induc�on program helps to assimilate the new 

recruits coming from diverse backgrounds into the organiza�onal values / culture and to impart 

the required knowledge & skills to perform the job. We have ini�ated a structured induc�on & 

orienta�on program for the newcomers joining our organiza�on. 

III. Career Advancement & Opportuni�es

 A well-established talent management system comprising of Performance Management System, 

Leadership Development System, Career Development Scheme and Succession Planning Scheme 

is in place to ensure that we fulfil our promise of meaningful growth and relevant challenges for 

our employees.

 The career development of individuals is linked to diverse job exposure, loca�on exposure, 

learning input through planned interven�ons, clearance of online e-learning func�onal & cross-

func�onal modules and administra�on of assessment tools.

IV. Performance Management System

 The recent vitality of the economy has led businesses to be more agile and ready to adapt to new 

challenges and opportuni�es. However, this also means businesses need to set up an effec�ve 

performance management system to be�er managing employees' work, and gain be�er results. 

Performance management is an organiza�onal process that involves evalua�ng employee 

effec�veness to enhance workplace produc�vity. Implemen�ng a robust system for managing 

employee performance can significantly boost an organiza�on's profitability and growth.
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 OCPL has a robust Performance Management System in place and it is carried out every year in 

line with OCPL HR Policy.

V. Learning & Development

 L&D is a func�on within an organiza�on that is responsible for empowering employee's growth 

and developing their knowledge, skills, and capabili�es to drive be�er business performance. 

Keeping in view the importance of L&D func�on, OCPL employees are nominated on a phased 

manner for various technical training programs conducted by the renowned ins�tu�ons/ bodies 

to facilitate any�me/anywhere self-paced training facility where employee can schedule his/her 

learning at own ease. At OCPL, training needs are iden�fied during performance discussion and 

feedback from the immediate repor�ng supervisors to prepare training calendar. To meet the 

academic aspira�ons of employees and match them with the needs of the organiza�on, OCPL has 

a policy for Company Sponsorship and Study Leave for Higher Educa�on. Structured induc�on & 

orienta�on program has already been implemented for introducing newly joined employees to 

our organisa�on to help them to feel comfortable and confident in their new roles. It promotes a 

feeling of belongingness and loyalty to the organisa�on. Recently, various knowledge sharing 

session have conducted by OCPL Dispensary staff. Similarly, many sessions have been iden�fied 

and assigned to the internal trainers having exper�se in their own areas.

VI. Innovate, Create, Compete

 OCPL has introduced numerous ini�a�ves that seek to 

enhance the crea�vity, innova�on and spirit of healthy 

compe��on among its employees. These pla�orms give 

individuals the opportunity to enhance their personal growth, 

and at the same �me, contribute to the organiza�on. These 

ini�a�ves include the indoor and outdoor games with the 

par�cipa�on of all the employees. Also, par�cipated in the 

cricket tournament, Energy Cup 2023 at Bhubaneswar which is a unique employee engagement 

ac�vity which has witnessed an overwhelming par�cipa�on last year.  

VII. Rewards & Recogni�ons

 We recognize the importance of Rewards and Recogni�on to employees in building the 

performance culture of the organiza�on. To this end, we have created a culture of rewards and 

apprecia�on through celebra�on of various achievements and recognizing the contribu�ons 

behind each success. To encourage the cleanliness drive, we have ini�ated Swachha Sarathi and 
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safety award for the employees of OCPL and MO at site and Corporate office as well. Now, we are 

in the process to announce reward for best performance considering all the parameters i.e. 

quality, produc�vity, safety and innova�ve ideas.

VIII. Boosts Employee Engagement

 Employees are more likely to be mo�vated and engaged when they feel valued and appreciated. 

We celebrate employees' birthdays at site and Corp Office to provide employees with the 

opportunity to get to know each other and form personal �es which creates among employees an 

increased sense of community in the workplace, boost morale and increase produc�vity. Also, 

organise various events i.e. family get together, picnic, Independence day, Republic day, 

walkathon, Ganesh puja and sports etc.

IX. Skill Development

 Skill development is important as it allows us to improve a�ributes and quali�es vital to effec�ve 

workplace performance. This also help us to begin our path to personal development which 

maximizes poten�al and achieve career goals in record �me. As per the guidelines of Govt. of 

Odisha and rapid progress in the field of Skill Development under the umbrella of Skilled-in-

Odisha, we have focused and con�nued to train matriculates, ITIs' and Polytechnics from our 

project affected villages as well as from nearby villages/ block areas for long term skilling. 

Recently, we have no�fied for the applica�on of Appren�ces in the affected villages and finally, 
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offer have already been issued to 12 desired candidates which will help to enhance their skills and 

give them an opportunity to grow in their respec�ve areas. Also, we have taken ini�a�ve for hiring 

and upskilling more Appren�ces from nearby areas. 

X. Quality of Work-Life

 OCPL is commi�ed to provide the best available work life for its employees. Far removed from the 

buzz of ci�es, our townships are the epitome of serenity, natural beauty and close community 

living.

 A range of welfare and recrea�on facili�es including school, hospital, market complex, recrea�on 

centres, club, gym, pool etc. are provided in the townships to enhance the quality of life & the 

well-being of employees and their families.

XI. Employee Welfare

 An en�re gamut of benefits, from paid Childcare leave to Post-re�rement benefits to Family 

Economic Rehabilita�on are extended to employees to meet any exigency that may arise in a 

person's life.

 Providing Urban Facili�es at Projects/Sta�ons(PUPs) of OCPL has been another unique ini�a�ve 

to create be�er working & living condi�ons for employees & their families, to meet the changing 

needs & aspira�ons of young employees. From feedback of employees the concept of gents and 

ladies Clubs, wi-fi facili�es in township, recrea�on centres, guest houses and offices, facility for e-

book in the libraries of recrea�on centres has started in the mines.

XII. Medical Benefits- Insurance card

 OCPL provides full medical cover to the employee and his/her dependents. The medical cover 

consists of cost of consulta�on, hospitaliza�on, medical tests and hospitaliza�on of all dependent 

members of the family.

 OCPL owned hospital provide round the clock service to its employees posted at OCPL townships 

situated at far-off loca�ons with the support of its full �me doctors, nurses and hospital 

administra�on staff. We also have empanelled some renowned specialty and super specialty 

hospitals across the state for providing specialist treatment to our employees.  Insurance card is 

provided to all of our employees for accessing medical benefits during emergency. With the 

objec�ve of providing best medical facili�es to its employees, even at the remotest of the 

loca�ons, OCPL recently planning to roll out an ini�a�ve called "Tele Medicine". Under this 

ini�a�ve, pa�ents could consult live with specialists of reputed super-specialty hospitals through 

tele-video conferencing which will meet with resounding success. Ambulance equipped with 
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Advanced Life Support systems is available at mines to cater to medical emergencies. 100% 

preven�ve medical check-up is conducted once in a year for all of our employees. Also awareness 

programs - lectures on & camps by specialists on medical & lifestyle are planned to conduct at site 

regularly for greater awareness.

XIII. Equal Opportunity Employer

 At OCPL, we recognize the value of diverse workforce. OCPL Limited is commi�ed to provide 

equal opportuni�es in employment and crea�ng an inclusive work place and work culture in 

which all employees are treated equally with respect and dignity. Over past few years, OCPL has 

taken strides to build diversity, equity and inclusion into OCPL policies and hiring prac�ces.

XIV. Branding

 OCPL has best in class prac�ces that are though�ully designed and robustly executed. The efforts 

by OCPL to constantly re-invent and keep up with the �mes have bestowed numerous awards and 

recogni�ons that reinforce our HR philosophy and prac�ces.

 OCPL has consistently featured in the list of Odisha's Top Best Companies to Work for the past 8 

years in a row and recognized as the best mining state PSU in Odisha. OCPL has received many 

pres�gious awards from various professional ins�tu�ons and from Govt. of Odisha. Also, bagged 

gold ra�ng for Mines from Govt. of Odisha. Also, bagged 5-star ra�ng from Ministry of Coal, New 

Delhi.

XV. Seeking Feedback

 In process to receive regular feedback from employees to improve working condi�ons and 

systems in place. The purpose is to seek employee feedback on various systems. Through surveys, 

employee contribute towards improvement of various systems within organiza�on by giving their 

valuable feedback.

9. Right to Informa�on:

 The Corpora�on has implemented Right to Informa�on Act, 2005 in order to provide informa�on 

to ci�zens and to maintain accountability and transparency. The Company has designated a 

Public Informa�on Officer (PIO) and an Appellate Authority who are dealing with the 

informa�on/requests of the public in compliance with the applicable provisions of the said Act. 

The Company has received 17 Nos. of RTI Applica�ons and 1 Nos. of Appeal under Right to 

Informa�on Act, 2005.
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10. Informa�on Under The Sexual Harassment Of Women At Workplace:

 The Company has cons�tuted an internal complaint commi�ee under sec�on 4 of The Sexual 

Harassment of women at workplace (Preven�on, Prohibi�on and Redressal) Act, 2013.  During 

the year no complaint was filed before the said commi�ee. 

11. Industrial Rela�ons:

 Your company has maintained a healthy, cordial and harmonious industrial rela�ons at all the 

levels. The year under report has not registered any major concern in the industrial rela�on front 

and no man days were lost due to any industrial rela�on issues. Your Directors wish to place on 

record their sincere apprecia�on for the excellent team spirit with which the en�re team of the 

company worked at site and corporate office and made commendable contribu�on to the all-

round progress of the company.

12. Vigilance Awareness Week: 

 OCPL observed Vigilance Awareness Week from 28th October to 3rd November 2024. These 

ini�a�ves aimed to promote awareness about corrup�on, encourage ethical prac�ces, and foster 

a culture of integrity and transparency within the organiza�on.

13. Directors' Responsibility Statement:

 Your Directors, to the best of their knowledge and belief and according to the informa�on and 

explana�ons obtained by them and as required under the Sec�on 134 (5) of the Companies Act, 

2013 state that:

a) in the prepara�on of the annual accounts, the applicable accoun�ng standards have been 

followed along with proper explana�on rela�ng to material departures;

b) the Directors have selected such accoun�ng policies and applied them consistently and 

made judgments and es�mates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and 

fair view of the state of affairs of the company at the end of the financial year and the loss 

of the company for that period;

c) the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate 

accoun�ng records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the 

assets of the company and for preven�ng and detec�ng fraud and other irregulari�es;

d) the Directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going on concern basis; 

e) the Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all 

applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and opera�ng effec�vely.

14. Acknowledgement:

 The Board of Directors gratefully acknowledge and place on record their apprecia�on for the 

support, guidance and co-opera�on extended to the Company by Department of Energy, 

Department of Steel & Mines, Department of Revenue & Disaster Management , Department of 

Public Enterprise and Forest & Environment Department, etc. of the Govt. of Odisha and 

Ministries of the Govt. of India par�cularly the Ministry of Coal, Ministry of Environment & Forest 

and Climate Change and Coal Controller's Organisa�on. 
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 Your Directors also place on record their apprecia�on on the con�nued co-opera�on and support 

received from OPGC, OHPC, IPICOL, IDCO, CIL, MCL, Union Bank of India, Punjab Na�onal Bank, 

ICICI Bank, State Bank of India, AXIS Bank, Yes Bank, REC, PFC, Auditors, Advocates, Solicitors, 

business associates, shareholders and stakeholders during the year and look forward to 

con�nuance of the mutually support rela�onship in future. 

 The Board also appreciates the contribu�on of contractors, vendors and consultants/advisors in 

the implementa�on of various ac�vi�es of the Company.

 We also acknowledge the construc�ve sugges�ons received from Government of India, 

Government of Odisha, Ministry of Coal, C&AG of India, Statutory Auditors and Internal Auditors.

 Your Directors also wish to place on records their apprecia�on for the support and co-opera�on 

extended by all the members of OCPL family. 

  For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

    

Date: 03.01.2025 (Vishal Kumar Dev, IAS)

Place: Bhubaneswar CHAIRMAN

Sd/-
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ANNEXURE- I
Details of Conserva�on of energy, technology absorp�on, foreign exchange earnings and outgo

A. Conserva�on of Energy

(i) The steps taken or 
impact on 
conserva�on of 
energy

•  LED illuminaires have been provided in office buildings and 
for outdoor illumina�on. Air condi�on system provided in 
office buildings are all of BEE 5 star ra�ng. OCPL is also 
commi�ed to use energy efficient luminaires and 
appliances in all future projects.

•  All distribu�on transformers installed at site are BEE star 
rated.

•  Sizing & selec�on of electrical machines and drive units are 
being carried out in an op�mized way to reduce energy 
consump�on.

•  Office buildings & guest houses have been designed in a 
way to use maximum day -light and to reduce energy 
consump�on. 

•  Automa�c power factor correc�on panels have been 
incorporated in design for all future projects.

• Energy Audit being carried out to analyse energy 
consump�on & iden�fy inefficiencies and carry out energy 
saving solu�ons.

•  Pool vehicle system and common bus services have been 
implemented in the site office for op�mum use of vehicles 
and reduc�on of fuel consump�on.

(ii) The steps taken by the 
company for u�lising 
alterna�ve sources of 
energy

•  75 Kwp roof top solar power plant has been installed in 
33/6.6KV Main Receiving substa�on  to cater to the 
auxiliary loads.

•  10 nos 45Wp each solar light have been installed in the 
Manoharpur township premises for street illumina�on.

•  4 nos 60Wp each solar street light  & 15 nos 100Wp each 
solar street lights have been installed in the Mines 
Premises.

•  Installa�on of 2KW solar pump at Laikera High school 
under CSR ini�a�ve.

•  500KWp roof top solar PV system has been planned to the 
auxiliary load of Samanwaya Bhawan and the proposed 
street light electrifica�on project of Manoharpur 
township to Durubaga.

• Installa�on of 190nos 60Wp each solar street lights in 
periphery villages under CSR ini�a�ve has been planned.

•  Installa�on of 40KWp Roof top solar PV Plant on the top of 
all residen�al units & Manohar bhawan of Manoharpur 
township has been planned.

(iii) The capital investment 
on energy conserva�on 
equipments

Rs. 20.00 lakhs (Approx)
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B. Technology Absorp�on

(i) The efforts made 
towards technology 
absorp�on

Blast Free Surface Mining Technology has been adopted

(ii) The benefits derived 
like product 
improvement, cost 
reduc�on, product 
development or import 
subs�tu�on

Crushing is avoided and % extrac�on has improved  

(iii) in case of imported 
technology (imported 
during the last 3 years 
reckoned from the 
beginning of the 
financial year):

Nil

(iv) the expenditure 
incurred on Research 
and Development

Nil

C. Foreign exchange earnings and outgo

(i) The foreign exchange 
earned (actual inflows)

Nil

(ii) The foreign exchange 
outgo (actual ou�lows)

Nil



54

ANNEXURE- II

Form No. MGT-9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

as on the financial year ended on 31.03.2024

[Pursuant to sec�on 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12 (1) of the Companies 
(Management and Administra�on) Rules, 2014]

I.          REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:

II.         PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the company 
shall be stated:-

Sl No. Name and Descrip�on 

of main products / 

Services

NIC Code of the 

Product / Services

% to total turnover of 

the company

1 Coal Produc�on 051 97.00 

III         PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES 

Sl No Name and address 

of the Company

CIN / GLN Holding / Subsidiary 

/ Associate

% of 

Shares 

Applicable 

Sec�on

i)

ii)

iii)

iv)

v)

vi)

vii)

No

NAName, Address and Contact 

details of Registrar and Transfer 

Agent, if any

20th January 2015Registra�on Date

Name of the Company

Category / Sub - Category of the 

Company

Address of the registered office 

and contact details

Whether Listed company

Odisha Coal and Power Limited

Company limited by Shares / State 

Government Company

 Zone -A,Fourth Floor,  Fortune Tower, 

Chandrasekharpur,  Bhubaneswar, ODISHA-

751023

U10100OR2015SGC018623CIN
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IV.        SHAREHOLDING PATTERN 

            (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)
               i)            Category - wise Share Holding

A. Promoters

(1) Indian

a) Individual/HUF

b) Central Govt

c) State Govt (s) 208715500 208715500

d) Bodies Corp. 217234500 425950000 100.00 217234500 425950000 100.00 Nil

e) Banks / FIs

f) Any other

Sub-total (A) (1) :-

(2) Foreign

a) NRIs Individuals

b) Other Individuals

c) Bodies Corp.

d) Banks / FIs

e) Any other

Sub-total (A) (2) :-

Total shareholdings of Promoter
(A) = (A) (1) + (A) (2) 425950000 425950000 100 425950000 425950000 100 Nil

B. Public Shareholding

1. Ins�tu�ons

a) Mutual Funds

b) Banks / FI

c)Central Govt

d) State Govt (s)

e) Venture Capital Funds

f) Insurance Companies

g) FIIs

h) Foreign Venture Capital Funds

i) Others (specify)

Sub-total (B) (1) :-
2. Non-Ins�tu�ons
a) Bodies Corp.

i) Indian

ii) Overseas

b) Individuals

i) Individual shareholdings

holding nominal share capital 
upto 

Rs. 1  lakh

ii) Individual shareholdings

holding nominal share capital in 

excess of Rs. 1 lakh

c) Others (specify)

i) NRI

ii) Clearing Member

Sub-total (B) (2) :-

Total Public Shareholding
(B) = (B) (1) + (B) (2)

C. Shares held by Custodian for 
GDRs & ADRs (C)

Grand Total (A+B+C) 425950000 425950000 100.00 425950000 425950000 100.00 Nil

No. of Shares held at the beginning of the 

year (As on 01.04.2023)

Category of Shareholders No. of Shares held at the end of the 

year (As on 31.03.2024)

% Change 
during the 

Year

% of 

Total 
Demat Physical Total Demat Physical Total

% of 

Total 
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ii)            Shareholding of Promoters

1 Odisha Power Genera�on Corpora�on Ltd. 217234500 51.00 217234500 51.00 Nil

2 Odisha Hydro Power Corpora�on Ltd(OHPC) 

�ll29.12.22 and trasferred to Governor 

3 Governor represented by Govt. of Odisha 

from30/12/22 trasferred from OHPC 208715500 49.00 208715500 49.00 Nil

Total 425950000 100.00 425950000 100.00

% of Shares 

Pledged / 

encumbered 

to total 
shares

No. of Shares No. of Shares % of 

total 

shares of 

the 
company

% change in 

shareholding 

during the 

year

% of Shares 

Pledged / 

encumbered 

to total 
shares

Shareholding at the beginning of the 
year (As on 01.04.2023)

Shareholding at the end of the  
year (As on 31.03.2024)

Sl 
No.

Shareholder's Name

% of total 

shares of 

the 

company

iii)           Shareholding Pa�ern of top Ten Shareholders ( other than Directors, Promoters and Holders 

                of GDRs and ADRs)

a At the begining of the year as on 01.04.2022 NA

b Changes during the year

c At the end of the year as on 31.03.2023 NA

No of Shares % of total 

shares of the 

company

NA

Sl 

No.

Shareholding at the 

begining of the year (As on 

01.04.2023)

Cumula�ve Shareholding 

during the year 

(01.04.2023 - 31.03.2024)

For Each of the Top 10 Shareholders No of Shares % of total 

shares of the 

company

iv)            Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

a At the begining of the year as on 01.04.2022 NA

b Changes during the year

c At the end of the year as on 31.03.2023 NA

% of total 

shares of the 
company

No of 

Shares

% of total 

shares of the 
company

 NA

Sl 

No.

Shareholding at the 

beginning of the year 
(As on 01.04.2023)

Cumula�ve Shareholding 

during the year 
(01.04.2023 - 31.03.2024)

For Each of the Directors and KMP No of 

Shares
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V.         INDEBTEDNESS FOR THE F.Y.2023-24

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding / 
accrued but not due for payment Rs. In Lakhs

Indebtedness at the beginning of the financial year

i) Principal Amount 87,218.72 --              -   87,218.72

ii) Interest due but not paid -- --              -   --

iii) Interest accrued but not due -- --              -   --

Total (i+ii+iii) 87,218.72 --              -   87,218.72

Change in Indebtedness during the financial year --              -   

● Addi�on -- --              -   --

● Reduc�on (repayments & Prepayments) 18,867.21 --              -   18,867.21

Net Change 18,867.21 --              -   18,867.21

Indebtedness at the end of the financial year              -   

i) Principal Amount 68,351.51 --              -   68,351.51

ii) Interest due but not paid -- --              -   --

iii) Interest accrued but not due -- --              -   --

Total (i+ii+iii) 68,351.51 --              -   68,351.51

Total 
Indebtedness

Par�culars Secured Loans 
excluding deposits

Unsecured 
Loans

Deposits

VI.        REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

A. Remunera�on to Managing Director, Whole-�me Directors and / or Manager: NA

Sl No Par�culars of Remunera�on Total Amount

1 Gross Salary

(a) Salary as per provisions contained

in sec�on 17(1) of the Income-tax Act,

1961

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) - -

Income-tax Act, 1961

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under sec�on - - -

17(3) Income-tax Act, 1961

2 Stock Op�on - - -

3 Sweat Equity - - -

4 Commision

 - as % of profit - - -

 - others, specify… -
              

-
                            

-
                     

5 Others, please specify -
              

-
                            

-
                     

Total (A) -
              

-
                            

-
                     

Ceiling as per the Act
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B.         REMUNERATION TO OTHER DIRECTORS: NA

Sl No Par�culars of Remunera�on                                                          Name of Directors: Total Amount

1 Independent Directors

a) Fee for a�ending Board/Commi�ee 
mee�ngs

b) Commission

c) others, please specify

Total (1)

2 Other Non-Execu�ve Directors

a) Fee for a�ending Board/Commi�ee 

mee�ngs

b) Commission

c) others, please specify

Total (2)

Total (B) = (1+2)

Total Managerial Remunera�on (A+B)

Overall ceiling as per the Act

Sl No Par�culars of Remunera�on

Sri. Saripu�a Mishra

Chief Execu�ve 

Officer (FY.2023-24)

Sri. Ajaya Kumar 

Majhi

Company Secretary 

(FY.2023-24)

1 Gross Salary

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in Rs. 68.82 Crores Rs. 18.25 Crores

sec�on 17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 1961

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2)

Income-tax Act, 1961 - -

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under sec�on

17(3) Income-tax Act, 1961 -

                                    

-

                                   2 Stock Op�on - -

3 Sweat Equity - -

4 Commision

 - as % of profit -

                                    

-

                                   

 - others, specify… - -

5 Others, please specify - -

Total Rs. 68.82 Crores Rs. 18.25 Crores

Key Managerial Personnel

C.         REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD / MANAGER / WTD
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VII.      PENALTIES /PUNISHMENT / COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:

Penalty Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Punishment Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Compounding Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Penalty Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Punishment Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Compounding Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Penalty Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Punishment Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Compounding Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT

Sec�on of the 

Companies Act

Brief 

Descrip�on

Details of 

Penalty / 

Punishment / 
Componding 

Authority 

[RD / NCLT 

/ COURT]

Appeal 

made, if any 

(give Details)

Type

A. COMPANY

B. DIRECTORS
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Odisha Coal and Power Limited
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024

In terms of our report a�ached.   For and on behalf of the Board 
For Singh Ray Mishra & Co
Chartered Accountants
F.R.N: 318121E
   Manas Ranjan Rout   Sambit Parija 
   Director & CEO  Director
CA Jiten Kumar Mishra
Partner   R K Aich            Ajaya Kumar Majhi 
M.N: 052796   DGM (Finance)             Company Secretary
Place : Bhubaneswar
Date : 26.09.2024, UDIN : 24052T96BKDLDY2621       Date : 21.09.2024

(Rupees in Lakhs)
Par�culars                                         Note No.     As at March 31, 2024            As at March 31, 2023

ASSETS
Non-current assets
(a)  Property, Plant and Equipment 
(b)  Right-of-Use Assets
(c)  Capital work-in-progress 
(d)  Other Intangible assets  
(e)  Financial Assets 
 (i)   Loans 
 (ii)  Other financial assets 
(f)   Other non-current assets 
Total Non - Current Assets
Current assets 
(a) Inventories
(b) Financial Assets
 (i) Trade receivables
 (ii) Cash and cash equivalents
 (iii)  Bank balances other than (ii) above
 (iv)  Others
(c) Current Tax Assets (Net)
(d) Other current assets
Total Current Assets
TOTAL ASSETS 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity 
(a) Equity Share capital
(b)  Other Equity 
Total equity
LIABILITIES 
Non-current liabili�es
(a) Financial Liabili�es
        i)  Borrowings       
 ii) Other financial liability
(b) Provisions
(c) Deferred tax liabili�es (Net)
Total Non-current liabili�es
Current liabili�es
(a) Financial Liabili�es
       (i)   Borrowings      
 (ii) Trade payables
   -Total outstanding dues of micro 
  and small enterprises.
   -Total outstanding dues of creditors  
  otherthan micro and small enterprises.
 (iii) Other financial liabili�es
(b) Provisions
(c) Other current liabili�es
(d) Current Tax liabili�es (Net)
Total Current liabili�es

5
6
7
8

9
10
11

12

13
14

15
16
17

92,012.51
69,621.10

3,437.37                               
29,799.38                                     

268.12
 6,683.55
1,421.38

2,03,243.42

2,353.59

16,393.81
8,721.10

13,946.11
1,702.86
1,987.05

12,031.32
57,135.85

2,60,379.26

75,533.75                               
70,674.15

  19,249.21
15,938.27

240.19
 29,935.39

 2,211.64
2,13,782.60 

 1,179.31

10,731.42
5,166.74

18,112.44
3,000.47

-
11,103.51
49,293.90

2,63,076.50

42,595.00
99,858.95

1,42,453.95

59,845.03
1,004.22

14,604.86
6,940.80

82,394.91

8,506.48

-

5,053.44

8,856.55
1,653.94

11,459.99
-

35,530.40
2,60,379.26

18
19

20
21
22
23

24

25

26
27
28
16

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Notes forming part of the financial statements 1-42

 42,595.00
80,595.63

1,23,190.63

69,245.52
1.98

985.51
4,606.41

74,839.42

17,973.20

-

6,716.31

24,369.04
103.02

15,252.84
632.04

65,046.45
2,63,076.50

1

2

1

2

Sd/-

Sd/-

Sd/-

Sd/-

Sd/-

ANNEXURE- III
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Odisha Coal and Power Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2024

In terms of our report a�ached.   For and on behalf of the Board 
For Singh Ray Mishra & Co
Chartered Accountants
F.R.N: 318121E
   Manas Ranjan Rout   Sambit Parija 
   Director & CEO  Director
CA Jiten Kumar Mishra
Partner   R K Aich            Ajaya Kumar Majhi 
M.N: 052796   DGM (Finance)             Company Secretary
Place : Bhubaneswar
Date : 26.09.2024, UDIN : 24052T96BKDLDY2621       Date : 21.09.2024

(Rupees in Lakhs)
Par�culars                                                 Note No.    Year ended March 31, 2024    Year ended March 31, 2023

Revenue from Opera�ons 

Other Income

Total Income (I + II)

Expenses

(a)  Cost of mine opera�on/excava�on

(b)  Change in inventories of finished goods/ work in 

progress and stock in trade

(c)  Coal transporta�on charges

(d)  Employee Benefit expense

(e)  Finance costs

(f)  Deprecia�on and amor�za�on expense

(g)  Other expenses

Total expenses (IV)

Profit or (Loss) before tax (III - IV)

Tax Expense: 

 (a) Current tax

 (b) Deferred tax

 (c) Taxes of earlier years

Total tax expense

Profit/(loss) for the Period (V -VI)

Other Comprehensive Income / (Losses) 

(A)  (i)  Items that will not be reclassified to profit 

and loss 

       (ii)  Income tax rela�ng to items that will not be 

reclassified to profit and loss  

(B)   (i)  Items that will be reclassified to profit and 

loss         

 (ii) Income tax rela�ng to items that will be 

reclassified to profit and loss

Total Comprehensive Income / (Losses) for the 

period

Total Comprehensive Income / (Losses) for the 

period (VII+VIII) 

(Comprising Loss and Other Comprehensive Income 

for the period) 

Earnings per equity share:- Basic and diluted (Rs)

XI         Notes forming part of the financial statement 1-42

29

30

31

32

33

34

35

36

23

39

                  1,18,925.79

2,969.31

1,21,895.10

71,948.56

(1,174.28)

-                          

1,410.89

7,393.29

6,935.58

7,793.89

94,307.93

27,587.18

6,022.31

2,334.38                            

(32.84)

8,323.85

19,263.33

- 

                                      

-

              

-

   

 - 

                                     

 -

19,263.33                                

4.52 

1,84,864.41

4,417.53

1,89,281.94

58,613.88

1,356.15

18.82

1,276.98

8,479.49

6,119.28

4,661.54

80,526.13

1,08,755.80

26,288.94

2,077.71

(34.01)

28,332.64

80,423.17

-

-

-

-

-

80,423.17

                                

18.88 

I

II

III

IV

V

VI

 

VII

VIII

IX

X

Sd/-

Sd/-

Sd/-

Sd/-

Sd/-
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Odisha Coal and Power Limited
Statement of Cash Flow for the year ended March 31, 2024

In terms of our report a�ached.   For and on behalf of the Board 
For Singh Ray Mishra & Co
Chartered Accountants
F.R.N: 318121E
   Manas Ranjan Rout   Sambit Parija 
   Director & CEO  Director
CA Jiten Kumar Mishra
Partner   R K Aich            Ajaya Kumar Majhi 
M.N: 052796   DGM (Finance)             Company Secretary
Place : Bhubaneswar
Date : 26.09.2024, UDIN : 24052T96BKDLDY2621       Date : 21.09.2024

(Rupees in Lakhs)
Par�culars                                                                      Year ended March 31, 2024    Year ended March 31, 2023

Cash flows from opera�ng ac�vi�es:
 Profit/(Loss) before taxes
 Adjustments for: 
 Deprecia�on and amor�sa�on of non-current assets
 Interest or finance cost
 Opera�ng profit before Current/Non current assets and 
 liabili�es
 Adjustment for:
 Movements in working capital: 
 Inventory 
 Trade receivable 
 (Increase)/ decrease in loans and other financial assets   
 (Increase)/decrease in other assets
 Increase/ (decrease) in other payables & provisions
 Increase/ (decrease) in other financial liabili�es
 Cash generated from opera�ons
 Taxes Paid
 Net cash flow from opera�ng ac�vi�es
Cash flows from inves�ng ac�vi�es:
 Payments for purchase of fixed assets
 Payments to acquire financial assets
 Advance against acquisa�on of land
 Investments 
 Bank balance other than cash & cash equivalent 
 (Term deposits) 
 Net cash used in Inves�ng Ac�vi�es
Cash flows from financing ac�vi�es:
 Proceeds from issue of shares 
 Other finance by related par�es
 Proceeds from long term borrowings from banks
 Repayment of loans to Banks incl. Interest
 Dividend paid for the year 
Net cash flow from financing ac�vi�es
Net Increase/(decrease) in cash or cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Notes forming part of the financial statement Note No. 1-42

27,587.18

   6,935.58
7,393.29

41,916.05

(1,174.28)
(5,662.39)

1,297.61
(846.27)

11,377.42
(16,173.12)

30,735.02
(8,608.55)
22,126.47

(20,410.56)
(27.93)
708.72

23,251.84
4,166.33

7,688.39

-
-
-

(26,260.50)
-

(26,260.50)
3,554.36
5,166.74
8,721.10

1,08,755.80

6,119.28
8,479.49

1,23,354.57

1,356.15
(2,824.44)
(2,933.71)

6,346.46
(1,192.27)

4.43
1,24,111.19
(27,014.90)

97,096.29

(14,663.45)
(1.47)

(420.69)
(28,252.61)
(16,944.92)

(60,283.13)
            

 -
-
-

(39,768.20)
(14,375.53)
(54,143.73)
(17,330.57)

22,497.31
5,166.74

(i) Figures in brackets represents cash ou�lows/incomes as the case may be.
(ii) Reconcilia�on of cash and cash equivalent: Refer note-14 "cash and cash equivalent".
(iii) Reconcilia�on between the opening and closing balances of liabili�es arising from financing ac�vity.

Par�culars

Opening balance as at 1st April, 2023

Net cashflows during the year

Non cash changes due to:

-Interest on borrowings compounded during moratorium   

-Transac�on cost on borrowings

Closing balance as at 31st March, 2024

*Borrowings                                

87,218.72                               

(18,867.21)

                                               -                                               
-                                

68,351.51 

*Includes current maturi�es of non-current borrowing, refer note-24.

Sd/-

Sd/-

Sd/-

Sd/-

Sd/-
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Odisha Coal and Power Limited
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2024

A. Equity Share Capital                         (Rupees in Lakhs) 

Balance as at April 1, 2022
Changes in equity share 
capital during the year

Balance as at 
March 31, 2023

                                                   42,595.00                                                    42,595.00 

                           (Rupees in Lakhs) 

Balance as at April 1, 2023
Changes in equity share 
capital during the year

Balance as at 
March 31, 2024

                                                   42,595.00                                                    42,595.00 

B. Other Equity              (Rupees in Lakhs) 

In terms of our report a�ached.   For and on behalf of the Board 
For Singh Ray Mishra & Co
Chartered Accountants
F.R.N: 318121E
   Manas Ranjan Rout   Sambit Parija 
   Director & CEO  Director
CA Jiten Kumar Mishra
Partner   R K Aich            Ajaya Kumar Majhi 
M.N: 052796   DGM (Finance)             Company Secretary
Place : Bhubaneswar
Date : 26.09.2024, UDIN : 24052T96BKDLDY2621       Date : 21.09.2024

Note forming part of the financial statement                                  Note No. 1-42

Reserves and Surplus

General Reserve Retained Earnings

Balance as at April 1, 2022

Profit for the financial year 2022-23 as restated

Other Comphrehensive Income/ (Losses)

Dividend Paid for the financial year 2021-22

Interim Dividend Paid for the financial year 2022-23

Total Comprehensive Income/ (Losses)

Transfer of profits of the year to General Reserve

Balance as at March 31, 2023

Profit for the year

Other Comphrehensive Income/ (Losses)

Total Comprehensive Income/ (Losses)

Transfer of profits of the year to General Reserve

Balance as at March 31, 2024

                          14,547.99

80,423.17

-

(4,375.53)

(10,000.00)

66,047.64

-

80,595.63

19,263.33

-

19,263.33

-

99,858.95

                          – 

– 

–

–

–

Sd/-

Sd/-

Sd/-

Sd/-

Sd/-
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Notes forming part of the financial statements 

1.  Company Informa�on

 The Odisha Coal and Power Limited (“OCPL” / “the Company”) incorporated on January 20, 2015 

with its registered office at Zone-A, Fourth floor, Fortune tower, Bhubaneswar, Odisha, India. 

Subsequently Odisha Power Genera�on Corpora�on Ltd (OPGC) and Odisha Hydro Power 

Company Ltd (OHPC) holds 51% and 49% of share capital of the Company respec�vely pursuant 

to the Government of Odisha No�fica�on No. 1088 dated 4th February, 2015 and No. 1160 dated 

6th February, 2015. The Company filed applica�on for allotment of Manoharpur and Dip-side 

Manoharpur Coal Block under the provisions of The Coal Mines (Special Provisions) Second 

Ordinance, 2014 and is declared as the successful allo�ee of the said coal blocks on 24th March, 

2015. Manoharpur coal block is an explored coal block with a total reserve of 181MT and Dip-side 

Manoharpur coal block is a regionally explored block with a total reserve of 350 MT. On 30th 

March 2015 to be precise, it signed the Allotment Agreement with the Nominated Authority, 

Ministry of Coal (MoC), Government of India. Allotment Order of Manoharpur & Dip-side 

Manoharpur coal blocks is issued on 31st Aug 2015 to OCPL by the Nominated Authority for 

supply of coal exclusively for OPGC expansion Power Project (Unit 3, 4, 5, & 6), 4 units of 660 MW 

each at Ib-Thermal Power Sta�on, Banaharpali, Jharsuguda, Odisha. OCPL is opera�ng primarily 

in mining and supply of coal. Now, pursuant to execu�on of Share Purchase Agreement (SPA) on 

dated 26-12-2022 and transfer of purchase considera�on to OHPC by Govt. of Odisha on 30-12-

2022, the Governor of Odisha represented by Govt. of Odisha becomes the Shareholder with 

49% of Equity (20,87,15,500 nos. of Equity share @ a face value of Rs.10/- each). The present 

shareholding pa�ern of the company is 51:49 held by OPGC and Govt. of Odisha respec�vely.

 The financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 were approved by the Board of 

Directors and authorised for issue on 21st September, 2024.

2.  Statement of Compliance

 The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accoun�ng Standards 

(referred to as “Ind AS”) prescribed under Sec�on 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with 

Companies (Indian Accoun�ng Standards) Rules, as amended from �me to �me and other 

relevant provisions of the Act. 

3.  Material Accoun�ng Policies

 The material accoun�ng policies applied by the Company in prepara�on of its financial 

statements are listed below. Such accoun�ng policies have been applied consistently to all the 

periods presented in these financial statements, unless otherwise indicated.

 3.01.  Basis of prepara�on

  The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost conven�on with 

the excep�on of certain assets and liabili�es that are required to be measured at fair 

values by Ind AS. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to 

transfer a liability in an orderly transac�on between market par�cipants at the 

measurement date.
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  Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the considera�on given in exchange 

for goods and services.

  All assets and liabili�es have been classified as current or non-current as per Company's 

opera�ng cycle and other criteria set out in Schedule-III of the Companies Act 2013. 

Based on the nature of business, the Company has ascertained its opera�ng cycle as 12 

months for the purpose of Current or noncurrent classifica�on of assets and liabili�es.

 3.02.  Recent pronouncements:

  Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) no�fies new standard or amendments to the 

exis�ng standards under Companies (Indian Accoun�ng Standards) Rules as issued from 

�me to �me. For the year ended March 31, 2024, MCA has not no�fied any new standards 

or amendments to the exis�ng standards applicable to the company. 

 3.03.  Use of es�mates and cri�cal accoun�ng judgments.

  In prepara�on of financial statements, the company makes judgments, es�mates and 

assump�ons that may impact the applica�on of accoun�ng policies and the reported 

value of assets, liabili�es, income, expenses and related disclosures concerning the items 

involved as well as con�ngent assets and liabili�es at the balance sheet date. The 

es�mates and management's judgements are based on previous experience and other 

factors considered reasonable and prudent in the circumstances. They are formulated 

when the carrying amount of assets and liabili�es is not easily determined from other 

sources. Actual results may differ from these es�mates.

  The es�mates and underlying assump�ons are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions 

to accoun�ng es�mates are recognized in the period in which the es�mates are revised 

and any future periods affected.  Significant judgements  and es�mates rela�ng to the 

carrying amount of assets and liabili�es, while evalua�ng/assessing useful lives of 

property, plant and equipment, impairment of property, plant and equipment, 

impairment of investments, provision for employee benefits and other provisions, 

recoverability of deferred tax assets, commitments and con�ngencies.

 3.04  Cash Flow Statement

  Cash flow is reported using the indirect method, where by profit / (loss) before extra-

ordinary items and tax is adjusted for the effect of transac�ons of non-cash nature and 

any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. 

 3.05.  Property, Plant and Equipment

 i)  Ini�al recogni�on and measurement

  Property, plant and equipment held for use in the produc�on or/ and supply of goods or 

services, or for administra�ve purposes, are ini�ally recognized at cost. Such cost 

comprises purchase price (net of recoverable taxes, trade discount and rebate etc.), 

borrowing cost, and any cost directly a�ributable to bringing the assets to its loca�on and 

working condi�on for intended use. 

  Subsequent measurement is done at cost, less any  accumulated deprecia�on and 

impairment loss, if any.
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  Expenditure incurred on development of freehold land and leasehold land are capitalized 

as part of the cost of the land. Deposits, payments / liabili�es made provisionally towards 

compensa�on, rehabilita�on and other expenses relatable to land in possession are 

treated as cost of land.

  In case of self-constructed assets, cost includes the costs of all materials used in 

construc�on, direct labour, alloca�on of overheads, borrowing costs if any a�ributable to 

such construc�on. 

  Deposit works/cost plus contracts are accounted for on the basis of statements of 

account received from the contractors.

  Unse�led liabili�es for price varia�on/exchange rate varia�on in case of contracts are 

accounted for on es�mated basis as per terms of the contracts.

  In the case of assets put to use, where final se�lement of bills with contractors is yet to be 

effected, capitaliza�on is done on provisional basis subject to necessary adjustment in 

the year of final se�lement.

 ii)  Subsequent Cost

  Subsequent expenditure is recognized in the carrying amount of the asset when it is 

probable that future economic benefits deriving from the cost incurred will flow to the 

enterprise and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

  The cost of replacing major part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognized 

in the carrying amount of the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits 

embodied within the part will flow to the Company and its cost can be measured reliably. 

The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognized regardless of whether the 

replaced part has been depreciated separately. If it is not prac�cable to determine the 

carrying amount of the replaced part, the Company uses the cost of the replacement as 

an indica�on of what the cost of replaced part was at the �me it was acquired or 

constructed. The costs of the day-to-day servicing of property, plant and equipment are 

recognized in the statement of profit and loss as and when incurred.

 iii)  De-recogni�on of assets

  An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no 

future economic benefits are expected to arise from the use of the asset. Any gain or loss 

arising on the disposal/de-recogni�on is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

 3.06. Deprecia�on & Amor�za�on 

  Deprecia�on is recognized in statement of  profit and Loss  on a straight line basis over the 

useful lives of the assets as prescribed under  Schedule II of the Companies Act 2013 or as 

ascertained based on internal assessment and independent technical evalua�on that the 

useful lives as best represent the period over which Company expects to use these assets.

Par�culars  Useful lives  

Building  30  to 60  years  

Furniture & Fixtures and Electrical Equipment’s  10 years  
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Office and Other Equipment’s  3 to 5 years  

Vehicles  8 years  

Computers & EDP  3 years  

Tools and Tackles  5 years  

Coal Handling Plant  25 years  

Weighbridge & Weighbridge instruments  6 to 9 years  

Dust Sampler  10 years  

Elevators  20 years  

Road  3 to 10 years  

  ree hold Land is not depreciated. Premium paid on leasehold land including land 

development and rehabilita�on expense are amor�zed over the lease period.

  Capital expenditure on assets laid /constructed on land not owned by the company as 

men�oned above is amor�zed over a period of its useful life or permi�ed period 

whichever is lower.  

  Deprecia�on on assets are provided over es�mated useful life as ascertained based on 

internal assessment and independent technical evalua�on that the useful lives as best 

represent the period over which Company expects to use these assets. Hence, the useful 

lives for these assets are different from the useful life as prescribed under Schedule II of 

the Companies Act 2013.

  The es�mated useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each year end, with the 

effect of any changes in es�mate, accounted for on a prospec�ve basis. Each component 

of an item of property, plant and equipment with a cost that is significant in rela�on to the 

total cost of that item is depreciated separately if its useful life differs from the others 

components of the asset.

  Property, plant and equipment including tools and tackles cos�ng up to ₹,5,000/-  are 

fully depreciated in the year in which it is  for put to use.

  Physical verifica�on of fixed assets are undertaken by the Company in a phased manner 

over a period of three years and the discrepancies no�ced, if any, are accounted for in the 

year in which such differences are found.

 3.07  Capital work-in-progress 

  Cost incurred for property, plant and equipment that are not ready for their intended use 

as on the repor�ng date, is classified under capital work- in-progress. 

  The cost of self-constructed assets includes the cost of materials & direct labour, any 

other costs directly a�ributable to bringing the assets to the loca�on and condi�on 

necessary for it to be capable of opera�ng in the manner intended by management and 

the borrowing costs a�ributable to the acquisi�on or construc�on of qualifying asset. 

  Expenses directly a�ributable to construc�on of property, plant and equipment incurred 

�ll they are ready for their intended use are iden�fied and allocated on a systema�c basis 

on the cost of related assets. 
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  Deposit works/cost plus contracts are accounted for on the basis of statements of 

account or u�liza�on cer�ficate received from the contractors or from state or local 

authori�es. 

  Unse�led liabili�es for price varia�on/exchange rate varia�on in case of contracts are 

accounted for on es�mated basis as per terms of the contracts.

 3.08  Intangible assets and intangible assets under development

 i) Ini�al recogni�on and measurement

  An intangible asset is recognized if and only if it is probable that the expected future 

economic benefits that are a�ributable to the asset will flow to the Company and the cost 

of the asset can be measured reliably.

   Intangible assets that are acquired by the Company, which have finite useful lives, are 

recognized at cost. Subsequent measurement is done at cost less accumulated 

amor�za�on and accumulated impairment losses. Cost comprises purchase price 

including import du�es, non -refundable taxes a�er deduc�ng trade discounts and 

rebates and any directly a�ributable expenses of preparing the asset for its intended use.

   Expenditure on development ac�vi�es is capitalized only if the expenditure can be 

measured reliably, the product or process is technically and commercially feasible, future 

economic benefits are probable and the Company intends to & has sufficient resources to 

complete development and to use or sell the asset. Expenditure incurred which are 

eligible for capitaliza�ons under intangible assets are carried as intangible assets under 

development �ll they are ready for their intended use.

 ii)  In case 'Forest Land' is diverted otherwise than leasehold basis (i.e no lease deed is 

envisaged to be executed), en�re considera�on paid/payable is to be capitalized as “Right 

to Use-Land” under “Intangible Assets”. The same shall be amor�zed over the period of 

legal right to use or life of the coal mine, whichever is less. Amor�za�on shall commence 

when the forest land is available for use. 

  In case, the lease agreement is signed subsequent to the classifica�on of land as 'Right to 

use', Land shall be reclassified as “Leasehold Land” and corresponding balances on the 

date of execu�on of lease agreement shall be transferred from Right to Use-Land to 

Leasehold Land and shall be dealt as per IND AS 17. The unamor�zed balance of leasehold 

land shall be amor�zed over the Mining lease period or the life of mines, whichever is 

lower.

 iii)  Subsequent costs 

  Subsequent expenditure is recognized as an increase in the carrying amount of the asset 

when it is probable that future economic benefits deriving from the cost incurred will flow 

to the enterprise and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

 iv)  De-recogni�on 

  An intangible asset is derecognized when no future economic benefits are expected from 

their use or upon their disposal. Gain or loss on de-recogni�on of an intangible asset is 

determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying 

amount of intangible assets and are recognized in the statement of profit and loss.



70

 v)  Amor�za�on 

  a) Cost of  Computer so�ware and license  recognized as intangible asset, is 

amor�zed on straight-line method over a period of legal right to use or 3 years, 

whichever is less. 

  b) Mining Rights and Expenses on Explora�on for evalua�on of mineral resources 

are amor�zed over the period of availability of reserves or over a period of 

remaining life from the date of execu�on of Mining lease whichever is earlier.

  c) Other intangible assets are amor�zed on straight-line method over the period of 

legal right to use or life of the related plant, whichever is less. 

  d) The amor�za�on period and the amor�za�on method of intangible assets with a 

finite useful life is reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospec�vely, 

wherever required.

 vi) Explora�on for and evalua�on  mineral resources

  Explora�on and evalua�on assets comprise capitalized costs which is generally the 

expenditure incurred associated with finding the mineral by carrying out topographical, 

geological, geochemical and geophysical studies, exploratory drilling, trenching, 

sampling, expenditure for ac�vi�es in rela�on to evalua�on of technical feasibility and 

commercial viability, acquisi�on of rights to explore etc.

   Explora�on and evalua�on expenditure incurred a�er obtaining the mining right or the 

legal right to explore are capitalized as explora�on and evalua�on assets under 

'Intangible assets under development' in line with Ind As 106 and stated at cost less 

impairment if any. Explora�on and evalua�on assets are assessed for impairment 

indicators at least annually. 

 vii) Development expenditure on coal mines

  Expenditure incurred for mines development prior to commercial produc�on i.e. primary 

development expenditure other than land, buildings, plant and equipment is capitalised 

un�l the mining property is capable of commercial produc�on.

  Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only where it either enhances the economic 

benefits of the development/ producing asset or replaces part of the exis�ng 

development/ producing asset. Any remaining costs associated with the part replaced 

are expensed. 

  The development expenditure capitalized is net of sale value of coal extracted during 

development phase including other pre-opera�ve income.

  Gains and losses on de-recogni�on of assets referred above, are determined as the 

difference between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount of 

respec�ve assets and are recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

 viii) Mines closure, site restora�on and decommissioning obliga�ons

  The Company's obliga�ons for land reclama�on and decommissioning of structure 

consist of spending at mines in accordance with the guidelines from Ministry of Coal, 

Government of India. The Company es�mates its obliga�ons for mine closure, site 
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restora�on and decommissioning based on the detailed calcula�on & technical 

assessment of the amount and �ming of future cash spending for the required work and 

provided for as per approved mine closure plan. The es�mate of expenses is escalated for 

infla�on and then discounted at a discount rate that reflect current market assessment of 

the �me value of money and risk, such that the amount of provision reflects the present 

value of expenditure required to se�le the obliga�on. The Company records a 

corresponding asset as Intangible asset associated with the obliga�on.

  The value of the obliga�on is progressively increased over �me as the effect of 

discoun�ng unwinds and the same is recognized as finance costs.

  Further, a specific escrow fund account is maintained for this purpose as per the 

approved mine closure plan. The progressive mine closure expenses incurred on year to 

year basis forming part of the total mine closure obliga�on is ini�ally recognised as 

receivable from escrow account and therea�er adjusted with the obliga�on in the year in 

which the amount is withdrawn a�er the concurrence of the cer�fying agency.

 3.09  Commercial Opera�on

  The project/mines are brought to revenue; when commercial readiness of a project/mine 

to yield produc�on on a sustainable basis is established either on the basis of condi�ons 

specifically stated in the project report or on the basis of the following criteria:

   a) From beginning of the financial year immediately a�er the year in which the 

project achieves physical output of 25% of rated capacity as per approved project 

report, or

  b) 2 years of touching of coal, or

  c) Beginning of the financial year immediately a�er the year in which the value of 

produc�on is more than total expenditure.

  Whichever event occurs first.

  On being brought to revenue the assets under Capital Work In Progress are capitalized 

under the head (I) Property plant and equipment and (ii)  intangible asset to the extent 

such assets are substan�ally completed .The remaining assets , both tangible and 

intangible con�nue to remain in Capital Work In Progress un�l such �me they reach 

substan�al comple�ons for its intended use.

 3.10   Impairment of non-financial assets

  The carrying amounts of the Company's non-financial assets are reviewed at each 

repor�ng date to determine whether there is any indica�on of impairment considering 

the provisions of Ind AS 36 - 'Impairment of Assets'. If any such indica�on exists, then the 

asset's recoverable amount is es�mated.

   The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-genera�ng unit is the higher of its fair value 

less costs to disposal and its value in use. In assessing value in use, the es�mated future 

cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects 

current market assessments of the �me value of money and the risks specific to the asset. 

For the purpose of impairment tes�ng, assets that cannot be tested individually are 
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grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows from 

con�nuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or groups 

of assets (the 'cash-genera�ng unit', or “CGU”). 

  An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or its CGU exceeds its 

es�mated recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognized in the statement of 

profit and loss. Impairment losses recognized in respect of CGUs are reduced from the 

carrying amounts of the assets of the CGU. 

  Impairment losses recognized in prior periods are assessed at each repor�ng date for any 

indica�ons that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed 

if there has been a change in the es�mates used to determine the recoverable amount. 

An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does 

not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of accumulated 

deprecia�on or amor�za�on, if no impairment loss had been recognized.

 3.11.  Foreign currencies Transac�ons

  The financial statements of the Company are presented in Indian rupees (“INR”), which is 

the func�onal currency of the Company and the presenta�on currency for the financial 

statements. 

  Transac�ons in foreign currencies are ini�ally recorded in repor�ng currency i.e. Indian 

Rupees, using the exchange rates prevailing on the dates of the transac�ons. Monetary 

assets and liabili�es denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates of 

exchange prevailing at the end of the repor�ng period. Non-monetary items are 

measured at historical cost.

  Exchange differences arising on monetary items are recognized in the statement of profit 

and loss in the period in which they arise.

 3.12. Employee Benefits

  Employee benefits, inter-alia includes short term employee benefits, provident fund, 

gratuity, compensated absences and other terminal benefits.

  In terms of arrangements with OPGC, the company has to make payment for liability 

towards gratuity, leave benefits (including compensated absences) and other terminal 

benefit etc. for the period of service rendered by the employees posted on secondment 

basis from OPGC to OCPL and as per the valua�on done by actuary of OPGC.

 3.13. Provisions and Con�ngent Liabili�es and Con�ngent Assets

  Provisions:

  Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obliga�on (legal or 

construc�ve) as a result of a past event which is expected to result in an ou�low of 

resources embodying economic benefits which can be reliably es�mated. 

  The amount recognized as a provision is the best es�mate of the expenditure required to 

se�le the present obliga�on at the balance sheet date, taking into account the risks and 

uncertain�es surrounding the obliga�on. When appropriate, provisions are measured on 

a discounted basis. The discount rate used is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market 
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assessments of the �me value of money in that jurisdic�on and the risks specific to that 

liability.  All provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect 

the current best es�mates.

  Con�ngent Liabili�es and Assets:

  Con�ngent liabili�es are possible obliga�ons that arise from past events and whose 

existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more 

future events not wholly within the control of the Company. Where it is not probable that 

an ou�low of economic benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be es�mated 

reliably, the obliga�on is disclosed as a con�ngent liability, unless the probability of 

ou�low of economic benefits is remote. Con�ngent liabili�es are disclosed on the basis 

of judgment of the management/independent experts. These are reviewed at each 

balance sheet date and are adjusted to reflect the current management es�mate. 

  Con�ngent assets are possible assets that arise from past events and whose existence will 

be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future 

events not wholly within the control of the Company. Con�ngent assets are disclosed in 

the financial statements when inflow of economic benefits is probable on the basis of 

judgment of management. These are assessed con�nually to ensure that developments 

are appropriately reflected in the financial statements.

  Con�ngent assets are not recognized in the financial statement, but are disclosed where 

an inflow of economic benefits is probable. 

 3.14.  Leases

  The Company as a lessee:

  The Company's lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for land. The Company 

assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at incep�on of a contract. A contract is, or 

contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an iden�fied asset 

for a period of �me in exchange for considera�on. To assess whether a contract conveys 

the right to control the use of an iden�fied asset, the Company assesses whether : 

  (i)  the contract involves the use of an iden�fied asset

  (ii)  the Company has substan�ally all of the economic benefits from use of the asset 

through the period of the lease and 

  (iii)  the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

  At the commencement date, a lessee shall recognise a right-of-use asset at cost and a 

lease liability at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at that date for 

all leases except for leases with a term of 12 months or less (short-term leases) and low 

value leases. For these short-term and low-value leases, the Company recognizes the 

lease payments as an opera�ng expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the 

lease.

  Subsequently, right-of-use asset is measured using cost model whereas, the lease 

liability is measured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease 

liability, reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made and 

remeasuring the carrying amount to reflect any reassessment or lease modifica�ons.
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  ROU assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over 

the period, lower of the lease term or useful life of the underlying asset. ROU assets are 

evaluated for recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that 

their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment tes�ng, 

the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-

use) is determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash 

flows that are largely independent of those from other assets. In such cases, the 

recoverable amount is determined for the Cash Genera�ng Unit (CGU) to which the asset 

belongs.

  The lease liability is ini�ally measured at amor�zed cost at the present value of the future 

lease payments. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the 

lease or, if not readily determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates of the 

company. Lease liabili�es are remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to the 

related ROU asset if the Company changes its assessment of whether it will exercise an 

extension or a termina�on op�on.

  Lease liability and ROU assets have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and 

lease payments have been classified as financing cash flows.

  The Company as a lessor:

  A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substan�ally all the risks and rewards 

incidental to ownership of an underlying asset. A lease is classified as an opera�ng lease if 

it does not transfer substan�ally all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an 

underlying asset.

   All other leases are classified as opera�ng leases.

  Opera�ng lease:

  Lease payments from opera�ng leases are recognised as income on either a straight-line 

basis unless another systema�c basis is more representa�ve of the pa�ern in which 

benefit from the use of the underlying asset is diminished.

  Finance leases:

  Assets held under a finance lease is ini�ally recognised in its balance sheet and present 

them as a receivable at an amount equal to the net investment in the lease using the 

interest rate implicit in the lease to measure the net investment in the lease.

  Subsequently, finance income is recognised over the lease term, based on a pa�ern 

reflec�ng a constant periodic rate of return on the lessor's net investment in the lease.”

  Sub-lease:

  When the Company is an intermediate lessor, it accounts for its interests in the head lease 

and the sublease separately. The sublease is classified as a finance or opera�ng lease by 

reference to the ROU asset arising from the head lease.

 3.15.  Inventory

  Inventories are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost includes cost of 

purchase, cost of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their 
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present loca�on and condi�on. Cost is determined on weighted average basis. Costs of 

purchased inventory are determined a�er deduc�ng rebates, trade discounts and other 

similar items .Net realizable value represents the es�mated selling price of inventories 

less all es�mated costs of comple�on and costs necessary to make the sale.

  Book stock of coal is considered in the accounts where the variance between book stock 

and measured stock is up to +/- 5% and in cases where the variance is beyond +/- 5% the 

measured stock is considered.

 3.16.  Trade Receivable

  Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for goods sold or services performed 

in the ordinary course of business. If the outstanding is due for payment within a period of 

12 months or less from the repor�ng date, they are classified as current assets otherwise 

as non-current assets. 

  Trade receivables are measured at their transac�on price unless it contains a significant 

financing component in accordance with Ind AS 115 (or when the en�ty applies the 

prac�cal expedient) or pricing adjustments embedded in the contract.

  Financial assets and liabili�es are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the 

contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and liabili�es are ini�ally 

measured at fair value. Transac�on cost that are directly a�ributable to the acquisi�on or 

issue of financial assets and financial liabili�es ( other than financial assets and financial 

liabili�es at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value 

measured on ini�al recogni�on of financial asset or financial liabili�es. 

 3.17  Financial Instruments

 3.17.1  Financial assets

  a)  Cash or Cash Equivalent

    The Company considers all short-term bank deposits having a maturity period of 

three months or less as cash & cash equivalent. Term deposits in Bank with a 

maturity period of more than 3 months are considered as other Bank Balance.

  b) Financial assets at amor�zed cost 

   Financial assets are subsequently measured at amor�zed costs if these financial 

assets are held within a business model whose objec�ve is to hold these assets in 

order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial 

assets give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of 

principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

  c) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

   Financial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income 

if these financial assets are held within a business model whose objec�ve is 

achieved by both collec�ng contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and 

contractual term of the financial assets give rise on specified days to cash flows 

that are solely payment of principals and the interest on principal amount 

outstanding.
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  d) Financial assets at Fair value through Profit or loss (FVTPL)

   Financial assets are measured at fair value through profit or loss unless it is 

measured at amor�zed cost or at fair value through other comprehensive item on 

ini�al recogni�on. The transac�on cost directly a�ributable to the acquisi�on of 

financial assets and liabili�es at fair value through profit or loss are immediately 

recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

  e)  Financial liabili�es and equity instruments issued by the Company

 3.17.2  Financial Liabili�es

  Trade and other payables are ini�ally measured at fair value, net of transac�on costs, and 

are subsequently measured at amor�zed cost, using the effec�ve interest rate method.

  Other financial liabili�es are measured at amor�zed cost using the effec�ve interest 

method.

 3.17.3  Equity instruments

  An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an 

en�ty a�er deduc�ng all of its liabili�es. Equity instruments issued by the Company are 

recognized at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

 3.17.4  Compound instruments

  The component parts of compound instruments (conver�ble instruments) issued by the 

Company are classified separately as financial liabili�es and equity in accordance with 

the substance of the contractual arrangement. At the date of issue, the fair value of the 

liability component is es�mated using the prevailing market interest rate for a similar 

non-conver�ble instrument. This amount is recorded as a liability on an amor�zed cost 

basis using the effec�ve interest method un�l ex�nguished upon conversion or at the 

instrument's maturity date. The equity component is determined by deduc�ng the 

amount of the liability component from the fair value of the compound instrument as a 

whole. This is recognized and included in equity, net of income tax effects, and is not 

subsequently re-measured.

 3.17.5  Financial guarantee contract liabili�es

Financial guarantee contract liabili�es are ini�ally measured at their fair values and, if not 

designated as at FVTPL, are subsequently measured at the higher of:

• the amount of the obliga�on under the contract, as determined in accordance with 

IAS 37 Provisions, Con�ngent Liabili�es and Con�ngent Assets; and

• the amount ini�ally recognized less, where appropriate, cumula�ve amor�za�on 

recognized in accordance with the revenue recogni�on policies.

 3.17.6  De-recogni�on of financial assets

  The Company derecognizes a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash 

flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substan�ally all 

the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another en�ty
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 3.17.7  Impairment of financial assets 

  At each repor�ng date, the Company assess whether the credit risk on a financial 

instrument has increased significantly since ini�al recogni�on.

  If, at the repor�ng date, the credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased 

significantly since ini�al recogni�on, the Company measures the loss allowance for that 

financial instrument at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses. If, the credit 

risk on that financial instrument has increased significantly since ini�al recogni�on, the 

Company measures the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal to 

the life�me expected credit losses.

  The amount of expected credit losses (or reversal) that is required to adjust the loss 

allowance at the repor�ng date is recognized as an impairment gain or loss in the 

statement of profit and loss.

 3.17.8  De-recogni�on of financial liability

  The Company derecognizes financial liabili�es when, and only when, the Company's 

obliga�ons are discharged, cancelled or they expire.

 3.17.9  Offse�ng financial instruments

  Financial assets and liabili�es are offset and the net amount reported in the balance 

sheet when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and 

there is an inten�on to se�le on a net basis or realize the asset and se�le the liability 

simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be con�ngent on future events 

and must be enforceable in the normal course of business.

 3.18.  Borrowing cost

  Borrowing costs consist of;

  (a)  interest expense calculated using the effec�ve interest method as described in 

Ind AS 109 – 'Financial Instruments' 

  (b)  interest expense on lease liabili�es recognized in accordance with Ind AS 116– 

'Leases' and

  (c)  exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent that 

they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs

  Borrowing costs that are directly a�ributable to the acquisi�on, construc�on/ 

explora�on/ development or erec�on of qualifying assets are capitalized as part of cost 

of such asset un�l such �me the assets are substan�ally ready for their intended use. 

Qualifying assets are assets which necessarily take substan�al period of �me to get ready 

for their intended use or sale.

  When the Company borrows funds specifically for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying 

asset, the borrowing costs incurred are capitalized. When Company borrows funds 

generally and uses them for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the capitaliza�on 

of the borrowing costs is computed based on the weighted average cost of all borrowings 

that  are outstanding during the period and used for  the acquis i�on, 

construc�on/explora�on or erec�on of the qualifying asset. However, borrowing costs 

applicable to borrowings made specifically for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying 
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asset, are excluded from this calcula�on, un�l substan�ally all the ac�vi�es necessary to 

prepare that asset for its intended use or sale are complete.

  Income earned on temporary investment made out of the borrowings pending u�liza�on 

for expenditure on the qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for 

capitaliza�on.

  Capitaliza�on of borrowing costs ceases when substan�ally all the ac�vi�es necessary to 

prepare the qualifying assets for their intended use are complete. 

  Other borrowing costs are recognized as an expense in the year in which they are 

incurred.

 3.19. Tax Expenses

  Tax expense for the year comprises current and deferred tax.  

  Current tax :

  The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from 

net profit as reported in the statement of profit and loss because it excludes items of 

income or expense that are taxable or deduc�ble in other years and it further excludes 

items that are never taxable or deduc�ble. The Company's liability for current tax is 

calculated using tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substan�vely enacted 

by the end of the repor�ng period.

  Deferred tax 

  Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amount of 

assets and liabili�es in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in 

the computa�on of taxable profit.  Deferred tax assets and liabili�es are calculated at the 

tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the asset is realized or the 

liability is se�led, based on tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substan�vely 

enacted by the end of the repor�ng period. 

  Deferred tax assets and liabili�es are offset to the extent that they relate to taxes levied by 

the same tax authority and there are legally enforceable rights to set off current tax assets 

and current tax liabili�es within that jurisdic�on.

  The carrying amount of deferred tax asset is reviewed at the end of each repor�ng period 

and adjusted to the extent it has become probable that sufficient taxable profits will be 

available to allow the asset to be recovered. 

 3.20.  Revenue recogni�on and Other income

  Revenue recogni�on policy:

  Revenue is recognized at an amount that reflects the considera�on to which a Company 

expects to be en�tled in exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer. Ind AS 

115 requires en��es to exercise judgement, taking into considera�on all of the relevant 

facts and circumstances when applying each step of the model to contracts with their 

customers. The standard also specifies the accoun�ng for the incremental costs of 

obtaining a contract and the costs directly related to fulfilling a contract.
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  Revenue from contracts with customers 

  Revenue from contracts with customers is recognized when control of the goods or 

services are transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the considera�on to 

which the Company expects to be en�tled in exchange for those goods or services. The 

Company has generally concluded that it is the principal in its revenue arrangements 

because it typically controls the goods or services before transferring them to the 

customer as in the line with requirement of  Ind AS 115.

  Dividend 

  Dividend income from investments is recognized when the right to receive the dividend is 

established. 

  Interest

   Interest income from a financial asset is recognized when it is probable that the economic 

benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably. 

Interest income is accrued on a �me propor�on basis, by reference to the principal 

outstanding and effec�ve interest rate.

  Insurance 

  Insurance claim are accounted for in the year of realiza�on. 

 3.21.  Excep�onal items

  Excep�onal items are items of income and expenses within profit or loss from ordinary 

ac�vi�es but of such size, nature or incidence whose disclosure is felt necessary for be�er 

explana�on of the performance of the Company.

 3.22.  Restatement of material error / omissions

  Prior period income/expenses and prepaid expenses of items not exceeding Rs.2.00 lakh 

in each case are charged to natural head of accounts in the current year.

  Previous year figure has been regrouped/re-arranged wherever it is necessary.

4.  Cri�cal accoun�ng judgments and key sources of es�ma�on uncertainty

 In the applica�on of the Company's accoun�ng policies, which are described in Note-2, the 

management of the Company is required to make judgments, es�mates and assump�ons about 

the carrying amounts of assets and liabili�es that are not readily apparent from other sources. 

The es�mates and associated assump�ons are based on historical experience and other factors 

that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these es�mates.

 The es�mates and underlying assump�ons are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to 

accoun�ng es�mates are recognized in the period in which the es�mate is revised. 

 Cri�cal judgments in applying accoun�ng policies:

 The following are the cri�cal judgements, apart from those involving es�ma�ons (see point ii 

below), that the management have made in the process of applying the Company's accoun�ng 

policies and that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial 

statements
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 i.  Financial assets at amor�zed cost:

  The management has reviewed the Company's financial assets at amor�zed cost in the 

light of its business model and have confirmed the Company's posi�ve inten�on and 

ability to hold these financial assets to collect contractual cash flows. 

 ii.  Key sources of es�ma�on uncertainty:

  The following are the key assump�ons concerning the future, and other key sources of 

es�ma�on of uncertainty at the end of the repor�ng period that may have a significant 

risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabili�es 

within the next financial year

  a. Impairment of investments

   The Company reviews its carrying value of investments carried at amor�zed cost 

annually, or more frequently when there is indica�on for impairment. If the 

recoverable amount is less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is 

accounted for.

  b. Provisions

   Provisions (excluding re�rement benefits and compensated absences) are not 

discounted to its present value and are determined based on best es�mate 

required to se�le the obliga�on at the balance sheet date. These are reviewed at 

each balance sheet date adjusted to reflect the current best es�mates.

  c. Con�ngent liabili�es

   Con�ngent liabili�es arising from past events the existence of which would be 

confirmed only on occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future uncertain 

events not wholly within the control of the Company or con�ngent liabili�es 

where there is a present obliga�ons but it is not probable that economic benefits 

would be required to se�le the obliga�ons are disclosed in the financial 

statements unless the possibility of any ou�low in se�lement is remote.

  d. Fair value measurements and valua�on processes:

   For financial repor�ng purposes, fair value measurements are categorized into 

Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value 

measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value 

measurement in its en�rety, which are described as follows: 

• Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in ac�ve markets for iden�cal 

assets or liabili�es that the Company can access at the measurement date;

• Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, 

that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

• Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. 
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Odisha Coal and Power Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements
5. Property, Plant & Equipment.

(i)  The term loan taken from Union Bank of India, Punjab Na�onal Bank and Rural Electrifica�on 
Corpora�on Ltd. is secured through equitable mortgage on all present, future immovable 
proper�es. For details refer Note-20.

(ii)  At the end of the repor�ng period , the Company has assessed the external and internal indicators of 
impairment and found that there is no such indica�on that any asset may be impaired and did not 
recognise any impairment charge during the year ended March 31, 2024.

                           (Rupees in Lakhs) 

Par�culars                                                                As at March 31, 2024                      As at March 31, 2023

Carrying amounts of :
Freehold Land
Buildings
Road, bridge and culverts
Furniture & Fixtures
Vehicle
Plant & Machinary (CHP)
Office and other Equipments
Power supply, Transmission line & Substa�ons
Water pipeline
Total

                110.68
28,043.04

5,503.90
1,649.60

29.80
44,723.75

1,703.52
2,438.01
7,810.20

92,012.51

                110.68           
13,135.89              

4,944.59                 
224.96                      

0.29           
46,320.10                 

384.31              
2,347.41              
8,065.51             

75,533.75

                           (Rupees in Lakhs) 

Cost 
Balance as at April 1, 2023
Addi�ons
Disposals
Balance as at March 31, 2024

Par�culars                                                                As at March 31, 2024                      As at March 31, 2023

Par�culars 
Freehold

Land
Building, 
Sheds & 
others

Road 
Bridge & 
Culverts

Furniture 
& 

Fixtures 

Vehicle  Office and 
other 

Equipments 
(including 

EDP) 

Plant & 
Machinary 

(CHP & 
others)

Power 
supply, 

Transmis-
sion line & 
Substa�ons

 Water 
Pipeline 

Total

                 
110.68

-
-

110.68

        
5,377.84

993.80
-

6,371.64

13,852.84

15,635.59

-

29,488.43

        
295.00      

1,488.18                  
-        

1,783.18

          
5.73         

30.72                
-           

36.45

                           
604.22              

1,432.14                           
-                

2,036.36

       
48,112.68             

242.47 
-      

48,355.15 

            
2,581.94                

343.37                         
-               

2,925.31

            
8,229.44                     

5.31                         
-               

8,234.75

         
79,170.36          
20,171.58                         

-            
99,341.95

                           (Rupees in Lakhs) 

Accumulated deprecia�on and 
impairment 
Balance as at April 1, 2023
Elimina�on on disposals of assets 
Deprecia�on & amor�sa�on for the 
period 
Balance as at March 31, 2024

Par�culars 
Freehold

Land
Building Road 

Bridge & 
Culverts

Furniture 
& 

Fixtures 

Vehicle  Office and 
other 

Equipments 
(including 

EDP) 

Plant & 
Machinary 

(CHP & 
others)

Power 
supply, 

Transmis-
sion line & 
Substa�ons

 Water 
Pipeline 

Total

                 
-
-
-

-

433.25
-

434.49
867.74

716.95

-

728.44

1,445.39

70.04
-

63.55
133.58

5.44
-

1.21
6.65

219.91
-

112.93
332.84

1,792.57
-

1,838.82
3,631.40

234.53
-

252.77
487.29

163.93
-

260.62
424.55

3,636.61
-

3,692.82
7,329.43

                           (Rupees in Lakhs) 

Carrying amount
Balance as at April 1, 2023 
Addi�ons
Disposals
Deprecia�on & amor�sa�on 
for the period
Balance as at March 31, 2024

Par�culars 
Freehold

Land
Building Road 

Bridge & 
Culverts

Furniture 
& 

Fixtures 

Vehicle  Office and 
other 

Equipments 
(including 

EDP) 

Plant & 
Machinary 

(CHP & 
others)

Power 
supply, 

Transmis-
sion line & 
Substa�ons

 Water 
Pipeline 

Total

                 
110.68

-
-
-

110.68 

        
4,944.59            

993.80                     
-              

434.49

5,503.90 

        
224.96      

1,488.18                  
-              

63.55

1,649.60

          
0.29         

30.72                
-             

1.21

29.80 

                 
384.31

1,432.14
-

112.93

1,703.52

       

46,320.10

242.47

-

1,838.82

44,723.75

            
2,347.41

343.37
-

252.77

2,438.01

8,065.51
5.31

-
260.62

7,810.20

75,533.75
20,171.58

-
3,692.82

92,012.51

            
13,135.89
15,635.59

-
728.44

28,043.04 
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6. Right-of-Use Assets (ROU)

Par�culars                                                                
As at March 31, 2024 

Leasehold land   CBA Govt. non 
forest land

 Others 
Total

Cost as at April 1, 2023
Addi�on:
Dele�on:
Balance as at March 31, 2024

Accumulated deprecia�on or amor�za�on
Balance as at April 1, 2023
Deprecia�on & amor�sa�on for the period
Total amor�za�on as at March 31, 2024

Carrying amount as on April 1, 2023 
Addi�ons/dele�on:
Deprecia�on/amor�za�on during the year
Carrying amount as at March 31, 2024

58,444.53
1,499.59

-
59,944.12

6,410.37
2,091.56
8,501.92

52,034.16
1,499.59
2,091.56

51,442.20

18,792.42                                 
-                                   
-                    

18,792.42 

                       
152.44                        
461.09                        
613.52

                   
18,639.99                                 

-                          
461.09                  

18,178.90 

-                                 
-                                   
-                    
- 

                       
-                        
-                        
-
                   
-                                 
-                          
-                  
-

     77,236.95
1,499.59

-
78,736.55

-
6,562.80
2,552.64
9,115.45

70,674.15
1,499.59
2,552.64

69,621.10

i)  'ROU' includes development cost on lease land and rehabilita�on & rese�lement expenses of the 
project displaced families. 

ii)  'The leasehold land  for Manoharpur coal mine has been acquired through Odisha Industrial 
development corpora�on (IDCO) as per the prescribed procedure in this regard under Land 
Acquisa�on Act 1894.'ROU-Leasehold land" includes the cost of  Govt. land and  private land on 
which physical possession has been obtained from  IDCO and amor�zed it over a period of 30 years.  
The company recognises the  registra�on cost or any other documenta�on charges in the year when 
it is incurred, upon registra�on of lease agreement with IDCO in respect of the aforesaid  land and 
amor�zed over the remaining period of useful life.

iii)  The cost of 'ROU' also includes the expenditure incurred towards rehabilita�on & rese�lement, 
registra�on cost of leasehold  land, cost of tree feiling, cost of R&R colony construc�on, present 
value of future obliga�on towards annuity payable for project displaced families and all other 
expenditures which are directly a�ributable in acquisa�on/development of the land.

iv) The MoC, GOI vide no�fica�on dated 16-07-2020 and 07-09-2020 vested all the rights of land 
measuring 1691.730 acres in favor of the company under sec-11(1) of CBA (A&D) Act 1957, which 
includes Govt. non forest land of 761.98 Acre for Dip side of Manoharpur coal block for which a 
demand from Tahasildar, Hemgir had been received for Rs.187.92 Crore on dated 01-12-2022. The 
ves�ng of above CBA land is subject to a condi�on that OCPL would make all payments in respect of 
compensa�on, interest, damages, etc. as determined under the provisions of the said Act and other 
relevant laws. Accordingly, the company recognized the demanded amount of Rs.187.92 Crore on 
provision basis w.e.f 01-12-2022 as "Right of Use Asset" which is to be amor�zed over the balance 
useful life of the project. The subsequent cost of structure, tree feilling and etc. over such land if any 
shall be recogized in the year in which the demand is received from the Govt. authori�es. 
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7. Capital work-in Progress:
Details of Capital Work In Progress are as follows:

Construc�on of Mine Township complex

132 KV Bays Extension 

Power, Supply & Ligh�ngs

Road and Bridges

Office Interior and furnishing

Consultancy & others for Dip-side Manoharpur coal block

Other Miscl. Civil Infrastructures

Total

Par�culars                                                                
As at 

March 31, 2023
Addi�on/ (Capitalised) 

during the year
As at 

March 31, 2024

15,026.17

1,819.99

1,499.57

353.40

419.46

33.72

96.89

19,249.21 

(15,026.17)

1.73

77.67

(353.40)

(419.46)

(33.32)

(58.89)

(15,811.84)

0.0

1,821.73

1,577.24

-

-

0.40

38.01

3,437.37

I)  The term loan taken from Union Bank of India, Punjab Na�onal Bank and Rural Electrifica�on 
Corpora�on Ltd. is secured through equitable mortgage on all present & future immovable 
proper�es. For details refer note-20.

 ii)  At the end of the repor�ng period , the Company has assessed the external and internal indicators of 
impairment and found that there is no such indica�on that CWIP may be impaired and did not 
recognise any impairment charge during the year ended March 31, 2024.

iii)  Addi�onal Regulatory Informa�on:

 CWIP Ageing schedule        (Amount in lakhs) 

Projects in progress

Projects temporarily suspended

CWIP

As at March 31, 2024

Amount in CWIP for a period of Total

 103.73 –  –  3,333.64

 – – – –

3,437.37

 Less than 1 Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 
    3 Years

Projects in progress

Projects temporarily suspended

CWIP

As at March 31, 2024

To be completed in Total

 3,437.37 –  –  – 

 – – – –

3,437.37

 Less than 1 Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 
    3 Years

 Details of CWIP whose comple�on is overdue is exhibited below.  (Amount in lakhs) 



84

Odisha Coal and Power Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements
8. Other Intangible assets

Carrying amounts of :
So�ware
Mining lease right
Explora�on for evalua�on of Mineral Resources
Right to use Forest land
Site restora�on/Mine closure cost
Total

Par�culars                                                                
As at 

March 31, 2024
As at 

March 31, 2023

4.95
1,377.77

11,495.85
3,674.25

13,246.55
29,799.38

4.95             
1,437.41

11,994.83
2,501.09

-
15,938.27

Cost 

Balance as at April 1, 2023

Addi�ons

Disposals

Balance as at March 31, 2024

Par�culars                                                                

105.83

-

-

105.83 

So�wares
Right to use 
Forest land

Explora�on for 
evalua�on of 

Mineral 
Resources

Site 
Restora�on 
cost/Mine 

closure

Total
Mining Lease

right

         1,789.00

-

-

1,789.00

12,743.41

-

-

12,743.41 

-       

13,263.43

-

13,263.43

17,751.10       

14,551.22

-

32,302.32

(Amount in lakhs)

Accumulated deprecia�on and 
impairment

Balance as at April 1, 2023

Elimina�on on disposals of assets

Deprecia�on & amor�sa�on for the period

Balance as at March 31, 2024

Par�culars                                                                

100.88

-

-

100.88

So�wares
Right to use 
Forest land

Explora�on for 
evalua�on of 

Mineral 
Resources

Site 
Restora�on 
cost/Mine 

closure

Total
Mining Lease

right

(Amount in lakhs)

351.59

-

59.63

411.22

611.77

-

114.63

726.40

748.59

-

498.98

1,247.56

-

-

16.88

16.88

1,812.83

-

690.11

2,502.94

Carrying amount

Balance as at April 1, 2023

Addi�ons

Disposals

Deprecia�on & amor�sa�on for the year

Balance as at March 31, 2024

Par�culars                                                                

4.95

-

-

-

4.95

So�wares
Right to use 
Forest land

Explora�on for 
evalua�on of 

Mineral 
Resources

Site 
Restora�on 
cost/Mine 

closure

Total
Mining Lease

right

(Amount in lakhs)

1,437.41

-

-

59.63

1,377.77

2,501.09

1,287.80

-

114.63

3,674.25

2,501.09

1,287.80

-

114.63

3,674.25

11,994.83

-

-

498.98

11,495.85

-

13,263.43

-

16.88

13,246.55

15,938.27

14,551.22

-

690.11

29,799.38

i)  'The right to use Forest land under intangible asset represents the amount deposited  with MOEF (and other directly a�ributable 
expenditure) towards forest diversion as approved under stage-II forest clearance to use the forest at coal bearing area. The total 
capitalized forest diversion consists of 495.35 acre out of which the company is in possession of 491.27 acre and the balance 4.08 acre 
is in subjudice at Hon'ble Highcourt of Odisha, the possession of which is yet to be obtained. 

ii)  Right to use Forest also includes an amount of Rs.440.48 lakh towards forest diversion of 5.777 Ha of forest land for construc�on of 
33KV power transmission line against which Stage-II clearance from Ministry of Environment Forest & Climate Change has been 
granted on 18-12-2023. It further includes an amount of Rs.847.30 lakh paid to GOI towards Site specific wildlife conserva�on plan for 
expansion of Manoharpur coal mines from 8MTPA to 16MTPA. 

iii)  So�ware renewal and annual maintainance charges are charged to revenue.

(Amount in lakhs)

 3,112.86

1,287.80

-

4,400.65
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9.  Loans or deposits- Non current

(Amount in lakhs)

Par�culars                                                                As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

 a)  Security Deposits 
- Secured, considered good  
- Unsecured, considered good  
- Doub�ul  
Less : Allowance for bad and doub�ul advances 

b)  Loans to related par�es 
- Secured, considered good  
- Unsecured, considered good  
- Doub�ul  
Less : Allowance for bad and doub�ul advances 

c)  Loans to employees  
- Secured, considered good  
- Unsecured, considered good  
- Doub�ul  
Less : Allowance for bad and doub�ul advances 

 
–   

268.12 
– 
 

–  
– 
– 

– 
– 
–

 
–   

240.19 
– 
 

–  
– 
– 

– 
– 
–

Total 268.12 240.19

10.  Other Financial assets- Non current 
(Amount in lakhs)

Par�culars                                                                As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

 a)  Balances with Bank  
       (i) In Deposit Account: 
       Mine Closure ESCROW  
 
b)  Balances with Bank in Deposits with maturity
     more than 12 month'- 
 (i) Un restricted balances with Banks 
             in Deposit account         
 (ii) Deposits held as Margin money 

                           

3,390.02                                        

-                              

3,293.53                           

6,683.55 Total

                           

2,239.77                                        

22,499.01                              

5,196.60                           

29,935.39 

i)  Mine Closure Escrow deposit: The balances with banks under "Mine closure escrow deposit" represents the annual 
mine closure cost deposited in Escrow account as per the approved Mine closure plan and guidelines of MoC, GoI for 
prepara�on of mine closure. 

ii)  The deposit in Escrow has been made in the form of fixed deposit for a period less than 5 years, the withdrawl from 
which is subject to the terms & condi�ons of the Escrow agreement executed between Union Bank of India (being the 
Escrow agent), OCPL, and the Coal Controller's Organisa�on, MoC. 

 iii)  Deposits held as Margin money represents cash margin maintained at various banks for more than 12 month for 
issuance of bank gurantees submi�ed to MoC and other Govt. authori�es. 
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11. Other non-current assets 

(Rupees in Lakhs) 

 Capital Advances:       
a) Advance against acquisa�ons of Land &
          Building.  
Advance to contractors  
Others
Total

Par�culars                                                                
As at 

March 31, 2024
As at 

March 31, 2023

                        

1,373.22                                      

-                                 

48.16                         

1,421.38 

                         

2,081.93                                      

-                               

129.70                          

2,211.64

I)  'Capital advance represents the payment made towards NPV and other related cost  for forest diversion of 15.701 hac of 
forest land including compensatory afforesta�on which stage-II clearance is yet to be obtained from MoEF & CC. 

ii)  Advance against acquisa�on of land and building also includes advance of Rs.1,000 lakh paid to OPTCL during FY.2021-
22 towards purchase of building at Shak� Bhawan.

iii)  The amount of advance to the extent recoverable within 12 month from the balance sheet date has been classified 
under other current Assets and recoverable for a period more than 12 months from the balance sheet date has been 
classified as Non-current.

 i) Inventories have been valued at lower of Cost or Net realizable value. 

12. Inventories (Rupees in Lakhs) 

i) Finished goods
          Stock of Coal           
 Less: Provision 
ii) Stock in transit    
 Less: Provision
Total

Par�culars                                                                
As at 

March 31, 2024
As at 

March 31, 2023

2,353.59
-
-
-

2,353.59

13. Trade receivables-Current (Rupees in Lakhs) 

Trade receivables
(a) Secured, considered good
(b) Un-secured, considered good
(c) Doub�ul
Less : Allowance for credit loss
Total

Par�culars                                                                
As at 

March 31, 2024
As at 

March 31, 2023

-                                      

16,393.81
-                        
-

 16,393.81 

-                                      

10,731.42
-                        
-

 10,731.42

I)  Trade receivables are dues in respect of  sale of coal to Mahanadi Coal Fields Limited & Odisha Power Genera�on 
Corpora�on Ltd. only. 

ii) Trade receivable are realisable within 12 months from the balance sheet date and classified as current.

iii)  No trade receivables are due from directors nor from any firm/private company in which any director is a partner, a 
director or member.

iv)  The trade receivable ageing schedule as on the repor�ng date is as follows.

1,179.31
-
-
-

1,179.31
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As at March 31, 2024

Total
Less than 
6 Months

6 Months
- 1 year

1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than
3 years

i. Undisputed Trade Received 
considered goods

ii. Undisputed Trade Receivables-
which have significant increase in 
credit risk

iii. Undisputed Trade Receivable-credit 
impaired

iv. Disputed Trade Receivables-
considered goods

v. Disputed Trade Receivables- which 
have significant increase in credit 
risk

vi. Disputed Trade Receivables-Credit 
impaired

  16,293.99 0.38 99.44 –  –  16,393.81 

  –  –  –  –  – –  

  –  –  –  –  –  – 

  –  –  –  –  –  – 

  –  –  –  –  –  – 

  –  –  –  –  –  – 

Par�culars                                                                

As at March 31, 2023

Total
Less than 
6 Months

6 Months
- 1 year

1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than
3 years

i. Undisputed Trade Received 
considered goods

ii. Undisputed Trade Receivables-
which have significant increase in 
credit risk

iii. Undisputed Trade Receivable-credit 
impaired

iv. Disputed Trade Receivables-
considered goods

v. Disputed Trade Receivables- which 
have significant increase in credit 
risk

vi. Disputed Trade Receivables-Credit 
impaired

Balances with banks
(1) Unrestricted Balance with banks 
  (i) Current Accounts 
  (ii) Deposits with original maturity upto three months

Cash and cash equivalents as per balance sheet
(1) Deposits having  maturity period of more than three months 

and upto 12 month
(2) Earmarked Balances with banks
  (i) Current Accounts- earmarked for CSR spend
  (ii) Deposit Accounts
  (iii)  In deposits held as Margin money 
Total
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents

                              
121.10

8,600.00

8,721.10
8,801.57

352.70
-

4,791.84
13,946.11
22,667.21

  10,506.07 225.35 –  –  –  10,731.42 

  –  –  –  –  – –  

  –  –  –  –  –  – 

  –  –  –  –  –  – 

  –  –  –  –  –  – 

  –  –  –  –  –  – 

14. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Par�culars                                                                As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

(Rupees in Lakhs) 

                              
141.50

5,025.24

5,166.74
15,331.01

-
1,273.01
1,508.42

18,112.44
23,279.18

I) The cash and bank balances are denominated and held in Indian rupees.

ii)  The earmarked balance in deposit account represents the fund earmarked in separate accounts in the form of short 
term deposits as per the Arbitra�on Tribunal order in the case of BGR Mining Vs. OCPL.

iii)  Deposits held as Margin money represents the cash margin maintained at Canara Bank for issuance of performance 
bank gurantee subimi�ed to Nominated Authority, MoC.
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15. Others

562.11

20.86

1,119.89

1,702.86

Par�culars                                                                As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

(Rupees in Lakhs) 

Interest accrued on loans and deposits 
Other receivables 
Receivable from Mine closure escrow deposit account
TOTAL

1,559.86

1,440.62 

-

3,000.47

i)  Interest accrued on loans and depsoits primarily relates to Term Deposits.

ii)  Receivable from Mine Closure esrow account represents the amount claimed before CCO, MoC towards progressive 
mine closure expenses made from the year 2018-19 to 2022-23. The amount is subject the acceptance by the Coal 
Controller Organisa�on, MoC.

16.  Current tax assets and liabili�es (Rupees in Lakhs) 

                              
760.62

7,350.25
 8,110.86 

Par�culars                                                                As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

Current tax assets 
Income Tax TDS/TCS receivables  
Advance Tax & Self assessment tax 
TOTAL

Current tax liabili�es 
Provision for Income Tax 
TOTAL

                          
6,123.81                                        

(1,987.05)

                             
1,636.90                           

24,195.27                           
25,832.18 

                          
26,464.21

 632.04 

17.   Other Current assets (Rupees in Lakhs) 

Par�culars                                                                As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

 Advances to employees  
Advances to contractor & suppliers  
Advance du�es  
Tax receivables (GST Input Credit)  
Others 
TOTAL

–
695.61

26.22
11,069.44

240.05
12,031.32

0.25
668.78 

80.52
10,192.19

161.77
11,103.51

I)  Advance to contractor/ suppliers represents the mobiliza�on & other advances paid for capital works as well as for 
services and are expected to be realizable or recoverable within 12 months from the balance sheet date.

ii)  Advance du�es indicates the amount paid in advance towards Royalty, NMET & DMF , for the quan�ty of coal which has 
not been dispatched/invoiced and is subject to reconcilia�on with Govt. authori�es.

iii)  Other assets represents, prepaid amount towards  Insurance premium, statutory fees, guarantee commission, and 
others for the period rela�ng to financial year 2024-25.

18.  Equity Share Capital (Rupees in Lakhs) 

Par�culars                                                                As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

Equity Share Capital 
TOTAL
Authorised Share Capital
750,000,000 nos. of equity shares of Rs.10/- each                         
(Previous Year: 750,000,000 nos. of equity shares of 
Rs.10/- each)

Issued and Subscribed capital comprises :
425,950,000 nos. of equity shares of Rs.10/- each 
(Previous year: 425,950,000 nos. of equity shares of Rs.10/- each)
Total

42,595.00

42,595.00

75,000.00

42,595.00

42,595.00

42,595.00

42,595.00

75,000.00

42,595.00

42,595.00
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Notes

1. The movement in subscribed and paid up share capital is set out below:

Par�culars                                                                As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

Ordinary shares of Rs.10 each
At beginning of the year
Shares allo�ed during the year

Odisha Power Genera�on Corpora�on Limited 21,72,34,500  51.00%  -  21,72,34,500  51.00%  -   

Odisha Hydro Power Corpora�on Limited - - 49%  - - 0.49 
Governor of Odisha, represented by Govt. of Odisha 20,87,15,500  49.00% 49% 20,87,15,500  49.00%  0.49

 No. of shares Rs. Lakhs
 42,59,50,000 42,595.00
 -   -
 42,59,50,000 42,595.00 

 No. of shares Rs. Lakhs

  42,59,50,000 42,595.00

  -  -

 

4 2 , 5 9 , 5 0 , 0 0 0 4 2 , 5 9 5 . 0 0   

 No. of shares Rs. Lakhs
 42,59,50,000 42,595.00
 -   -
 42,59,50,000 42,595.00 

Shares in the company held by each shareholder holding more than 5% shares:

As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

No. of 
Shares Held           

(Face value of 
Rs. 10 each)

% of 
Total 

Shares

% change 
during 

the year

No. of 
Shares Held           

(Face value of 
Rs. 10 each)

% of Total 
Shares

% change 
during 

the year
Name of Shareholder (Promoter)

i) The company has only one class of shares referred to as 'Equity Shares' having a par value of Rs.10/- each. Each holder of 
equity shares is en�tled to one vote per share. In the event of liquida�on of the Corpora�on, the holders of equity shares 
will be en�tled to receive any of the remaining assets of the corpora�on, a�er distribu�on of all preferen�al amounts. 
However, no such preferen�al amounts exist 

ii) Pursuant to execu�on of Share Purchase Agreement (SPA) on dated 26-12-2022 and transfer of purchase considera�on 
to OHPC by Govt. of Odisha on 30-12-2022, the Governor of Odisha represented by Govt. of Odisha becomes the 
Shareholder with 49% of Equity (20,87,15,500 nos. of Equity share @ a face value of Rs.10/- each).

19.  Other Equity (Rupees in Lakhs) 

– 
99,858.95
99,858.95

Par�culars                                                                As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

Share Applica�on Money Pending allotment
Retained earnings

– 
80,595.63
80,595.63

(I) Retained Earnings (Rupees in Lakhs) 

80,595.63
19,263.33

– 
– 

99,858.95

Par�culars                                                                As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

Balance at the beginning of the period
Profit (Loss) a�ributable to owners of the Company
Dividend paid for the year 2021-22
Interim dividend for the FY 2022-23
Balance at the end of the period

14,547.99
80,423.17
(4,375.53)

(10,000.00)
80,595.63

Dividend Paid :

a) Pursuant to the approval of the Shareholders in the 7th Annual General Mee�ng of the Company held on 22-11-2022 and  
on recommenda�on of the Board, the Company has distributed Dividend for the FY.2021-22 @ 30% of the distributable 
profit in propor�on to the shareholding. The company has distributed Rs.4,375.53 lakh dividend for the FY.2021-22 
(Rs.2,231.52 lakh to OPGC and Rs.2,144.01 lakh to OHPC) on 21-12-2022.

b) The Board in its 61st mee�ng held on 30-12-2022 has declared interim dividend for the FY.2022-23 for Rs.10,000 lakh to be 
distributed in propor�on to the shareholding i.e 51:49. The Interim dividend has been distributed on 30-01-2023 by 
Rs.5,100 lakh and Rs.4,900 lakh to OPGC & OHPC respec�vely
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20. Borrowings - Non-current 

(Rupees in Lakhs) 

15,597.76
22,914.71
21,332.56
59,845.03

Par�culars                                                                As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

Secured borrowings - at amor�sed cost
 Union Bank of India (UBI)
 Punjab Na�onal Bank (PNB)
 Rural Electrifica�on Corpora�on Limited (REC Ltd)
Total

18,931.01
27,382.04
22,932.47
69,245.52

(i) Term loan of Rs.50,000 lakhs, Rs.53,600 lakhs and Rs.57,130 lakh was sanc�oned from Union Bank of India, Punjab Na�onal Bank  and 
Rural Electrifica�on Corpora�on Ltd respec�vely  for development of Manoharpur Coal Mine at Sundargarh district. Subsequently, 
the sanc�oned term loan from REC has been revised to Rs.27,530 lakh and a fresh sanc�on of Rs.29,600 lakh was obtained from 
Punjab Na�onal Bank by way of carv-out from the term loan of Rs.57,130 lakh sanc�oned ini�ally from REC Ltd. The snac�oned term 
loan of Rs.29,600 lakh against which Rs.9,00 lakh drawn stands closed during the current financial year.

(ii) Security:

 The term loans including interest and other charges have been secured by way of  pari-passu basis through equitable mortgage by 
way of hypotheca�on of all tangibles, movable plants/machinary/other assets, both present and future including Book Debts and 
immovable property situated at Manoharpur or other places along with Building in favour of the lenders. 

(iii) Repayment:

a) The term loan from UBI has been facilitated for a period of 18 years (including 3 years of moratorium from the month of first 
disbursement) with 15 years of repayment period. The repayment shall be in 60 quarterly installment a�er the moratorium period. 
The repayment of loan from UBI has commenced w.e.f Nov'2020.

b) The term loan from PNB shall be repaid in 60 quarterly installments star�ng from 3 year a�er the first disbursement. Interest a�er the 
moratorium period is to be paid as and when charged to the account in respect of each of the above loan. The repayment of loan from 
PNB has commenced w.e.f Dec'2020.

c) The loan from REC has been sanc�oned with a moratorium period of 3 years and shall be repaid in 180 equal monthly installments. 
The loan obtained from REC is under moratorium period as on the repor�ng date. The repayment has commenced w.e.f August 2023.

(iv) Interest:

a) Interest on term loan obtained from UBI is currently served @ 8.90% p.a (8.65% �ll March'2024) . The interest is to be reset a�er one 
year from the first disbursal and shall be applied for the following months. 

b) The interest is served on monthly rest and calculated on daily reduc�on balance basis.

c) Interest on term loan obtained from PNB is currently served @ 8.65% p.a  which is 1 year MCLR rate. The interest is to be reset a�er 1 
year from the first disbursal and so on. 

d) The term loan from REC carries an interest rate of 10.15% p.a w.e.f 19-01-2024 (earlier 9.40%) compunded monthly.

e) The maturity profile of the borrowing (including interest) is as follows.

(Rupees in Lakhs) 

14,508.74
59,957.78
24,441.08
98,907.60

Contractual Maturi�es                                                                As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

Not later than 1 year or payable on demand
Later than 1 year not later than 5 years
Later than 5 years
Total repayable

14,835.45
66,623.51
45,169.26

1,26,628.22

21. Other financial liability-non current

1,004.22

1,004.22

Par�culars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

Security deposits received

Total 

1.98

1.98

The deposits are non interest bearing and refundable in nature
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22.  Provisions - Non-current

(I) Retained Earnings (Rupees in Lakhs) 

50.51
71.63

863.38
– 

985.51

Par�culars                                                                As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

 i)  Provision for employee benefits:            

  - towards Gratuity          

  - towards leave encashment/EL

ii)  Provision for lease liabilityiii) 

iii) Provision for Mine closure obliga�on as per Mine plan

Total

83.33
113.21

1,144.89
13,263.43
14,604.86

A.

i) The provision for employee benefit indicates the provision made of Gratuity & EL of the employees under OCPL role, based on the 
actuary valua�on. The liability towards Gratuity and other employee benefits of OPGC deputed employees have been included in 
note- 26  as 'Payable to related party'.

ii) The company has recognised the provision for employee benefit based on actuary valua�on made during the year 2023-24 and the 
same is unfunded as on the repor�ng date. Detail disclosures in this reagrd is provided at the  below of this note.

iii) The Company's obliga�ons for progressive and final mine clsoure is in accordance with the guidelines of Ministry of Coal, Government 
of India and is as prescribed in the Mine plan. The Company es�mates its obliga�ons for mine closure, site restora�on and 
decommissioning based on the detailed calcula�on & technical assessment of the amount and �ming of future cash spending for the 
required work and provided for as per approved mine closure plan. The es�mate of expenses is escalated for infla�on and then 
discounted at a discount rate that reflect  the present value of expenditure required to se�le the obliga�on.

iv) The following table sets out the amounts recognized in the financial statements for  gratuity plans in respect of the Company.

(Rupees in Lakhs) 

Change in defined benefit obliga�ons: Gratuity Leave Encashment

(a) Present value of obliga�on as at the beginning of the year 

(b) Current service cost 

(c) Interest cost 

(d) Remeasurement (gains)/losses 

(e) Benefits paid 

Obliga�on as at the end of the year

                             
50.61

27.54

3.72

2.93

-

84.81

As at March’2024
                             

75.67

36.23

5.57

5.50

(3.54)

119.43

(Rupees in Lakhs) 

Change in plan assets : Gratuity Leave Encashment

(a) Present value of obliga�on as at the beginning of the year 

(b) Current service cost 

(c) Interest cost 

(d) Remeasurement (gains)/losses 

(e) Benefits paid 

Obliga�on as at the end of the year

 –  

– 

 – 

 – 

 – 

– 

As at March’2024

 –  

– 

 – 

 – 

 – 

– 

(Rupees in Lakhs) 

Amount recognised in the balance sheet consists of : Gratuity Leave Encashment

(a) Fair value of plan assets as at end of the year

(b) Present value of obliga�on as at the end of the year

(c) Un-funded (liability) recognised in the balance sheet

 –  

84.81 

(84.81)

As at March’2024

 –  

119.43 

(119.43)
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(Rupees in Lakhs) 

Costs recognised in the statement of profit and loss consist of: Gratuity Leave Encashment

(a) Current Service cost

(b) Net interest expense / (income)

(c) Net acturial (gain)/loss

27.54

3.72

2.93

34.19

As at March’2024

36.23

5.57

5.50

47.30Costs recognised in the statement of profit and loss :

v) The assump�ons used in accoun�ng for re�ring gratuity & leave encashment are set out below: (Rupees in Lakhs) 

Par�culars Year ended March 31, 2024 Year ended March 31, 2023

(a) Discount rate (%)

(b) Rate of escala�on in salary (%)

7.22

7.79

7.36

7.79

iv) The table below outlines the effect on defined benefit obliga�on i.e Gratuity & Leave encashment in the event of a decrease/increase 
of 0.50 % in the assumed rate of discount rate and salary escala�on rate.

As at March 31, 2024

Par�culars Change in assump�on Impact on scheme liabili�es

Discount rate 

Salary Escala�on

Increase by 0.50%,

Decrease by 0.50%

Increase by 0.50%,

Decrease by 0.50%

                           (12.35)

13.58

13.39

(12.35)

vii) Mortality & Morbidity rates - 100% of IALM (2012-14) rates have been assumed which also includes the allowance for disability 
benefits.

viii) Valua�ons are based on certain assump�ons, which are dynamic in nature and vary over �me. As such company is exposed to various 
risks as follow -  

 a) Salary Increases- Actual salary increases will increase the Plan ' s liability. Increase in salary increase rate assump�on in future 
valua�ons will also increase the liability.

 b) Investment Risk – If Plan is funded then assets liabili�es mismatch & actual investment return on assets lower than the 
discount rate assumed at the last valua�on date can impact the liability.

 c) Discount Rate : Reduc�on in discount rate in subsequent valua�ons can increase the plan's liability.

 d) Mortality & disability – Actual deaths & disability cases proving lower or higher than assumed in the valua�on can impact the 
liabili�es.

 e) Withdrawals – Actual withdrawals proving higher or lower than assumed withdrawals and change of withdrawal rates at 
subsequent valua�ons can impact Plan's liability.

B.  Provision for lease liability indicates the present value of future obliga�on towards payment of annuity to PDF's of village 
Ghumudasan. 
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(Rupees in Lakhs) 

Par�culars Year ended March 31, 2024 Year ended March 31, 2023

Deferred Tax Assets

Less : Deferred Tax Liabili�es

Net Defer Tax Asset/ (Liability)

51.41

6,992.22

(6,940.80)

31.79

4,638.20

(4,606.41)

(i) Significant component of deferred tax assets and liabili�es for the year ended March 31, 2024 is as follows:

Odisha Coal and Power Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements
23. Deferred tax balances

Deferred tax assets

Provisions

Total

Deferred tax liabili�es

Property, plant and equipment

Intangible assets

Total

Net Deferred tax assets/(liabili�es)

Opening balance 
as at

April 1, 2023

Deferred tax
(expense)/income 

recognised in 
profit and loss

Deferred tax 
expense/
(income) 

recognised in OCI)

Deferred tax 
expense/
(income) 

recognised 
in other equity)

Closing balance 
as at

March 31, 
2024

 31.79 19.62 - - 51.41

 31.79 19.62 - - 51.41

 (2,654.70) (1,563.02) -  (4,217.72)

 (1,983.51) (790.99)   (2,774.50)

 (4,638.21)         (2,354.01) - -     (6,992.22)

  (4,606.42) (2,334.38) - -  (6,940.80)

Significant component of deferred tax assets and liabili�es for the year ended March 31, 2023 is as follows:

Deferred tax assets

Provisions

Total

Deferred tax liabili�es

Property, plant and equipment

Intangible assets

Total

Net Deferred tax assets/(liabili�es)

Opening balance 
as at

April 1, 2022

Deferred tax
(expense)/income 

recognised in 
profit and loss

Deferred tax 
expense/
(income) 

recognised in OCI)

Deferred tax 
expense/
(income) 

recognised 
in other equity)

Closing balance 
as at

March 31, 
2023

 19.46 12.32 - - 31.79

 19.46 12.32 - - 31.79

 (1,062.73) (1,591.97) -  (2,654.70)

 (1,485.44) (498.07)   (1,983.51)

 (2,548.17) (2,090.04) - - (4,638.20)

 (2,528.71) (2,077.71) - - (4,606.41)

(ii) The company has recognized deferred taxes at the tax rate of 25.168% i.e concessional rate of income tax u/s. 115BAA  (March 31, 
2023: 27.82%) as per the Income Tax Act, 1961.
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(Rupees in Lakhs) 

Par�culars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

Current maturi�es of non-current borrowings      

From commercial banks/FI's - Secured:

 i) Union Bank of India (UBI)  

ii) Punjab Na�onal Bank (PNB)  

iii) Rural Electrifica�on Corpora�on Limited (REC Ltd)      

Un-secured borrowings- at amor�zed cost

Total

3,333.32

3,573.32

1,599.84

-

8,506.48

Odisha Coal and Power Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements
24. Borrowings - Current

9,333.32

7,573.32

1,066.56

-

17,973.20

i) Details with regard to rate of interest, repayment terms and security of Current maturi�es of non-current borrowings as indicated 
above is disclosed vide note-20.

ii) The company has obtained a sanc�on of working capital loan for Rs.5,000 lakh from Union Bank of India primarily secured on book 
debt & stock and the outstanding as on March'24 stands Nil. 

iii) The company has made pre-payment of Rs.10,000 lakh against the term loan taken from Union Bank of India and Punjab Na�onal 
Bank during the current financial year in the ra�o of 60:40 (March 31, 2023: Rs.21,942.20 lakh).

25.  Trade payables (Rupees in Lakhs) 

Par�culars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

Trade payable for goods and services:

        Total outstanding dues of

  -Micro and small enterprises

  -Creditors otherthan micro and small enterprises

Total
5,053.44

5,053.44

6,716.31

  6,716.31

i)  The trade payable primrily consists of dues to mine operator.

ii) The disclosures rela�ng to Micro and Small Enterprises as defined in the “The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development 
Act, 2006”are as under. This has been determined to the extent such par�es have been iden�fied on the basis of informa�on available 
with the Company.

Descrip�on As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

 i.  The principal amount remaining unpaid to supplier as at the end 
of the year  

ii.  The interest due thereon remaining unpaid to supplier as at the 
end of the year  

iii.  The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay 
in making payment (which have been paid but beyond the 
appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest 
specified under this Act  

iv. The amount of interest accrued during the year and remaining 
unpaid at the end of the year 

– 

– 

– 

– 

– 

– 

– 

– 

iii) Addi�onal Regulatory Informa�on:

Trade payable ageing schedule As at March 31, 2024

Par�culars Less than 1 Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years >3 years

(i)  MSME
(ii) Others
(iii) Disputed dues- MSME
(iv)Disputed dues- Others

As at March 31, 2023

(i)  MSME
(ii) Others
(iii) Disputed dues- MSME
(iv)Disputed dues- Others

– 
5,053.44

– 
– 

– 
– 
– 
– 

– 
– 
– 
– 

– 
– 
– 
– 

– 
6,716.31

– 
– 

– 
– 
– 
– 

– 
– 
– 
– 

– 
– 
– 
– 
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(Rupees in Lakhs) 

Par�culars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

Capital Creditors

Payable to related party

Security & Reten�on money deposits

Other payable for goods and services

Total

3,743.34

      46.66

2,357.87

2,708.68

8,856.55

Odisha Coal and Power Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements
26. Other Financial Liabili�es

21,370.34

27.90

2,075.61

895.20

24,369.04

(i) Payble to related party indicates the amount payable to OPGC towards reimbursement of Gratuity,  Leave pay, one �me pension, & 
terminal TA of  employees deputed to the company and other administra�ve expenditures incured by OPGC for the company. The 
amount payable towards post employment benefit of deputed employees is as per the actuary valua�on done OPGC.

27. Provisions- Current  (Rupees in Lakhs) (Rupees in Lakhs) 

Par�culars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

i)  Provision for employee benefit:

 - towards Gratuity

 - towards leave encashment/EL

ii)  Provision for lease liability 

iii) Provision for CSR to be spent on ongoing projects

iv) Others

1.48

6.23

76.50

373.63

1,196.10

1,653.94

0.10

4.05

74.82

24.05

-

103.02

i) The provision for unspent amount of CSR obliga�on for the FY.2022-23 has been retrospec�vely restated as prior period errors.

ii) Other provision represents the escala�on on mining fee payable to mine operator on es�mated basis for the FY.2023-24 on account 
of change in coefficients as amended in MSA on dated 3rd September, 2024.

28. Other Current Liabili�es  (Rupees in Lakhs) (Rupees in Lakhs) 

Par�culars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

Advance received from Customers

Statutory dues payable

2,910.53

8,549.46 

5,952.51

9,300.34

Total 11,459.99 15,252.84

(i) Advance received from customer primarily includes advances received in respect of e-auc�on of coal sales made against which coal 
supplies/despatch will be made in subsequent financial year.

(ii) Statutory dues payables primarily inlcudes liabili�es towards royality,income tax deducted at source, BOCW cess, GST Cess, employer 
& employee contribu�on to CMPF and CMPS etc.
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29. Revenue from Opera�ons

Par�culars Year ended March 31, 2024 Year ended March 31, 2023

Sale of Coal    (A)

Less: Other statutory levies 

 Royalty (incl. Addl. Royalty)

 Na�onal Minearal Explora�on Trust

 District Mineral Founda�on

 CGST

 SGST

 IGST

 TCS

 GST compensa�on cess

Total levies   (B)     

Sales- Net off statutory levies                          (A-B)

   Total

1,76,673.60

15,915.55

235.78

1,178.89

3,549.73

3,549.73

134.42

44.30

33,139.42

57,747.81

1,18,925.79

1,18,925.79

i)  The revenue from opera�on represents the revenue generated from sale of coal  to Odisha Power Genera�on Corpora�on Ltd (OPGC) 
and to various customers from commercial sales through e-auc�on as on the repor�ng date. 

ii)  Revenue includes sale of Coal (net off of taxes) to OPGC for Rs.80,836.80 lakh, E Auc�on of coal in commercial market for Rs. 
38,055.15 lakhs and others for Rs.33.85 lakh for the period under repor�ng (March 31, 2023: Rs.77,113.54 lakh against coal sale to 
OPGC and Rs.1,07,750.87 lakh from commercial sales).

iii)  Odisha Electricity Regulatory Commision (OERC) is yet to frame appropriate regula�on/orders for fixa�on of input price of coal from 
Integrated Manoharpur and Dip-side Manoharpur Coal block for supply of coal to the specified end user plant of OPGC. In the 
absence of such regula�on, the revenue from sale of coal to OPGC are being provisionally recognized based on CIL no�fied price.

30.  Other Income 

2,58,973.22

27,515.42

443.20

2,215.99

5,335.89

5,335.89

105.32

282.00

32,875.10

74,108.81

1,84,864.41

               1,84,864.41

Par�culars Year ended March 31, 2024 Year ended March 31, 2023

Interest Income

i) Interest from Bank Deposits at amor�sed Cost

ii) Interest from  Advances to contractors & others

iii) Interest on Tax refunds

Other Non-opera�ng income :

i) Sale of Tender Form

ii) Rent

iii) Penalty, LD & other recoveries

iv) Miscl. income

Total

2,834.03

14.68

– 

1.61

39.93

78.04

1.02

2,969.31

3,687.44

212.38

1.18

3.80

2.00

509.26

1.47

4,417.53

31.  Cost of mine opera�on/excava�on.

a.

b.

Par�culars Year ended March 31, 2024 Year ended March 31, 2023

Cost of mine operator  

Statutory levy on coal produc�on 

      -Coal reserve price                

 -Others including statutory levies

Total: 

Less: Transferred to CWIP for alloca�on Total:

Total

49,691.31

 

18,821.03

3,436.22

71,948.56

-

71,948.56

48,948.03

9,582.98

82.87

58,613.88

-

58,613.88

i) Others represents user fees and taxes paid to Govt. of Odisha in rela�on to coal excava�on.
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32. Change in inventories of finished goods/ work in progress and stock in trade.

Par�culars Year ended March 31, 2024 Year ended March 31, 2023

i) Opening stock of coal 

ii) Closing stock of coal 

Change in inventory of finished goods

1,179.31

2,353.59

(1,174.28)

2,535.46

1,179.31

1,356.15

33. Employee Benefit Expense

Par�culars Year ended March 31, 2024 Year ended March 31, 2023

Salaries, Wages & Allowances etc.

Contribu�on to coal mine provident fund

Contribu�on to coal mine pension scheme

Contribu�on towards Gratuity

Leave encashment

Reimburesement Expenses to Employees 

Other Staff Welfare expenses 

Total

                    1,144.77

75.81

41.77

34.20

47.81

2.61

63.93

1,410.89

                    1,047.33

61.41

33.83

37.96

43.98

1.42

51.04

1,276.98

(i) Employees working in the company are deputed from OPGC on secondment basis during the repor�ng period. In terms of 

arrangements with OPGC, the company liability towards gratuity, leave benefits (including compensated absences) etc. for the 

period of service rendered in the company w.r.t. the OPGC employees posted on secondment paid / payable is accounted on the basis 

of demand raised by OPGC based on liability determined by independent actuary appointed by OPGC.

(ii) The Company has capitalised the employee benefit expenses �ll the date of COD  as preopera�ve expenses and has been allocated to 

respec�ve assets on propor�onate basis. Refer Note-7 for details of the same.

(iii) Provident Fund:

 Company pays fixed contribu�on towards Provident Fund and Pension Fund at pre-determined rates to a separate trust named Coal 

Mines Provident Fund (CMPF). The contribu�on to the fund  has been recognised as expense and charged to CWIP as "Expenditure 

during construc�on". The obliga�on of the Company is to make such fixed contribu�on and to ensure a minimum rate of return to the 

members as applicable to Coal Mines Provident Fund (CMPF).                           

(iv) Gratuity.

 Gratuity is maintained as a defined benefit re�rement plan and is unfunded as at the balance sheet date. Every employee who has 

rendered con�nuous service of five years or more is en�tled to gratuity at 15 days salary (15/26 X last drawn basic salary & dearness 

allowance as applicable) for each completed year of service or part thereof in excess of six months subject to a maximum of 20 

months' salary on superannua�on, resigna�on, termina�on, disablement or on death ( 5 years service is not applicable in case of 

death).  The actuarial valua�on has been made by actuary by taking into account the above policy. The liability is recognised in the 

balance sheet in respect of defined benefit gratuity plans is the present value of the defined benefit obliga�on at the end of the 

repor�ng period. The defined benefit obliga�on is calculated annually by actuaries using the projected unit credit method. 

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assump�ons are recognised in the 

period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income. The scheme is currently unfunded and are recognised on the 

basis of actuarial valua�on.         

(v) Leave:

 The Company provides for Earned Leave benefit (including compensated absences) to the employees of the Company which accrue 

annually @ 30 days subject to maximum credit of leave for 300 days. The liabili�es for earned leave are expected to be se�led a�er 

the re�rement of employee. They are therefore measured as the present value of expected future payments to be made in respect of 

services provided by employees up to the end of the repor�ng period using the projected unit credit method. The benefits are 

discounted using the market yields at the end of the repor�ng period that have terms approxima�ng to the terms of the related 

obliga�on. Re-measurements as a result of experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assump�ons are recognised in other 

comprehensive income. The scheme is unfunded and are recognised on the basis of actuarial valua�on.

(Rupees in Lakhs) 

(Rupees in Lakhs) 
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34. Finance Costs 

Par�culars Year ended March 31, 2024 Year ended March 31, 2023

 (a)  Finance cost on financial liabili�es measured at amor�zed cost 

 Interest on  loans obtained from Banks/FI's: 

  i)  Union Bank of India                   

 ii)  Punjab Na�onal Bank                   

 iii)  Rural Electrifica�on Corpora�on Ltd.                   

 iv)  Interest on working capital loan  

(b)  Other Financing Cost 

  i)  Gurantee Commission  

 ii)  Finance cost on non-financial items  

 iii)  Others

Total

                    2,724.48

3,129.43

2,259.76

6.32

182.73

175.27

1.49

8,479.49

                    1,765.48

2,401.44

2,267.58

30.30

183.06

744.97

0.47

7,393.29 

(Rupees in Lakhs) 

35. Deprecia�on and amor�za�on (Rupees in Lakhs) 

Par�culars Year ended March 31, 2024 Year ended March 31, 2023

i.  Deprecia�on on property, plant and equipments 

ii.  Deprecia�on on Right of use assets  

iii.  Deprecia�on on other intangible assets 

Total

                    3,692.82

2,552.64

690.11

6,935.58

                    3,218.07

2,238.71

662.51

6,119.28

i)  The details of deprecia�on is disclosed vide note-5, note-6 and note-8 respec�vely.

ii)  Deprecia�on for the corresponding year has been retrospec�vely restated by increase in deprecia�on for Rs.163.93 lakh & Rs.152.43 
lakh  due to non-capitaliza�on of ''Water pipe line'' and "CBA Non forest Govt. Land" in the FY.2022-23  in accordance with the 
provisions of Ind As-8 "Accoun�ng policy, change in accoun�ng es�mate and errors". Accordingly, the opening balances of PPE and 
deprecia�on for the year 2022-23 have been restated as prior period errors and there is no impact for the curret financial year.

36. Other Expense (Rupees in Lakhs) 

Par�culars Year ended March 31, 2024 Year ended March 31, 2023

Audit fees & expenses
Statutory clearance & filling fees
Professional, consultancy & legal fees
Training, Seminar & Conference Expenses
Office administra�ve expenses (Rent, elect., Watch & Ward etc)
Repair & Running expenses of vehicles
Corporate Social Responsibility (Ref. Note-41)
Rehabilita�on & Rese�lement expenses
EDP  sta�onaries, mentainance & licence fees
Rate, Cess & Taxes
Travelling expenses
Adver�sement & Communica�on expenses
Coal Sampling charges
Selling & distribu�on expenses
Contribu�on to CM Relief fund
O&M expenses of Coal handling plant
Repair & Mentainance expenses of Road, Bridge and others
Insurance 
Office maintainace & Misclleneous expenses
Technical studies, Tes�ng & Survey
Environment & Safety
Business development expenses
Ground Water charges
Total 

                            12.96
113.16
363.52

12.36
287.28
167.79
865.70
326.08

34.59
142.06

39.65
51.84

344.18
397.36

2,000.00
2,087.66

133.36
47.65

191.62
58.55
49.01
10.00
57.51

7,793.89

                           11.61
35.79

309.65
3.64

252.98
189.63
135.73
407.02

32.78
161.55

22.25
50.71

384.82
360.00

2,000.00
-

30.93
4.40

127.59
60.75
56.84

-
22.88

4,661.54

i)Audit fees includes audit fees payable/paid to Statutory Auditors for Rs.3.85 lakh (March'23: Rs.3.85 lakh).
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37. Financial Instruments 

(i) Capital Management :-  The Company's capital management is intended to create value for shareholders by facilita�ng the mee�ng 
of long term and short term goals of the Company.

 The Company determines the amount of capital required on the basis of annual business plan, coupled with long term and short term 
strategic inves�ng plan. The funding requirements are met through equity and other short term & long term borrowings. The 
Company's policy is aimed at combina�on of short term and long term borrowings. The Company monitors the capital structure on 
the basis of net debt to equity ra�o and maturity profile of the overall debt por�olio of the Company.

(ii) Disclosure on Financial Instruments

 This sec�on gives an overview of the significance of financial instruments for the Company and provides addi�onal informa�on on 
balance sheet items that contain financial instruments.

 The details of significant accoun�ng policies, including the criteria for recogni�on, the basis of measurement and the basis on which 
income and expenses are recognized, in respect of each class of financial asset, financial liability and equity instrument are disclosed 
in note 3.13 to the financial statements.

 (a) Financial assets and liabili�es

  The following table presents the carrying amount and fair value of each category of financial assets & liabili�es as at March 
 31, 2024.

Financial assets

Cash and bank balances

Loans

Trade receivables

Other financial assets

Total financial assets

Financial liabili�es

Borrowings

Other financial liabili�es

Trade payable

Total Financial Liabili�es

Deriva�ve 
instruments 
other than in 

hedging 
rela�onship

Equity 
instruments 
classified as 

fair value 
through other 

comprehensive 
income

Classified 
as fair 

value through 
statement 

of profit & loss

Total 
Carrying 

Value

Total Fair 
Value 

Financial 
assets

(Rupees in Lakhs) 

Amor�sed 
cost

As at March 31, 2024

       22,667.21

268.12

16,393.81

8,386.42

47,715.56

68,351.51

8,856.55

5,053.44

82,261.50

– 

– 

– 

– 

— 

– 

– 

– 

— 

– 

– 

– 

– 

— 

– 

– 

– 

— 

– 

– 

– 

– 

— 

– 

– 

– 

— 

22,667.21

268.12

16,393.81

8,386.42

47,715.56

68,351.51

8,856.55

5,053.44

82,261.50

22,667.21

268.12

16,393.81

8,386.42

47,715.56

68,351.51

8,856.55

5,053.44

82,261.50

Financial assets

Cash and bank balances

Loans

Trade receivables

Other financial assets

Total financial assets

Financial liabili�es

Borrowings

Other financial liabili�es

Trade payable

Total Financial Liabili�es

Deriva�ve 
instruments 
other than in 

hedging 
rela�onship

Equity 
instruments 
classified as 

fair value 
through other 

comprehensive 
income

Classified 
as fair 

value through 
statement 

of profit & loss

Total 
Carrying 

Value

Total Fair 
Value 

Financial 
assets

(Rupees in Lakhs) 

Amor�sed 
cost

As at March 31, 2023

       23,279.18

240.19

10,731.42

32,935.86

67,186.65

87,218.72

24,369.04

6,716.31

1,18,304.07

– 

– 

– 

– 

— 

– 

– 

– 

— 

– 

– 

– 

– 

— 

– 

– 

– 

— 

– 

– 

– 

– 

— 

– 

– 

– 

— 

23,279.18

240.19

10,731.42

32,935.86

67,186.65

87,218.72

24,369.04

6,716.31

1,18,304.07

23,279.18

240.19

10,731.42

32,935.86

67,186.65

87,218.72

24,369.04

6,716.31

1,18,304.07
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 (b) The short-term financial assets and liabili�es are stated at amor�zed cost which is approximately equal to their fair value.

 (c) Management uses its best judgment in es�ma�ng the fair value of its financial instruments. However, there are inherent 

limita�ons in any es�ma�on technique. Therefore, for substan�ally all financial instruments, the fair value es�mates 

presented above are not necessarily indica�ve of all the amounts that the Company could have realized or paid in sale 

transac�ons as of respec�ve dates. As such, the fair value of the financial instruments subsequent to the respec�ve repor�ng 

dates may be different from the amounts reported at each year end.

 (d) Financial instruments that are measured subsequent to ini�al recogni�on at fair value, grouped into Level 1 to Level 3, as 

described below:

 Quoted prices in an ac�ve market (Level 1): This level of hierarchy includes financial assets that are measured by reference to quoted 

prices (unadjusted) in ac�ve markets for iden�cal assets or liabili�es. This category consists of investment in quoted equity shares, 

quoted corporate debt instruments and mutual fund investments.

 Valua�on techniques with observable inputs (Level 2): This level of hierarchy includes financial assets and liabili�es, measured using 

inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e., as prices) or 

indirectly (i.e., derived from prices). This level of hierarchy includes Company's over-the-counter (OTC) deriva�ve contracts.

 Valua�on techniques with significant unobservable inputs (Level 3): This level of hierarchy includes financial assets and liabili�es 

measured using inputs that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs). Fair values are determined in whole or in 

part, using a valua�on model based on assump�ons that are neither supported by prices from observable current market 

transac�ons in the same instrument nor are they based on available market data. The main items in this category are investment in 

unquoted equity shares, measured at fair value.

(iii)  The Company has not transferred any of its financial assets during the year.

(iv)  Financial risk management

 In the course of its business, the Company is exposed primarily to interest rates, liquidity and credit risk, which may adversely impact 

the fair value of its financial instruments.

 The Company has a risk management policy which covers the risks associated with the financial assets and liabili�es such as interest 

rate risks and credit risks. The risk management policy is approved by the Board of Directors. The risk management framework aims 

to:

 (a) Market Risk : - Market risk is the risk of any loss in future earnings, in realizable fair values or in future cash flows that may 

result from a change in the price of a financial instrument. The value of a financial instrument may change as a result of 

changes in the interest rates, foreign currency exchange rates, equity price fluctua�ons, liquidity and other market changes. 

Future specific market movements cannot be normally predicted with reasonable accuracy.

 (b) Credit Risk :- Credit risk is the risk of financial loss arising from counterparty failure to repay or service debt according to the 

contractual terms or obliga�ons. Credit risk encompasses both the direct risk of default and the risk of deteriora�on of 

creditworthiness as well as concentra�on risks.

 (c) Liquidity Risk: Liquidity risk refers to the risk that the Company cannot meet its financial obliga�ons. The objec�ve of liquidity 

risk management is to maintain sufficient liquidity and ensure that funds are available for use as per requirements.

 (d) The following table shows a maturity analysis of the an�cipated cash flows including interest payable for the Company's non 

deriva�ve financial liabili�es on an undiscounted basis, which therefore differ from both carrying value and fair value.

Non- deriva�ve financial liabili�es

Borrowings including interest thereon

Other financial liabili�es

Trade payable

Total non- deriva�ve financial liabili�es

As at March 31, 2024

(Rupees in Lakhs) 

      68,351.51

8,856.55

5,053.44

82,261.50

Carrying 
amount

Contractual 
cash flows

Less than 
1 year

Between 
1 - 5 years

More than 
5 years

68,351.51

8,856.55

5,053.44

82,261.50

      14,508.74

8,856.55

5,053.44

28,418.73

59,957.78

– 

– 

59,957.78

24,441.08

-

24,441.08
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Non- deriva�ve financial liabili�es

Borrowings including interest thereon

Other financial liabili�es

Trade payable

Total non- deriva�ve financial liabili�es

As at March 31, 2023

(Rupees in Lakhs) 

87,218.72

24,369.04

6,716.31

1,18,304.07

Carrying 
amount

Contractual 
cash flows

Less than 
1 year

Between 
1 - 5 years

More than 
5 years

87,218.72

24,369.04

6,716.31

1,18,304.07

      14,835.45

5,576.62

6,716.31

27,128.38

66,623.51

-

-

66,623.51 

45,169.26

-

-

45,169.26

38. Related Party Transac�on

(Rupees in Lakhs) 

OCPL is a State Public Sector Undertaking and a Joint venture of Govt. of Odisha & OPGC that is controlled, jointly controlled or significantly 
influenced by Govt. OPGC holds 51% ownership interest in the Company and balance 49% ownership interest is held by Govt. of Odisha who 
has significant influence over the Company. Pursuant to the execu�on of Share Purchase Agreement on 26-12-2022, the Govt. of Odisha 
acquired 49% in OCPL and transfered the purchase considera�on to OHPC on 30-12-2022. The Company's related par�es principally consist 
of  OPGC and Government of Odisha. The Company rou�nely enters into transac�ons with these related par�es in the ordinary course of 
business at market rates and terms.

Key Managerial Personnel (KMP)

Nature of Transac�ons OPGC OHPC
Sri. Saripu�a 

Mishra
Director & CEO

Sri. Ajaya Ku. 
Majhi

Company
Secretary

Rela�ves of 
Key 

Management 
Personnel

Government 
of 

Odisha

Coal Reserve Price

FY 2023-24

FY 2022-23

Finance provided

FY 2023-24

FY 2022-23

Royalty, NMET & DMF

FY 2023-24

FY 2022-23

Remunera�on

FY 2023-24

FY 2022-23

Guarantee outstanding

FY 2023-24

FY 2022-23

Other payables (note-26)

FY 2023-24

FY 2022-23

Dividend paid

FY 2023-24

FY 2022-23

Sales (Gross)

FY 2023-24

FY 2022-23

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

26,383.36

13,455.51

46.66

27.90

-

7,331.52

80,836.80

77,113.54

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

12,927.85

-

-

-

7,044.01

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

68.82

64.52

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

18.25

10.00

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

14,811.92

7,999.97

-

-

16,609.92

27,939.64

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-
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39. Earning per share (EPS)

The following table reflects the income and shares data used in the basic and diluted earnings per share computa�ons.

Par�culars Year ended March 31, 2024 Year ended March 31, 2023

(Rupees in Lakhs) 

Profit or (Loss) a�er tax

Less: Amount to be paid for diluted por�on (net of tax)
Profit or (Loss) a�ributable to ordinary shareholders - 
for Basic & Diluted EPS

Weighted average no. of Ordinary Shares for Basic & Diluted EPS 
Nominal value of Ordinary Shares (Rs.)

Basic & Diluted Earnings per Ordinary Share (Rs.)

19,263.33

-

19,263.33

4,259.50

10.00

4.52

80,423.17

-

80,423.17

4,259.50

10.00

18.88

40. Commitments and Con�ngencies (To the extent not provided for) 

 (i)  Capital Commitments:

  Es�mated amount of capital contracts remaining to be executed and not provided for  Rs.9,713.01 lakh (March 31, 2023: Rs. 

6,536.42 lakhs).

 (ii) Con�ngencies:

  a) OPGC and OHPC had ini�ally submi�ed gurantees to Canara Bank & Punjab Na�onal Bank for Rs.32,979.20 lakh (Canara 

Bank for Rs.15,392 lakh & PNB for Rs.17,587.20 lakh) for issuance of performance bank gurantee on behalf of OCPL  for 

Manoharpur & Dip-side manoharpur coal blocks in favour of Nominated Authority, MoC, GoI. Now, consequent to 

acuisa�on of OHPC shares by Govt. of Odisha on 30-12-2022, OPGC has provided the corporate guarantee for 

Rs.26,383.36 for issuance of the above Bank gurantee to MoC. The remaining cash margin of Rs.6,595.84 lakh has been 

provided by OCPL for issuance of performance bank gurantee.

  b) Arbitra�on between BGR Mining & OCPL commenced on 30.12.2020 based on no�ce for Arbitra�on served by BGR 

mining on coal quality dispute as per MSA. The claim amount as per the arbitra�on was Rs. 22,00.72 lakh and 

Rs.18,96.07 lakh with interest @ 12% . The judgement awarded by the Arbitra�on court  on 30-06-2022.  Subsequently, 

an appeal u/s.34 of the Arbitra�on and Concilia�on Act (the Act), 1996 was filed by the company before the Commercial 

Court, Bhubaneswar challenging the above Arbitra�on order.  The commercial court on 19th June, 2024 has dismissed 

the applica�on of OCPL u/s. 34 of the Act. The decision of Commercial Court is being challenged in District Court, 

Bhubaneswar. The relevant appeal as the verdict of the Commercial Court is not in the interest of OCPL/OPGC.

  c) The Board of OCPL in its 55th mee�ng had approved in principle to the release the R&R benefits to 9 married daughters 

of Manoharpur & Ghumudasan Village as per the provisions of Odisha R&R policy 2006 (vide circular No-RDM-RRC-

CLRFIC0006-201/5245, Dated-17/5/2021, D&DM, GoO). Out of the said 9 married daughters, 7 had filed WPC case at 

Honb'le High Court. Honb'le High Court subsequently forwarded the case for enquiry to 'RDC, Samabalpur' vide order 

dated 27-04-2023. Therea�er, RDC vide order dated 01-12-2023 in respect of the above 7 cases out of which, 5 cases are 

declared as the eligible for R&R benefits and 2 cases have been rejected under Manoharpur project. Subesquently, Sub-

collector cum Sub divisional Magistrate, Sundargarh vide le�er no- 2316 dated 17.03.2024  has submi�ed a list of 37 no. 

of married daughter (including those 5 as approved by RDC vide order dated 01-12-2023) eligible for R&R benefits of 

village 'Sanghumuda and Manoharpur' acquired by OCPL and directed to Tahasildar, Hemgir for necessary inclusion in 

revised R&R matrix. Since, RDC being the authority for approving the R&R en�tlements, the company has provided 

liability for the 5 married daughters in favour of which RDC has already conducted an enquiry and declared as eligible for 

R&R benefits.  Hence, pending the approval of RDC for the remaining 32 married daughters , the company assessed to 

be con�ngently liable for the same. 

   The approximate con�gency towards Cash compensa�on in this reagrd will be Rs.660.73 lakh plus R&R benefits under 

the scheme 'Annuity' for a period of 30 years. The demand from the Govt.  authority in this reagrd, is yet to be received 

by the company.
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41. Corporate: Social Responsibility Expenses (CSR)

As per Sec�on 135 of the Companies Act 2013,  the Company is required to spend, in every financial year, at least two per cent of the average 
net profits of the Company made during the three immediately preceding financial years in accordance with its CSR Policy.The details of CSR 
expenses for the year are as under:

Par�culars Year ended March 31, 2024 Year ended March 31, 2023

(Rupees in Lakhs) 

A. Amount required to be spent during the year 

(i)  Gross amount ( 2% of average net profit as per Sec�on 135 of 
 Companies Act, 2013) 

(ii) Surplus arising out of CSR Projects 

(iii) Set off available from previous year   

(iv) Total CSR obliga�on for the year 

         [(i)+(ii)-(iii)]

B. Amount approved by the Board to be spent during the year 
(Budgeted)

C. Amount spent during the year on : 

 a) Construc�on / acquisi�on of any asset  

 b) On purposes other than (a) above

Total

D. Set off available for succeeding years 
E. Amount unspent during the year

864.32

-

-

864.32

865.70

 

-

516.12

516.12

-                                
349.58

135.73

-

-

135.73

225.30

 

-

111.68

111.68

-                                
24.05

(i) 

(ii)  Break-up of CSR expenses under major heads is as under.

Par�culars Year ended March 31, 2024 Year ended March 31, 2023

(Rupees in Lakhs) 

1. Educa�on

2. Health

3. Water & Sanita�on

4. Environment

5. Sports & Culture

6. Skill Development

7. Other Rural Infrastructure

Total

9.23

  15.75

10.70

207.95

4.93

29.95

237.60

516.11

35.52

16.43

9.40

-

19.80

5.00

25.53

111.68
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a) No proceedings have been ini�ated or pending against the company under the Benami Transac�ons (Prohibi�on) Act,1988.

b) The company has not been declared as a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial ins�tu�on or any other lender.

c) The company has no cases of any charges or sa�sfac�on yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory �me limits.

d) The company has not enetered into any transac�on with the companies struck off under sec�on-248 of the Companies Act, 2013.

e) The quarterly returns/statements  filled by the company with the Banks are in agreement with the books of account. 

f)  Disclosure of Ra�os:

Odisha Coal and Power Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements
42. Addi�onal Regulatory Informa�ons:

Par�culars As at March 2024 Numerator/DenominatorAs at March 2023

Current Ra�o

Debt Equity Ra�o

Debt service Coverage Ra�o

Return on Equity  (%)

Inventory Turnover Ra�o

Trade Receivable Turnover Ra�o

Trade Payable Turnover Ra�o

Net Capital T.O.Ra�o

Net Profit Ra�o

Return on Capital Employed

Return on Investment

1.61

0.48

2.90

14.50

40.07

7.25

-

40.64

0.16

0.16

-

1.07

0.71

8.21

89.19

                  32.29

17.23

-

   20.87

0.44

0.59

-

Current Asset/Current Liability

Total Borrowings/Total Equity

(EBITDA)/(Principal due+Interest)

(Profit a�er Tax)/(Average Total Equity)

(Cost of Goods Sold)/(Average Inventory)

(Revenue from opera�on)/(Trade receivable) 

-

(Net Sales)/(Average working capital)

(Profit a�er Tax)/(Total Sales) 
(EBIT)/(Capital Employed)

(EBITDA)/(Cost of Investment)

Explana�on for change in the Ra�os by more than 25%:

i) The current ra�o is at 1.61 in current year as against 1.07 in previous year is primarily due to increase in stock and trade receivable 
during the year.

ii) The debt-equity ra�o is at 0.48 in current year as against 0.71 in previous year is primarily due to repayment & prepayment of term 
loans during the year.

iii) The Debt service coverage ra�o is at 2.90 in current year as against 8.21 in previous year is primarily due to repayment  of term loans 
and decrease in profit during the year.

iv) Return on equity is at 14.50 in current year as against 89.19 in previous year is due to decrease in profit during the current year.

v) The Trade receivable turnover ra�o is at 7.25 in current year as against 17.23 in previous year is due to decrease in revenue from 
opera�on in the current year. vi) The increase in Net capital turnover ra�o is primarily due to decrease in average working capital.

vii)  The decrease in net profit ra�o to 0.16 in current year as against 0.44 in previous year is primarily due to decrease in revenue and 
profit in current year. viii) The decrease in return on capital employed is primarily due to decrease in profit a�er tax during the current 
year.

viii)  The decrease in return on capital employed is primarily due to decrease in profit a�er tax during the current year.

In terms of our report a�ached.   For and on behalf of the Board 
For Singh Ray Mishra & Co
Chartered Accountants
F.R.N: 318121E
   Manas Ranjan Rout   Sambit Parija 
   Director & CEO  Director
CA Jiten Kumar Mishra
Partner   R K Aich            Ajaya Kumar Majhi 
M.N: 052796   DGM (Finance)             Company Secretary
Place : Bhubaneswar
Date : 26.09.2024, UDIN : 24052T96BKDLDY2621       Date : 21.09.2024

Sd/-

Sd/- Sd/-

Sd/- Sd/-
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H.O.: Premise No.4(P) & 5(P), 3rd Floor, BMC Panchadeep Complex, Bhouma Nagar, Unit - IV Market,   
Bhubaneswar-751001, Odisha 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To
 The Members of Odisha Coal and Power Limited (OCPL)
 Bhubaneswar
 CIN: U10100OR2015SGC018623

 Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Qualified Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Financial Statements of Odisha Coal and Power Limited (OCPL) (“the Company”), which 

comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2024, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive 

Income), the Statement of Cash Flows and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the 

Financial Statements including a summary of the material accoun�ng policies and other explanatory informa�on. 

In our opinion and to the best of our informa�on and according to the explana�ons given to us, except for the effect of the 

ma�ers described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion sec�on of our report, the aforesaid Financial Statements give the 

informa�on required by the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in 

conformity with the Indian Accoun�ng Standards prescribed under sec�on 133 of the Act and other accoun�ng principles 

generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2024, and its profit and total 

comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for qualified opinion

• During the Financial Year 2023-24 the company has dispatched 64,84,147.10 Metric Tonne (MT) of Coal to Odisha Power 

Genera�on Corpora�on Limited (OPGC) under fuel supply agreement and 18,70,654.33 Metric Tonne (MT) sold under E-

Auc�on. The quality of coal sale is usually determined by the third-party sampling agency in the case of coal dispatched to 

OPGC, where as in case of E-auc�ons no such third-party sampling has been conducted by the management. Therefore, 

we are unable to ascertain the actual grade/quality of coal sold under e-auc�on and its impact on the financial statement 

of the company.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Audi�ng (“SAs”) specified under Sec�on 143 (10) of the Act. Our 

responsibili�es under those Standards are further described in the Auditors' Responsibili�es for the Audit of the   Financial 

Statements sec�on of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the 

Ins�tute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the 

Financial Statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules there under, and we have fulfilled our other ethical 

responsibili�es in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we 

have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified opinion on the financial statements.

Emphasis of Ma�ers

We draw a�en�on to the following:

1. A�en�on is invited to note no 8 (regarding forest land 495.35 Acre out of which 491.27 Acre is in possession and 

balance of 4.08 Acre is under sub-judice but the cost of whole land is capitalized under “right to use”.
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2. Invi�ng a�en�on to note no 41 of the financial statement, it is observed that the company is not complying with its 

laid down CSR policy which is “CSR ini�a�ve will be taken up primarily in the peripheral areas/direct impact zones of 

OCPL command areas i.e., within 16 kms radius of its working/establishments. While doing so it is to be ensured that 

at least 80% of the total CSR expenditure of a financial year be spent in the areas around the place of 

opera�on/establishment of OCPL”, whereas the company is not adhering to the same.

3. A�en�on is invited to Note 22 (ii) As per Ind As 19: Defined benefit plans may be unfunded, or they may be wholly or 

partly funded by contribu�ons by an en�ty, and some�mes its employees, into an en�ty, or fund that is legally 

separate from the repor�ng en�ty and from which the employee benefits are paid. Provisions for gratui�es and leave 

encashment has been made in the books of accounts, however fund has not been earmarked for the same.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of these ma�ers.

Key Audit Ma�ers

Repor�ng of key audit ma�ers as per SA 701, is not applicable to the Company as it is not a listed company within the meaning 

of sec�on 2(52) of the Companies Act 2013.

Informa�on Other than the Financial Statements and Auditors' Report Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors are responsible for the prepara�on of the other informa�on. The other informa�on 

comprises of the informa�on included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board's Report including Annexure to 

Board's Report, Business Responsibility Report and Corporate Governance Report, but does not include the Financial 

Statements and our auditors' report thereon. 

Our opinion on the Financial Statements does not cover the other informa�on and we do not express any form of assurance or 

conclusion thereon. 

In connec�on with our audit of the Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the other informa�on iden�fied above 

when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other informa�on is materially inconsistent with the 

Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other informa�on; we are 

required to report that fact. We have concluded that such material misstatement of the other informa�on exists in respect of 

ma�ers described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion sec�on above.

When we read the full Annual report which is expected to be made available to us a�er the date of this auditors' report, if we 

conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the ma�er to those charged with 

governance.

Management's Responsibility for the Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors are responsible for the ma�ers stated in Sec�on 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the 

Act”) with respect to the prepara�on of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial posi�on, 

financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in 

accordance with the accoun�ng principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accoun�ng Standards (Ind AS) 

specified under Sec�on 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and the Companies (Indian 

Accoun�ng Standards)Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accoun�ng 

records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preven�ng and 

detec�ng frauds and other irregulari�es; selec�on and applica�on of appropriate accoun�ng policies; making judgments and 

es�mates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementa�on and maintenance of adequate internal financial 

controls, that were opera�ng effec�vely for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accoun�ng records, relevant to 

the prepara�on and presenta�on of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material 

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the company's ability to con�nue as a going 

concern, disclosing, as applicable, ma�ers related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accoun�ng unless 

management either intends to liquidate the company or to cease opera�ons or has no realis�c alterna�ve but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial repor�ng process.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our objec�ves are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial Statements as a whole are free from material 

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors' report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance 

is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material 

misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the 

aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users, taken on the basis of these 

Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skep�cism 

throughout the audit. We also:

• Iden�fy and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error, design 

and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to 

provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detec�ng a material misstatement resul�ng from fraud is higher than for 

one resul�ng from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, inten�onal omissions, misrepresenta�ons, or the 

override of internal control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate 

in the circumstances. Under sec�on 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our 

opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls system in place with reference to financial 

statement and the opera�ng effec�veness of such controls.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accoun�ng policies used and the reasonableness of accoun�ng es�mates and related 

disclosures made by management.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accoun�ng and, based on the audit 

evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or condi�ons that may cast significant doubt 

on the Company's ability to con�nue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required 

to draw a�en�on in our auditors' report to the related disclosures in the Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are 

inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our 

auditors' report. However, future events or condi�ons may cause the Company to cease to con�nue as a going concern.

• Evaluate the overall presenta�on, structure and content of the Financial Statements, including the disclosures, and 

whether the Financial Statements represent the underlying transac�ons and events in a manner that achieves fair 

presenta�on.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes it probable 

that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider 

quan�ta�ve materiality and qualita�ve factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evalua�ng the results of our 

work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any iden�fied misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other ma�ers, the planned scope and �ming of the 

audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we iden�fy during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements 

regarding independence, and to communicate with them all rela�onships and other ma�ers that may reasonably be thought 

to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020(“the Order”), as amended, issued by the Central 

Government of India in terms of sub-sec�on (11) of sec�on 143 of the Act and on the basis of such checks as we 

considered appropriate and according to the informa�on and explana�on given to us during the course of audit, we 

set out in the “Annexure A” statement on the ma�ers specified in paragraph 3 and 4 of the order to the extent 

applicable. 

2. As required by Sec�on 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the informa�on and explana�ons which to the best of our knowledge and 

belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

b) Except for the effects of the ma�er described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion sec�on above and ma�ers 

stated in paragraph 4 in our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the 

Company so far as it appears from our examina�on of those books.

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit & Loss (Including the Statement of Comprehensive Income), the 

Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this report are in agreement with the 

Books of Accounts.

d) Except for the effects of the ma�er described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion sec�on above, in our opinion 

the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Indian Accoun�ng Standards specified under Sec�on 133 

of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, Companies (Indian Accoun�ng 

Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended;

e) As per no�fica�on No. GSR 463 (E) dated 5th June 2015 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, 

Government of India, provisions of Sec�on 164 (2) of the Companies Act, 2013 rela�ng to disqualifica�on of 

directors are not applicable to the Company, being a Government Company.

f) The modifica�on rela�ng to the maintenance of accounts and other ma�ers connected therewith are as 

stated in the paragraph 2(b) above on repor�ng under sec�on 143(3)(b) and paragraph 4 below on repor�ng 

under Rule 11(g).

g) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial repor�ng of the Company and 

the opera�ng effec�veness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B”.

h)  With respect to other ma�ers to be included in the Auditors' Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the 

Companies (Audit and Auditors') Rules 2014, as amended, in our opinion, and to the best of our informa�on 

and according to the explana�on given to us:

 i) The company has disclosed the impact, if any, of pending li�ga�ons on its financial statements as of 

31/03/2024 refer “Annexure C” of our report.

 ii) As per informa�on and explana�ons given to us the company has entered long term contracts with 

mine operator, OPGC and having no deriva�ve contracts for which there were any material foreseeable 

losses. However, the dispute between the company and BGR mining (the mining operator) is pending 

at District Court Bhubaneswar. Reference is invited to Note No 40(ii)(b) of the financial statement.

  iii) As per informa�on and explana�on given to us, there were no amount which were required to be 

transfer to the investor educa�on and protec�on fund by the company. 

 iv) (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as 

disclosed in the notes to accounts, no funds (which are material either individually or in the 

aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share 

premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person or 

en�ty, including foreign en�ty (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in 
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wri�ng or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in 

other persons or en��es iden�fied in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company 

(“Ul�mate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the 

Ul�mate Beneficiaries; 

  (b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as 

disclosed in the notes to accounts, no funds (which are material either individually or in the 

aggregate) have been received by the Company from any person or en�ty, including foreign 

en�ty (“Funding Par�es”), with the understanding, whether recorded in wri�ng or otherwise, 

that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or en��es 

iden�fied in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ul�mate 

Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ul�mate 

Beneficiaries;

  (c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the 

circumstances, nothing has come to our no�ce that has caused us to believe that the 

representa�ons under sub-clause iv(a) and iv(b) of Rule 11(e) , contain any material 

misstatement.

 v)      With respect to the ma�ers to be included in the Auditors' Report in accordance with the requirements 

of Sec�on 197 (16) of the Act, as amended, we are informed that the provisions of Sec�on 197 read 

with Schedule V of the Act rela�ng to managerial remunera�on are not applicable to the Company, 

being a Government Company in terms of no�fica�on No. GSR 463 (E) dated 5th June 2015 issued by 

the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of India.

  i) The company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year under audit.  

3) As required by sec�on 143(5) of the Act, we have complied with the direc�ons indica�ng the areas to be examined by 

the statutory auditors during the course of audit of annual accounts of OCPL for the year 2023-24 issued by the 

Comptroller and Auditor General of India. The observa�on and findings against each of the points as required by the 

C&AG is given in “Annexure-D”.

4) Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 for maintaining books of account using accoun�ng 

so�ware which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and it is implemented.

For Singh Ray Mishra & Co
Chartered Accountants
[FRN:318121E]

(CA J.K. Mishra)
Partner
Membership No: 052796
UDIN: 24052796BKDLDY2621
Date: 26/09/2024
Place: Bhubaneswar

Sd/-
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“Annexure A” to the Independent Auditors' Report

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading 'Report on Other Legal & Regulatory Requirement' of our report of even date to 

the financial statements of the company Odisha Coal and Power Limited for the year ended March 31, 2024)

In terms of the informa�on and explana�on sought by us and given by the Company and the books of account and records 

examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our knowledge and belief, we state that.

(i).(a)(A) The company has maintained proper records showing full par�culars, including quan�ta�ve details and situa�on of 

 property, plant & equipment.

(i).(a)(B) The company has maintained proper records showing full par�culars of Intangible assets.

(i).(b)  The company has been conduc�ng physical verifica�on of Property, plant and equipment's and Right of Use assets in 

view of its policy. Such policy requires the physical verifica�on of fixed assets once in a block of three years. In our 

opinion, the periodicity of physical verifica�on is reasonable having regard to the size of the company and the nature 

of its assets. 

(i).(c)  According to the informa�on and explana�on given to us, and on the basis of our examina�on of the records of the 

company, the �tle deeds of the immovable proper�es (other than the leasehold proper�es) are held in the name of 

company. 

(i).(d)  The company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment during the year ended 31st March 2024.

(i).(e)  There are no proceedings ini�ated or are pending against the company for holding any benami property under the 

prohibi�on of benami property transac�on act 1988 and rules made there under.

(ii).(a)  As per the informa�on, the company has carried out physical verifica�on of inventories at reasonable intervals. 

There is no discrepancy of 10% or more in aggregate for each class of inventory. 

(ii).(b)  The company has been sanc�oned working capital limit of  fi�y crore rupees in aggregate, from banks on the basis of 

security of current assets during the Financial Year 2023-24.The quarterly returns /statements filed by the company 

with banks are in agreement with the books of accounts of the company.

(iii).   During the year, the company has not provided loans, advances in the nature of loans, stood guarantee or provided 

security to companies, firms, limited liability partnership or any other par�es. Accordingly, the requirement to report 

under this clause of the order is not applicable to the company.  Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(iii) (a) (b) (c) 

(d) (e) (f) of the order is not applicable.

(iv).   In our opinion and according to the explana�on given to us, the company has complied with the provisions of sec�on 

185 and 186 of the Companies Act, in respect of Loans, Investments made and security /guarantees provided, as 

applicable.

(v).  The company has neither accepted any deposits from the public nor accepted any amounts which are deemed to be 

deposits within the meaning of sec�on 73 to 76 of the act and the rules made thereunder, to the extent applicable. 

Accordingly, the requirement to report under this clause of the order is not applicable to the company.

(vi).  We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the company pursuant to the rules made by the 

central Govt. for the maintenance of cost records under sec�on148 (1) of the act, and are of the opinion that prima-

facie the specified accounts and records have been made and maintained. We have not, however, made a detailed 

examina�on.

(vii).(a)  Undisputed statutory dues including goods and service tax, provident fund, income tax, employee state insurance& 

other statutory dues have generally being deposited with the appropriate authori�es. 

(vii).(b)  According to the informa�on and explana�on given to us, there are no statutory dues at the last day of the financial 

year which have not been deposited on account of dispute as per the record of the company.

(viii).  According to the informa�on and explana�ons given to us and on the basis of our examina�on of the records of the 

Company, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transac�ons, previously unrecorded as income in the 
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books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year.

(ix).(a)   According to the informa�on and explana�ons given to us and on the basis of our examina�on of the records of the 

Company, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans and borrowing or in the payment of interest thereon 

to any lender.

(ix).(b)  According to the informa�on and explana�ons given to us and on the basis of our examina�on of the records of the 

Company, the company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial ins�tu�on or Govt. or any 

Govt. authori�es.

(ix).(c)  Term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.

(ix).(d)  On an overall examina�on of the financial statements of the company, no funds raised on short term basis have been 

used for long term purposes by the company.

(ix).(e)  The company has not taken any fund from any en�ty or person on account of or to meet the obliga�on of its 

subsidiary, its associates or joint ventures and accordingly the requirement to report under this clause is not 

applicable to the companies.

(ix).(f)  The company has not raised loans during the year on pledge of securi�es held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or 

associates companies, accordingly the requirement of report under this clause is not applicable to the company.

(x).(a)  The company has not raised any money during the year by way of ini�al public offer/further public offers (including 

debt instrument). Hence the requirement to report under this clause of the order is not applicable to the company.

(x).(b)  The company has not made any preferen�al allotment or private placement of share/fully or par�ally or op�onally 

conver�ble debentures during the year under audit and hence, the requirement of report under this clause of  order 

is not applicable to the company. 

(xi).(a)  No fraud by the company or no fraud on the company has been no�ced or reported during the year.

(xi).(b)  During the year, no report under subsec�on (12) of sec�on 143 of the act has been filed by the cost 

auditor/secretarial auditor or by statutory auditor in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule  13 of companies within 

(Audit and Auditors ) rules 2014 with the central Govt.

(xi).(c)  As informed to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by the company during the 

year.

(xii).  According to the informa�on and explana�ons given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, clause 

3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

(xiii).  Transac�on with related par�es are in compliance with sec�on 177 and 188 of the act, where applicable and the 

details have been disclosed in the notes to financial statements, as required by the applicable accoun�ng standard.

(xiv). (a)  The company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of the business.

(xiv).(b)  The internal audit reports of the company issued �ll the date of the audit report, for the period under audit have been 

considered by us.

(xv).  The company has not entered into any non-cash transac�on with its directors or persons connected with its directors 

and hence requirement to report on the clause of the order is not applicable to the company.

(xvi). (a)  The provision of sec�on 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India act 1934 (2 of 1934) are not applicable to the company. 

Accordingly, the requirement to the report on this clause of the order is not applicable to the company.

(xvi).(b)  The Company is not required to be registered under Sec�on 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Accordingly, 

clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

(xvi).(c)  The company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regula�on made by Reserve Bank of India. 

Accordingly, the requirement to the report under this clause of the order is not applicable to the company.
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(xvi).(d)  In view of facts stated at (xvi)(c), the requirement to report on the clause of order is not applicable to the company.

(xvii).  The company has not incurred cash losses in the current financial year and in immediately preceding financial year.

(xviii).  There has been no resigna�on of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly requirement to report on this 

clause is not applicable to the company.

(xix).  On the basis of the financial ra�o disclosed in note.42 to the financial statement, ageing and expect date of 

realiza�on of financial assets and payment of financial liabili�es, other informa�on accompanying the financial 

statement, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examina�on of the 

evidence suppor�ng the assump�on, nothing has come to our a�en�on, which causes us to believe that any material 

uncertainty exist in the date of audit report that company is not capable of mee�ng its liabili�es exis�ng at the date of 

Balance Sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the Balance Sheet date. We, however, state 

that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the company. We further state that our repor�ng is based on 

the facts upto the date of report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabili�es fall in due 

within a period of one year from the Balance Sheet date, will get discharged by the company as and when they fall 

due.

(xx). (a)  There is no unspent amount that are required to be transferred to a fund specified in schedule VII of the Act, in 

respect of other than ongoing project, in compliance with second proviso to subsec�on (5) of sec�on 135 of the said 

Act.

(b)  The unspent amount of Rs349.58 lakh in respect of ongoing project has been transferred to a special account in 

compliance with the provision of subsec�on-(6) of sec�on 135 of Companies Act.

For Singh Ray Mishra & Co
Chartered Accountants
[FRN:318121E]

(CA J.K. Mishra)
Partner
Membership No: 052796
UDIN: 24052796BKDLDY2621
Date: 26/09/2024
Place: Bhubaneswar

Sd/-
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“Annexure B” to the Independent Auditor's Report of even dates on the Financial Statements of Odisha 

Coal and Power Ltd.

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-sec�on 3 of Sec�on 143 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial repor�ng of Odisha Coal and Power Ltd. (“the Company”) as of 

March 31, 2024 in conjunc�on with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal 

control over financial repor�ng criteria established by the Company considering the essen�al components of internal control 

stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Repor�ng issued by the Ins�tute of 

Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibili�es include the design, implementa�on and maintenance of adequate 

internal financial controls that were opera�ng effec�vely for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, 

including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the preven�on and detec�on of frauds and errors, 

the accuracy and completeness of the accoun�ng records, and the �mely prepara�on of reliable financial informa�on, as 

required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial repor�ng based on our 

audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 

Repor�ng (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Audi�ng, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under sec�on 

143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an 

audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Ins�tute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and 

the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 

assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial repor�ng was established and maintained and if 

such controls operated effec�vely in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls 

system over financial repor�ng and their opera�ng effec�veness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial 

repor�ng included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial repor�ng, assessing the risk that a 

material weakness exists, and tes�ng and evalua�ng the design and opera�ng effec�veness of internal control based on the 

assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material 

misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on 

the Company's internal financial controls system over financial repor�ng.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Repor�ng. 

A company's internal financial control over financial repor�ng is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance 

regarding the reliability of financial repor�ng and the prepara�on of financial statements for external purposes in accordance 

with generally accepted accoun�ng principles. A company's internal financial control over financial repor�ng includes those 

policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect 

the transac�ons and disposi�ons of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transac�ons are 

recorded as necessary to permit prepara�on of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accoun�ng 

principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authoriza�ons of 

management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding preven�on or �mely detec�on of 

unauthorized acquisi�on, use, or disposi�on of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial 

statements. 
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Inherent Limita�ons of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Repor�ng

Because of the inherent limita�ons of internal financial controls over financial repor�ng, including the possibility of collusion 

or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. 

Also, projec�ons of any evalua�on of the internal financial controls over financial repor�ng to future periods are subject to the 

risk that the internal financial control over financial repor�ng may become inadequate because of changes in condi�ons, or 

that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the Company has maintained, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls over financial 

repor�ng and such internal financial controls over financial repor�ng were opera�ng effec�vely as of March 31, 2024 , based 

on the internal control over financial repor�ng criteria established by the Company considering the essen�al components of 

internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Repor�ng issued by the 

Ins�tute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Singh Ray Mishra & Co
Chartered Accountants
[FRN:318121E]

(CA J.K. Mishra)
Partner
Membership No: 052796
UDIN: 24052796BKDLDY2621
Date: 26/09/2024
Place: Bhubaneswar

Sd/-
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“Annexure – C” to the Auditors' Report 

Odisha Coal and Power Ltd.  – Pending Li�ga�ons as on 31.03.2024 

No Case No 
Name of the 

Par�es 
Nature of the claim Village Current Status 

1 21261/2017 Juba� Kishan 
Married Daughter 
demanding R&R 

Manoharpur 
Rejected by RDC on 

01.12.2023 

2 21262/2017 Anjali Majhi 
Married Daughter 
demanding R&R 

Manoharpur 

Eligible for R&R 
En�tlement s per order of 

RDC passed on 
01.12.2023 

3 21263/2017 
Kumudini 

Kishan 
Married Daughter 
demanding R&R 

Manoharpur 

Eligible for R&R 
En�tlement s per order of 

RDC passed on 
01.12.2023 

4 21264/2017 Bhumi Kishan 
Married Daughter 
demanding R&R 

Manoharpur 

Eligible for R&R 
En�tlement s per order of 

RDC passed on 
01.12.2023 

5 21266/2017 
Suryakan� 

Bhaisal 
Married Daughter 
demanding R&R 

Manoharpur 

Eligible for R&R 
En�tlement s per order of 

RDC passed on 
01.12.2023 

6 21267/2017 Anjali Bhaisal 
Married Daughter 
demanding R&R 

Manoharpur 

Rejected by RDC on 
01.12.2023 as there is no 
provision in Orissa R&R 

Policy-2006 

7 21827/2017 Sukan� Amat 
Married Daughter 
demanding R&R 

Manoharpur 
Rejected by RDC on 

27.04.2023  

8 21260/2017 
Gitanjali 
Bhaisal 

Married Daughter 
demanding R&R 

Manoharpur 

Eligible for R&R 
En�tlement s per order of 

RDC passed on 
01.12.2023 

9 5425/2017 Suma� Majhi 
Married Daughter 
demanding R&R 

Manoharpur Pending at High Court 

10 
64/2017 Gitanjali Oram 

Married Daughter 
demanding R&R Manoharpur 

Pending at High Court 

11 
17403 / 

2016 
Dasarath Sai 

Challenging the 
cancella�on of FRA 

Pa�a 
Khatphalli Pending at High Court 

12 
17407 / 

2016 
Harid Sai 

Challenging the 
cancella�on of FRA 

Pa�a 
Khatphalli Pending at High Court 

13 
WPC 

17405/16 
Kangalu Majhi 

& Others 

Challenging the 
cancella�on of FRA 

Pa�a 
Khatphalli Pending at High Court 

14 
AP No-
1/2021 

BGR 
Mining&Infra 

LTD 
Arbitra�on   

Pending at District Court, 
BBSR 
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“Annexure – D” to the Auditors' Report 

Report on the Direc�ons of the Comptroller and Auditor general of India required under sub sec�on 5 of Sec�on 

143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

1 

 

 

 

2
 

 

 

3
 

 
 

 

 

Sector Specific Addi�onal Direc�ons:

1 

 
 

2
 

 

 

 

  

 
 

3
 

 

 

   

Whether the company has clear �tle/lease deeds for 
freehold and leasehold land respec�vely? If not 
please state the area of freehold and leasehold land 
for which �tle/lease deeds are not available? 

Whether there are any cases of waiver/ write off of 
debts/loans/interest etc., if yes, the reasons there 
for and the amount involved. 

Whether proper records are maintained for 
inventories lying with third par�es & assets received 
as gi�/grant(s) from Government or other 
authori�es. 

To the best of our knowledge and according 
to the explana�on and informa�on given to 
us, there are no case of waiver /write off or 
debts/ loans/ interest etc. during the period 
under audit. 

As per our observa�ons and the explana�ons 
given to us, no inventory is being kept or lying 
with third party.
No assets received as gi�/grants from 
government or other authori�es.

As per our observa�on and informa�on given 
to us, allotment and possession of private 
land of 1035.27 Acres and Govt Land of 
company through IDCO. Lease Deed of 
1033.08 acres of land, out of total 1035.27 
acres, have been completed in the favour of 
OCPL. Lease deed of balance 2.19 acre of pvt 
land is pending with IDCO.

Adequacy of steps to prevent encroachment of idle 
land owned by company may be examined. In case  
land of the company is encroached, under li�ga�on, 
not put to use or declared surplus, details may be 
provided.

Land under li�ga�on is 4.08 acres for which 
the company has filed case no  17403/ 2016, 
17407/ 2016,17405/2016 with Hon’ble High 
Court of Odisha.  

Whether land acquisi�on is involved in se�ng up 
new projects, report whether se�lement of dues 
done expedi�ously and is transparent manner in all 
cases. The cases of devia�on may please be detailed.

Acquisi�on & possession of land for 
Manoharpur block has already been 
completed and mining is in progress. 
However, land acquisi�on for dip-side 
Manoharpur coal block is completed under 
CBA Act. Govt has vested the said land with 
OCPL from the year 2020. Se�lement of dues 
amoun�ng to 187.92crore for dip side coal 
block in favour of Tahasildar, Hemgir was 
made and taken over the possession on said 
land. 

Whether the company has an effec�ve system for 
recovery of revenue as per contractual terms and the 
revenue is properly accounted in the books of 
accounts in compliance with the applicable 
accoun�ng standards?    

Yes, Company has recovered revenue as per 
the contractual terms and it is properly 
accounted. 
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4
 

Not Applicable

 

5
 

 

 

 

Not Applicable, as this is not a thermal 
power genera�on company.

 

 

6

 
 

Has the company entered into revenue sharing 
agreements with private par�es for extrac�on of 
coal at pitheads and it adequately protects the 
financial interests of the company?

 

 

The company does not have revenue sharing 
agreement with third par�es. However,

 

the 
company does have entered into Mine 
Service Agreement (MSA) with third party 
M/S BGR Mining & Infra Limited for 
extrac�on of coal at pitheads as Mine 
Operator (MO). 

 

 

7

 
 

Does the company have a project system for 
reconcilia�on of quan�ty/quality coal ordered and 
received and whether grade of coal moisture and 
demurrage etc. are properly recorded in the books 
of account?

 

 

Yes, the quality and quan�ty reconcilia�on 
of coal is periodically done and recorded in 
the books of accounts.

 

The company also

 

have �e -up with third 
party agency, named “Quality Council of 
India” (QCI) for quality analysis of coal and 
moisture content therein

 

only for supply of 
coal to OPGC. The quality report of QCI is 
duly recorded and considered for billing 
purposes.

 

But there was no third-party

 

sampling in case of coal sold on e-auc�on 
during the period of audit.

 
 

 
 

  

8 How much share of free power was due to state 
government and whether the same was calculated 
as per the agreed terms and depicted in the 
accounts as per accepted accoun�ng norms? 

Not Applicable, as this is not a power 
genera�on company. 

9 In the case of hydroelectric projects, the water 
discharge is as per policy/guidelines issued by the 
state Government to maintain biodiversity. For not 
maintaining it penalty paid/payable may be 
reported.

 

Not Applicable, as this is not a hydro power 
genera�on company. 

 
10

  
Whether the company has taken adequate 
measures to reduce the adverse effect on 
environment as per established norms and taken 
up adequate measures

 
for the relief and 

rehabilita�on of displaced people.
 

 
The Company has taken adequate measures 
to reduce the adverse effect on environment 
such as planta�on in and around the mine 
area, water sprinkling provision and 
recharge pond etc. at mines.

 
 

With respect  to relief and rehabilita�on of 
displaced people, apart from

 

 construc�on of two R&R colony, and shi�ing 
of displaced families (DFs) to these colonies, 

   

How much cost has been incurred on abandoned  
projects and out of this how much cost has been 
wri�en off?

In case of Thermal Power projects, compliance of 
various pollu�on control Acts and the impact  
thereof including u�liza�on and disposal of ash and 
the policy of the company in this regard, may be 
checked and commented upon. 
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the company makes payments of monthly 
annui�es to the DFs.

 

Further, the company also properly 
redresses day -to-day grievances of the DFs 
at frequent intervals.

 

11
 

Whether the company had obtained the requisite 
statutory compliances that was required under 
mining and environmental rules and regula�ons?

 Yes, the company has obtained the requisite 
statutory compliances such as Environment 
Clearance, Consent to Establish, Consent to 
Operate and various others compliances.

 

12

 

Whether the overburden removal from mines and 
back filling of mines are commensurate with the 
mining Ac�vity?

 As explained to

 

us backfilling of overburden 
(OB) recommended as per mine plan (Rev-
III) up to 5th

 

year is 54.42 Mcum. Actual 
backfilling made upto 31st

 

March 2024 is 
31.89 Mcum. The varia�on in the quan�ty is 
on account of availability of limited dumping 
spaces, a�er

 

following statutory require 

 

13

 

Whether the company has disbanded and 
discounted mines, if so, the payment of 
corresponding dead rent there against may be 
verified.

 
The mine is opera�onal. Hence, no dead rent 
has been paid. 

 

14

 

Whether the company's financial statements had 
properly accounted for the effect of Rehabilita�on 
Ac�vity and Mine Closure Plan?

 
The rehabilita�on ac�vity such as R&R 
compensa�on and etc. towards land 
acquisi�on has been accounted as a part of 
land cost and day to day maintenance of 
R&R colonies have been accounted as 
revenue expenditure in the Financial 
Statement. The company follows mine 
closure plan as stated in the notes no 
3.08(viii)

 

forming part of the financial 
statement. 

 

 

-ments.

For Singh Ray Mishra & Co

Chartered Accountants

[FRN:318121E]

(CA J.K. Mishra)

Partner

Membership No: 052796

UDIN: 24052796BKDLDY2621

Date: 26/09/2024

Place: Bhubaneswar

Sd/-
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ANNEXURE- IV
Management reply Statutory Audit Observa�ons for the FY.2023-24

Sl. 
No. Observa�ons Management reply

1. During the Financial Year 2023-24 the company has 
dispatched 64,84,147.10 Metric Tonne (MT) of Coal to 
Odisha Power Genera�on Corpora�on Limited (OPGC) 
under fuel supply agreement and 18,70,654.33 Metric 
Tonne (MT) sold under E-Auc�on. The quality of coal 
sale is usually determined by the third-party sampling 
agency in the case of coal dispatched to OPGC, where 
as in case of E-auc�ons no such third-party sampling 
has been conducted by the management. Therefore, 
we are unable to ascertain the actual grade/quality of 
coal sold under e-auc�on and its impact on the 
financial statement of the company.

2. A�en�on is invited to note no 8 (regarding forest land 
495.35 Acre out of which 491.27 Acre is in possession 
and balance of 4.08 Acre is under sub-judice but the 
cost of whole land is capitalized under “right to use”.

To ensure the dispatches are within G-14 grade, OCPL has 
conducted random sampling from the stock while receipt 
and before dispatch of coal. From the random sampling 
analysis report it has been ascertained that the average 
GCV of coal received at stock is 3324 Kcal while the average 
GCV of despatched coal is 3168.6 Kcal. Since, the 
liquida�on of stock was made a�er substan�al period from 
stocking, the GCV of coal before despatch is reduced from 
the received coal. Hence coal despatched through e-
auc�on is well within G-14 grade.

Ini�ally, the possession of forest land were obtained on 
30.07.2016.  However, “The Hon'ble High Court, Odisha 
vide their interim order dated 05.10.2016 and 06.10.2016 
directed to maintain status-quo for 4.08 acres in the village 
Kathafali inside Manoharpur coal block �ll finaliza�on of 
the writ pe��on. Payment towards cost of whole land has 
been made before possession and recorded in books of 
accounts.
Accordingly, the en�re land cost has been recognized as 
“Right to Use” on the basis of the possession and the status 
of 4.08 acres of forest land is s�ll under sub-judice before 
the Hon'ble High Court. Mere sub-judice of some por�on of 
the land will not change the nature of asset and hence 
capitaliza�on is permi�ed in terms of the accoun�ng 
standards.  
The facts cited above has been suitably disclosed at note 
no.8 of the financial statement.

3. Invi�ng a�en�on to note no. 41 of the financial 
statement, it is observed that the company is not 
complying with its laid down CSR policy which is “CSR 
ini�a�ve will be taken up primarily in the peripheral 
areas/ direct impact zones of OCPL command areas 
i .e . ,  within  16 kms radius  of  i ts  working / 
establishments. While doing so it is to be ensured that 
at least 80% of the total CSR expenditure of a financial 
year be spent in the areas around the place of 
opera�on/ establishment of OCPL”, whereas the 
company is not adhering to the same.

As per CSR Policy of OCPL, Point No-5.2 ( Budget & 
Expenditure) i.e. “CSR ini�a�ve will be taken up primarily in 
the peripheral areas/direct impact zones of OCPL command 
areas i.e., within 16 kms radius of its working/ 
establishments. While doing so it is to be ensured that at 
least 80% of the total CSR expenditure of a financial year be 
spent in the areas around the place of opera�on/ 
establishment of OCPL
However, the above fund can be can be readjusted as per 
the requirement based on the recommenda�on of CSR 
commi�ee of Board level and approval of the competent. 
Accordingly CSR budget has been readjusted as per the 
approval of Competent Authority based on the 
recommenda�on of CSR commi�ee/BoDs.

4. A�en�on is invited to Note 22 (ii) As per Ind As 19: 
Defined benefit plans may be unfunded, or they may 
be wholly or partly funded by contribu�ons by an 
en�ty, and some�mes its employees, into an en�ty, or 
fund that is legally separate from the repor�ng en�ty 
and from which the employee benefits are paid. 
Provisions for gratui�es and leave encashment has 
been made in the books of accounts, however fund has 
not been earmarked for the same.

The provisions for gratui�es and leave encashment will be 
earmarked in the financial  year 2024-25.
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ANNEXURE- V

OFFICE OF THE ACCOUNTANT GENERAL (AUDIT-II)

ODISHA, BHUBANESWAR 

ceneuesKeekeÀej (uesKeeHejer#ee-II) keÀe³ee&ue³e
Deesefæ[Mee, YegJeveséej - 751001

He$e meb.: AMG-I(V)/Accts/OCPL/2023-24/IR No. 22/24-25/567                      Date : 19.12.2024

To

 The Managing Director,

 Odisha Coal and Power Limited,

 Bhubaneswar - 751012

Sub : Comments of the comptroller & Auditor General of India Under Section 143(6)(b) 
of the Companies Act, 2013 on the accounts of the ODISHA COAL AND POWER 
LIMITED (OCPL) for the year 2023-24.

Sir,

 I am to enclose herewith the comments of the Comptroller and Auditor General of 
India under Section 143(6)(b) of the Companies Act, 2013 on the accounts of ODISHA 
COAL AND POWER LIMITED (OCPL) for the year 2023-24.

 Three copies of the Annual Reports placed before the Annual General Meeting of the 
Company my please be furnished to this office indicating the date of the meeting.

Yours faithfully,

Sd/-

Deputy Accountant General / AMG-I

Encl: As above

Keshari Nagar, Bhubaneswar - 751001. Tel. : 0674-2390880, Fax : 0674-2390880
Email : agauorissa@cag.gov.in
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Comments of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India under Sec�on 143 (6) (b) of the Companies 

Act, 2013 on the Financial Statements of the Odisha Coal and Power Limited for the year ended 31 

March 2024.

The prepara�on of financial statements of the Odisha Coal and Power Limited (OCPL) for the year ended 

31 March 2024 in accordance with financial repor�ng framework prescribed under the Companies Act, 

2013 is the responsibility of the Management of the Company. The Statutory Auditor appointed by the 

Comptroller and Auditor General of India under Sec�on 139(5) of the Act, is responsible for expressing 

opinion on the financial statements under Sec�on 143 of the Act, based on independent audit in 

accordance with the Standards on Audi�ng prescribed under sec�on 143 (10) of the Act. This is stated to 

have been done by them vide their Audit Report dated 26 September 2024.  

I, on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, have conducted a supplementary audit 

under Sec�on 143 (6) (a) of the Act of the financial statements of OCPL for, the year ended 31 March 

2024. This supplementary audit has been carried out independently without access to the working 

papers of the Statutory Auditors and is limited primarily to inquiries of the Statutory Auditors and 

company personnel and a selec�ve examina�on of some of the accoun�ng records. 

Based on my supplementary audit, I would like to highlight the following significant ma�ers under 

sec�on 143(6) (b) of the Act, which have come to my a�en�on and which in my view are necessary for 

enabling a be�er understanding of the financial statements and the related Audit Report. 

Comments on Profitability 

A1.  Statement of Profit and Loss 

 Revenue from Opera�ons: ₹1189.26 crore (Note - 29) 

The above included 21.86 crore being the differen�al GST of 13 per cent claimed from OPGC for coal sale 

which was not considered for payment by OPGC during joint reconcilia�on as on 31 March 2024. Since 

the amount was not considered for payment by OPGC, there arises uncertainty about its collec�on. 

Hence, the accountal of the same as income of the company viola�ng Ind AS-18 has resulted in 

overstatement of the above head by ₹21.86 crore with corresponding overstatement of profit and 'trade 

receivables (Note 13) each by the same amount.

A2.  Statement of Profit and Loss 

 Other expenses: ₹77.94 crore (Note - 36) 

The above includes ₹1.29 crore being the expenditure incurred towards construc�on of boundary wall of 

Anganwadi Centre and sewerage system in the Rehabilita�on and Rese�lement (R&R) colony at Hemgiri. 

The infrastructural facili�es such as proper drainage as well as sanita�on, facili�es for Anganwadi and 

school are required to be provided in the R&R colony as envisaged under third schedule of the Right to 

Fair Compensa�on and Transparency in Land Acquisi�on, Rehabilita�on and Rese�lement Act, 2013. 

Since the above expenditures are statutory obliga�on for opera�on of the plant, it should have been 

Annexure - I
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capitalized as per Ind AS-16 instead of charging to revenue. Accountal of the above expenditure under 

'other expenses' instead of capitalisa�on has resulted in overstatement of the above head by ₹1.29 crore 

with understatement of 'Right-of-Use Assets' (Note 6) by 1.27 crore (1.29 crore 20.02 crore deprecia�on 

and amor�za�on expenses) and understatement of deprecia�on and amor�za�on expenses (Note 35) 

by ₹0.02 crore. This has also resulted in understatement of profit by ₹1.27 crore (1.29 crore - ₹0.02 crore). 

B.3  Comment on Disclosure 

Deputy Director of Mines, Rourkela demanded (April 2022) ₹14.63 crore towards addi�onal royalty for 

sale of coal to MCL between 28 March 2021 and 30 September 2021. The Company has however made 

representa�on for withdrawal of the demand ci�ng reason that sales to MCL were made before the 

amendment to MMDR Act. Since this is a statutory demand, the same should have been disclosed 

adequately with the statement of the fact un�l finaliza�on of the ma�er. 

For  and on behalf of the

Comptroller and Auditor General of India

(RAJ KUMAR)

Principal Accountant General

Place : Bhubaneswar

Date : 19.12.2024
Sd/-
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ANNEXURE- V(A)

Management reply to final comment of C&AG u/s. 143(6)(b) of the Companies Act on the accounts of 

OCPL for the FY.2023-24:

Observa�onSl. 
No.

Management Reply

A1 Statement of Profit and Loss 

Revenue from Opera�ons: ₹1189.26 Crore (Note-29)

The above included ₹21.86 crore being the differen�al 

GST of 13 per cent claimed from OPGC for coal sale 

which was not considered for payment by OPGC during 

joint reconcilia�on as on 31st March 2024. Since the 

amount was not considered for payment by OPGC, 

there arises uncertainty about its collec�on. Hence, 

the accountal of the same as income of the company 

viola�ng Ind AS-18 has resulted in overstatement of 

the above head by ₹21.86 crore with corresponding 

overstatement of profit and 'trade receivables' (Note-

13) each by the same amount. 

As per clause no. 10.5 of the Fuel supply agreement 

executed between OCPL and OPGC, the Statutory 

charges such as royal�es, NMET, reserve price, taxes, 

du�es, cess etc. and such other levies payable to State 

Govt. or GOI or to any other authority shall be borne by 

the purchaser on the basis of grade of coal, as 

applicable at the �me of delivery. It is clarified that 

these shall form part of the “As delivered price of the 

coal”. 

Hence, in light of the provisions of the FSA, OCPL has 

raised debit notes for the differen�al GST on reserve 

price paid to the Govt. i.e @13% being receivable from 

OPGC. Accordingly, the same has been booked to 

income during the FY.2023-24. Merely, the same has 

not been admi�ed or did not appear in the 

reconcilia�on statement between OCPL and OPGC, 

may not evident that the recovery or accoun�ng of the 

same is doub�ul. 

In this connec�on, reference is invited to Ind AS-18 

according to which, Revenue is recognised only when it 

is probable that the economic benefits associated with 

the transac�on will flow to the en�ty. However, when 

an uncertainty arises about the collectability of an 

amount already included in revenue, the uncollec�ble 

amount or the amount in respect of which recovery has 

ceased to be probable is recognised as an expense, 

rather than as an adjustment of the amount of revenue 

originally recognised.

Hence, the accoun�ng of the GST paid reserve price 

receivable from OPGC for the FY.2023-24 is correct in 

terms of the FSA and considering the regula�on of 

OERC on determina�on of Input price of coal also. 

Since, the claim is also acceptable as per the OERC 

regula�on on determina�on of Input Price, the same 

will be true up once the input price of coal is 

determined or  approved by the regulatory 

commission. 

However, it will be further evaluated regarding the 

certainty or uncertainty on collectability of the above 

dues and in case it is probable that the amount 

included in revenue is uncertain in w.r.t collectability, 

the appropriate accoun�ng effect shall be given in the 

next financial year in accordance with the provision of 

Ind AS-18.   
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A2 Statement of Profit and Loss

Other expenses: ₹77.94 crore (Note-36)

The above includes ₹1.29 crore being the expenditure 

incurred towards construc�on of boundary wall of 

Anganwadi Centre and sewerage system in the 

Rehabilita�on and Rese�lement (R&R) colony at 

Hemgiri. The infrastructural facili�es such as proper 

drainage as well as sanita�on, facili�es for Anganwadi 

and School are required to be provided in the R&R 

colony as envisaged under third schedule of the Right 

to Fair Compensa�on and Transparency in Land 

Acquisi�on, Rehabilita�on and Rese�lement 

Act,2013. Since the above expenditures are statutory 

obliga�on for opera�on of the plant, it should have 

been capitalized as per Ind AS-16 instead of charging 

to revenue. Accountal of the above expenditure under 

“Other Expenses” instead of capitaliza�on has 

resulted in overstatement of the above head by ₹ 1.29 

crore with understatement of 'Right-to-Use Assets' 

(Note-6) by ₹1.27 crore (₹1.29 crore-₹ 0.02 crore 

deprecia�on and amor�za�on expenses)  and 

understatement of deprecia�on and amor�za�on 

expenses (Note-35) by ₹0.02 crore. This has also 

resulted in understatement of profit by ₹1.27 crore 

(₹1.29 crore -₹0.02 crore).

Paragraph 7 of Ind AS 16 states that “the cost of an item 

of property, plant and equipment shall be recognised as 

an asset if, and only if:

a) it is probable that future economic benefits 

associated with the item will flow to the en�ty; 

and

b) the cost of the item can be measured reliably.”

Paragraph 16 of Ind AS 16, inter alia, states that the cost 

of an item of property, plant and equipment comprise 

any costs directly a�ributable to bringing the asset to 

the loca�on and condi�on necessary for it to be capable 

of opera�ng in the manner intended by management.

In the given case, construc�on of boundary wall of 

Anganwadi center & school for R&R colony-I and 

construc�on of sewerage system at R&R colony-II have 

been made for the benefit of the project displaced 

families residing at the RR colonies and the ownership 

don't vest with OCPL. The capital expenditure as noted 

by the audit, the benefit of which is available for use 

exclusively for the displaced families and not for OCPL. 

The R&R colony-I and II were already capitalized since 

FY.2017-18 and FY.2019-20. Further, the above R&R 

colonies are under the project periphery of 

Manoharpur Coal Mines, the 'COD' of which has already 

been commenced w.e.f 30-09-2021. So, further 

capitaliza�on a�er COD shall be improper unless it 

increases the capacity of the plant/mines. 

In our view the expenditure of Rs.128.54 lakh towards 

construc�on of Anganwadi Center and Swearage 

system at RR colonies has been correctly accounted in 

the books of account in terms of Ind AS-16. 

B3 Comment on Disclosure

Deputy Director of Mines, Rourkela demanded (April 

2022)₹14.63 crore towards addi�onal royalty for sale 

of coal to MCL between 28 March 2021 and 30 

September 2021. The Company has however made 

representa�on for withdrawal of the demand ci�ng 

reason that sales to MCL were made before 

amendment to MMDR Act. Since this is a statutory 

demand, the same should have been disclosed 

adequately with statement of the fact un�l finaliza�on 

of the ma�er. 

The MM(DR) Amendment Act, 2021 enacted on 28-03-

2021. The Addi�onal Amount of Royalty on sale of coal 

to non-cap�ve buyers was made effec�ve from 01-10-

2021. 

Thus, the demand of DDM towards Addi�onal Royalty 

does not hold correct, for which OCPL has already 

represented for withdrawal of the demand vide Le�er 

no.573 dtd. 27.06.22 , Le�er no. 567 dtd.21.11.2022 

and vide le�er no.244 dtd.20.04.2023 as sales to MCL 

were made before the amendment's came into force. 

However, suitable disclosure of the above fact shall be 

provided in the annual accounts of subsequent financial 

year. 
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COST AUDIT REPORT

We, Niran & Co., Cost Accountants having been appointed as Cost Auditor under sec�on 148(3) of the 

Companies Act, 2013 (18 of 2013) of  Odisha Coal and Power Limited, having its registered office at 

Zone-A, Ground Floor, Fortune Tower, Chandrasekharpur, Bhubaneswar-751023 have audited the Cost 

Records maintained under sec�on 148 of the said Act, in compliance with the Cost Audi�ng Standards in 

respect of “Ores and Mineral Products” for the Financial Year 2023-24 (from 1st April, 2023 to 31st 

March, 2024) maintained by the Company and report, in addi�on to our observa�ons and sugges�ons in 

Paragraph-2.

(i) We have obtained all the informa�on and explana�ons, which to the best of our knowledge and 

belief were necessary for the purpose of this audit.

(ii) In our opinion, Proper Cost Accoun�ng Records, as per Rule 5 of the companies (Cost Records and 

Audit), Rules 2014 and as amended �me-to-�me, have been maintained by the company in 

respect of products under reference.

(iii) In our opinion proper returns adequate for the purpose of our Cost Audit have been received 

from the branches not visited by us.

(iv) In our opinion and to the best of our informa�on said books and records give the informa�on 

required by the Companies Act, 2013 in the manner so required.

(v) In our Opinion, the Company has adequate system of Internal Audit of Cost Records which in our 

opinion is commensurate to its nature and size of the business.

(vi) In our opinion informa�on, statements in the annexure to this Cost Audit Report gives a true and 

fair view of the Cost of produc�on of products, Cost of sales, Margin and other informa�on 

rela�ng to products under reference.

(vii) Detailed unit-wise and product-wise cost statements and schedules there to in respect of the 

Product under reference to the Company duly audited and cer�fied by us are kept in the 

Company.

2.  Observa�on & Sugges�ons: -

a. The produc�on achievement is above par with the target set for the financial year 2023-

24.

b. During the current financial year 2023-24, the profit margin per MT has decreased by 

Rs.974.82 as compared to the previous year 2022-23. 

c. Integra�on of Cost and Financial Accoun�ng should be done for real �me cost monitoring 

and repor�ng.

d. Review of cost records needs to be carried out on regular intervals showing periodical 

cost comparison so as detect and control abnormal costs, if any.

e. The opera�onal efficiency of the Coal Handling Plant (CHP) should be reviewed 

periodically, as it has a direct and significant impact on opera�onal revenue
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Disclosure:

•  Reconcilia�on of Indirect Tax for the company is based on the periodical returns submi�ed 

by the company to the various tax authori�es. However, we have not carried out detailed 

audit of the same.

•  Previous year figures have been regrouped/rearranged/re-casted wherever necessary to 

make the figures comparable with current year’s figures. 

Place:  Bhubaneswar FOR NIRAN & CO.

Date:  05/10/2024 COST ACCOUNTANTS

   FRN-000113

 CMA Niranjan Mishra

            Partner

 M/13060

Sd/-
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1.    GENERAL INFORMATION:

ANNEXURE TO THE COST AUDIT REPORT

PART- A

01. CIN of the Company U10100OR2015SGC018623

02. Name of the Company M/s. Odisha Coal and Power Limited

03. Registered Office Address of the Company
Zone-A, Fourth Floor, Fortune Tower,
Chandrasekharpur, Bhubaneswar-751023

04. Corporate Office Address of the Company
Zone-A, Fourth Floor, Fortune Tower,
Chandrasekharpur, Bhubaneswar-751023

05. E-mail Address of the Company info@ocpl.org.in

06. Date of beginning of repor�ng period: 01-04-2023

07. Date of end of repor�ng period: 31-03-2024

08. Date of beginning of first previous financial
year:

01-04-2022

09. Date of end of first previous financial year: 31-03-2023

10. Level of rounding used in Cost Statements: Lakh

11.Wheather the Indian Accoun�ng Standard are
applicable to the Company

Yes

12. Number of Cost Auditor for repor�ng period: One

13. Date of board of directors mee�ng in which
annexure to Cost Audit Report was approved:

14. Whether Cost Auditors report has been
qualified or has any reserva�ons or contains
adverse remarks:

No

15. Consolidated qualifica�ons, reserva�ons or
adverse remarks of all Cost Auditors:

None

16. Consolidated observa�ons or sugges�ons of
all Cost Auditors:

As per CRA-3

17. Whether Company has Related Party
Transac�ons for Sale or Purchase of goods or
Services:

Yes, given as per PART-D (5)

FOR NIRAN & CO. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Cost Accountants
FRN-000113

CMA Niranjan Mishra Chief Executive Officer Company Secretary Head of Finance
Partner

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
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FOR NIRAN & CO. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Cost Accountants
FRN-000113

CMA Niranjan Mishra Chief Executive Officer Company Secretary Head of Finance
Partner

1. Whether Cost Auditor is Lead Auditor: Yes

2. Category of Cost Auditor: Partnership Firm

3. Firm's Registra�on Number: 000113

4. Name of Cost Auditor or Cost Auditors Firm: Niran &Co.

5. Permanent Account Number of Cost Auditor or Cost

Auditors firm:

AAEFN5628D

6. Address of Cost Auditor or Cost Auditors firm: NIRAN & CO.

Cost Accountants,

ESEN DEN, 475, Aiginia, Asiana Plaza Entry,

Khandagiri, Bhubaneswar – 751019, Odisha.

7. Email id of Cost Auditor or Cost Auditors firm: niranjan13060@gmail.com

8. Membership number of Member signing report: M/13060

9. Name of Member signing report: CMA. Niranjan Mishra

10.Name of products with CTA heading Ores and Mineral Products
CTA Heading with Subhead: 27011200

11. SRN number of Form CRA-2:

12(a). Number of Audit commi�ee mee�ng in which

Cost Auditor was invited during year:

NIL

12(b). Number of Audit commi�ee mee�ng a�ended

by Cost Auditor during year:

NIL

13. Date of signing Cost Audit Report and annexure by
Cost Auditor:

14. Place of signing Cost Audit Report and annexure
by Cost Auditor:

Bhubaneswar

2. GENERAL DETAILS OF COST AUDITORS

F64377963

5th Oct. 2024

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
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3. COST ACCOUNTING POLICY:

Presently the Company is maintaining Job order wise cost as per the requirement of Cost Accoun�ng 

Record Rules suggested in FORM CRA-1, pursuant to Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) 

Rules 2014 and as amended �me to �me, as followed by the Cost Accoun�ng Standards (CAS) and Cost 

Accoun�ng Audi�ng Standard (CAAS) issued by the Ins�tute of Cost Accountants of India, as applicable and 

the required data and informa�on, extracted from the technical, cost and financial books of the Company.

1. Briefly describe the cost accoun�ng policy adopted by the Company and its adequacy or otherwise to 

determine correctly the Cost of Produc�on/Opera�on, Cost of Sales, Sales Realiza�on and Margin of the 

products under reference separately for each Products. The policy shall cover, inter alia, the following 

areas:

 a.  Iden�fica�on of Cost Centers/Cost Objects and Cost Drivers.

   Mine: Each Mine is considered as separate produc�on cost centre.

  All non-produc�on cost centres providing auxiliary services to the 

produc�on cost centres are considered as support service cost centres. The Head office is 

also considered as independent service cost centre.

 b.  Accoun�ng for Material Cost including Packing Materials, Stores and Spares, Employee 

  Cost, U�li�es, and Other Relevant Cost Components.

  (i) Material Costs: 

   In a mine, the main ac�vity is extrac�on of coal; hence raw material cost is not 

   involved. 

  (ii) U�li�es:

   NOT APPLICABLE as the produc�on ac�vity is carried out by the Mine Operator i.e 

   M/s. BGR Mining & Infra Ltd.

  (iii) Employee Cost: 

   All direct employees are iden�fied with respect to the employee code and their 

deployment to the cost centre. The salaries and wages paid to the direct employees 

iden�fied with par�cular produc�on or service centres are captured under respec�ve 

cost centres.

   Cost of all indirect employees not iden�fied with any of the produc�on or service 

centre is captured according to its nature and incidence under Mine Overheads, 

Administra�ve Overheads or Selling & Distribu�on Overheads.

   Employee cost comprise of all forms of considera�on given for the services rendered 

by the employees, whether paid or payable, and includes salary & wages, allowances, 

bonus, over�me cost, ex-gra�a, incen�ve, contribu�ons made to PF, Gratuity & other 

Funds, leave encashment, subsidized power supplied, other employee benefits on 

account of LTA, LTC, Health Insurance, group insurance scheme,  post-re�rement 

medical benefit scheme and compensa�on to dependents of deceased in mine 

accidents etc., and welfare expenses incurred for the employees engaged in 

opera�onal mines/units.

   Employee Benefits are appor�oned on the basis of allocated gross salary of each 

department/cost center for classifica�on into direct and indirect expenses.
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  (iv) Direct Expenses: 

   All direct expenditures incurred in the mines such as Cost of Excava�on, Coal reserve 

price, Survey & Soil inves�ga�on etc. a�ributable to the respec�ve mines/units are 

directly charged to concerned mines/units which are recorded on accrual basis.

  (v) Consumable Stores & Spares :

   NOT APPLICABLE as the produc�on ac�vity is carried out by the Mine Operator i.e 

M/s. BGR Mining & Infra Ltd.

  (vi) Repairs & Maintenance: 

   Repair works done through external agencies are booked to the respec�ve cost 

centre for which it has been carried out. When repair works are being done 

departmentally i.e through workshop, then the cost of repair is charged to the 

beneficiary unit on pre-determined rates.

  (vii) Quality Control Expenses:

   Quality Control Costs such as Coal Sampling Costs related to produc�on iden�fiable 

from financial accounts will be shown under this head.

  (viii) Research & Development Expenses:

   There are no expenses for research & development during the current financial year.

  (ix) Royalty & Technical Know-how:

   Royalty & Technical know-how expenses shall be shown under this head.

  (x) Pollu�on Control Expenses:

   Pollu�on Control Expenses will be shown under Other Produc�on Overheads.

 C.   Accoun�ng, Alloca�on and Absorp�on of Overheads:

  (i) Produc�on Overheads:

   All the indirect expenses of mine like administra�ve expenses, hospital expenses and 

other service unit costs are allocated/ appor�oned to mines/units on a suitable basis.

  (ii) Administra�ve Overheads:

   Cost incurred by Company HQ shall be considered as Administra�ve Overheads and 

shall be appor�oned to different cost center/produc�on units on a suitable basis like 

produc�on, etc.

  (iii) Selling and Distribu�on Overheads:

   Coal Transporta�on expenses shall be classified under Selling & Distribu�on 

Overheads.

   Selling & Distribu�on expenses are iden�fied and collected separately under natural 

heads of expenditure and shown separately as selling and distribu�on overheads. 

  (iv) Service Department Expenses :

   Service Department expenses such as training expenses, hospital expenses, etc are 

collected in the respec�ve units under natural heads. The total expenditure so 

collected is appor�oned to different produc�on units on a suitable basis like 

produc�on, value of service rendered and manpower cost, etc.
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 d.  Accoun�ng for Deprecia�on/ Amor�za�on:

  Depreciable property, plant, and equipment are tangible assets that are held for use in the 

produc�on of goods or supply of services, for rental to others, for administra�ve, selling or 

distribu�on purposes; and are expected to be used during more than one accoun�ng 

period. All the property, plant & equipment are iden�fied with the respec�ve cost centre 

and deprecia�on is allocated accordingly.

 e.  Accoun�ng for By- Products/Joint Products or Services, Scraps, Wastage etc.

  The realizable value of by-products during the course of processing is credited to cost of 

 main product.

 f.   Basis of Inventory Valua�on.

  Inventories of coal are stated at lower of cost or net realizable value.

 g.   Methodology for Valua�on of Inter Unit/ Inter Company and Related Party Transac�ons.

  The related party transac�ons are nego�ated in the ordinary course of business at Arm’s 

Length Price.

 h.  Treatment of Abnormal & Non Recurring Cost including classifica�on of Other Non Cost 

Item

   Abnormal and non recurring cost are excluded from cost of produc�on and 

considered in profit reconcilia�on statement.

 i.  Other Relevant Cost Accoun�ng Policy adopted by the Company.

2) Changes if any made in the Cost Accoun�ng Policy for the Product(s)/Service(s) under audit 

 during the Current Financial year as compared to the Previous Financial year. 

 Previous year figures have been regrouped/rearranged/re-casted wherever necessary to make the 

figures comparable with current year’s figures.

3) Adequacy or Otherwise of the Budgetary Control Systems, if any followed by the Company.

 Budgetary control system exists in the company. The company has a management informa�on 

system wherein actual performance is regularly monitored with the budget.

FOR NIRAN & CO.          For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Cost Accountants
FRN-000113

CMA Niranjan Mishra  Chief Execu�ve Officer  Company Secretary Head of Finance
Partner

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
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4 : PRODUCT/SERVICE DETAILS ( For The Company As A Whole)       

Current Year Previous 

Year 

Revenue from Sale of Coal MT 27011200 Yes 1,18,925.79
      

1,84,864.41

(a) Total Net Opera�onal Revenue of 

Manufactured Product or Service
1,18,925.79

      

1,84,864.41

(b) Other Opera�ng Income of Company -

                    

-

              
(c) Total Opera�ng Incomes of Company 

(a+b)
1,18,925.79

      

1,84,864.41

(d) Other Incomes of company 2,969.31

           

4,417.53

(e)Total Revenue as per Financial 

Accounts (c+d) 1,21,895.10

      

1,89,281.94

(f) Excep�onal and Extra Ordinary Income

(g) Other Comprehensive Income -

                    

-

              

(h) Total Revenue including Excep�onal, 

Extra Ordinary income and Other 

Comprehensive Income, if any (e+f+g) 1,21,895.10 1,89,281.94

(i) Turnover as per GST Records 1,34,120.58 2,15,471.90

Name of  Product(s)/Service(s) UOM

CTA 

Heading 

(whether 

applicable)

Wheather 

Covered 

under Cost 

Audit  

Yes/No

Net Opera�onal Revenue  

(Net of taxes, du�es..etc) Rs 

in Lakh 

FOR NIRAN & CO.          For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Cost Accountants
FRN-000113

CMA Niranjan Mishra  Chief Execu�ve Officer  Company Secretary Head of Finance
Partner
M/13060

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-Sd/-
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ANNEXURE TO THE COST AUDIT REPORT

PART- B
1. QUANTITATIVE INFORMATION

Name of the Product

CTA Heading

Par�culars UOM Current Year  Previous Year 

1. Available Capacity
(a) Installed/Produc�on Capacity MT 80,00,000.000

     

80,00,000.000

       

(b) Capacity enhanced during the year,if any

(c) Capacity available through leasing 

arrangements,if any
(d) Capacity available through loan license / 

third par�es

(e) Total available Capacity MT 80,00,000.000

     

80,00,000.000

       

2. Actual Produc�on

(a) Self-manufactured MT 85,09,347.13

        

79,99,969.55

         

(b) Produced Under leasing arrangements
(c) Produced on loan license / by third par�es on 

job work

(d) Total Produc�on MT 85,09,347.13

        

79,99,969.55

         
3. Produc�on as per Excise/GST Records MT 85,09,347.13

        

79,99,969.55

         
4. Capacity U�liza�on (in-house) % 106.37

                   

100.00

                     
5. Finished Goods Purchased

(a) Domes�c Purchase of Finished Goods -

                          

-

                           
(b) Imports of Finished Goods -

                          

-

                           (c) Total Finished Goods Purchased -

                          

-

                           6. Stock & Other Adjustments

(a) Change in Stock of Finished Goods MT (1,54,545.70)

         

2,18,806.32

            (b) Self / Cap�ve Consump�on (incl. samples etc)

(c) Other Quan�ta�ve Adjustments,if any(WIP & 

Shortages etc)

(d) Total Adjustments MT (1,54,545.70)
         

2,18,806.32
            7. Total Available Quan�ty for Sale MT 83,54,801.43

        
82,18,775.87

         
8. Actual Sales

(a) Domes�c Sales of Manufactured Products MT 83,54,801.43
        

82,18,775.87
         

(b) Domes�c Sales of Traded Products

(c) Export Sale of Manufactured Products

(d) Export Sale of Traded Products

(e) Total Quan�ty Sold MT 83,54,801.43        82,18,775.87         

27011200

Ores and Mineral Products

FOR NIRAN & CO.          For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Cost Accountants
FRN-000113

CMA Niranjan Mishra                                       Chief Execu�ve                    Officer  Company            Secretary  Head of Finance
Partner
M/13060

For the Financial Year : 2023-24

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
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2. Abridged Cost Statement

Year Production

Finished 

Goods 

Purchased

Finished Stock 

Adjustment

Captive 

Consumption

Other 

Adjustments
Quantity Sold

Current Year 85,09,347.13 -1,54,545.70 83,54,801.43

Previous Year 79,99,969.55 2,18,806.32 82,18,775.87

Amount In Lakh
Rate per Unit 

(Rs)
Amount In Lakh

Rate per Unit 

(Rs)

1

2

3

4                 949.06 11.15
                

                 702.97 8.79
                    5            68,512.35 805.14

              
            58,531.01 731.64

                6

7

8

9

10

11              6,639.87 78.03

                

              6,019.09 75.24

                  12              4,801.44 56.43

                

              1,913.69 23.92

                  13

14 80,902.72

           

950.75

              

67,166.76

           

839.59

                15

16

17

18            80,902.72               950.75             67,166.76                  839.59 

19

20            80,902.72 950.75

              

            67,166.76 839.59

                
21             (1,176.24) (13.82)

              

              1,356.14 16.95

                  
22

23

24            79,726.47 954.26

              

            68,522.90 443.99

25                 929.05 11.12

                

                 764.74 9.30

                    
26

27              4,245.04 50.81

                

                 934.81 11.37

                  

28            84,900.56 1,016.19

           

            70,222.45 854.41

                

29              7,363.00 88.13

                

              8,296.41 100.94

                

30            92,263.56 1,104.32

           

            78,518.86 955.36

                

31         1,18,925.79 1,423.44

           

         1,84,864.41 2,249.29

             
32            26,662.23               319.12          1,06,345.55 1,293.93

             

Technical know-how Fee / Royalty

Depreciation/Amortization

Process Materials/Chemicals

Other Production Overheads

Industry Specific Operating Expenses ( details as per 

Total (1 to 13)

Increase/Decrease in Work-in-Progress

Less: Credits for Recoveries

Less: Self/Captive Consumption (incl. Samples, etc.) 

Primary Packing Cost

Cost of Production/Operations (14+15 to 17)

Cost of Finished Goods Purchased

Total Cost of production and purchases (18+19)

Increase/Decrease in Stock of Finished Goods

Other Adjustments ( if any)

Selling & Distribution Overheads

Cost of Sales before Interest (24 to 27)

Finance Cost

Cost of Sales(28+29)

Cost of Production/Operation of Product Sold 

Administrative Overheads

Secondary packing Cost

Margin [Profit/(Loss) as per Cost Accounts] (31 - 

30)

Net Sales Realization (Net of Taxes and Duties)

Current Year Previous Year

CTA Heading 27011200

Name of the Product Ores and Mineral Products

Materials Consumed ( details as per Part B ( 2A)

Quality Control Expenses

Research & Development Expenses

S.L Particulars

Utilities  ( details as per Part B ( 2B)

Direct Employees Cost

Direct Expenses

Consumable Stores & Spares

Repairs & Maintenance

FOR NIRAN & CO.          For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Cost Accountants
FRN-000113

CMA Niranjan Mishra                                       Chief Execu�ve                    Officer  Company                 Secretary Head of Finance
Partner
M/13060

For the Financial Year : 2023-24

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
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2A. Details of Materials Consumed

Current Year  Previous Year

Amount (Rs) Amount (Rs)

CTA Headings 27011200

Description of Materials Consumed

 Name of  the Product Ores and Mineral Products

Not Applicable

2B. Details of U�li�es Consumed

Current Year  Previous Year

Amount (Rs) Amount (Rs)

CTA Headings 27011200

Description of Materials Consumed

 Name of  the Product Ores and Mineral Products

Not Applicable

2C. Details of Industry Specific Opera�ng Expenses

Current Year  Previous Year

Amount (Rs) Amount (Rs)

CTA Headings 27011200

Description of Materials Consumed

 Name of  the Product Ores and Mineral Products

Not Applicable

FOR NIRAN & CO.          For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Cost Accountants
FRN-000113

CMA Niranjan Mishra  Chief Execu�ve Officer  Company Secretary Head of Finance
Partner
M/13060

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
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PART-C
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ANNEXURE TO THE COST AUDIT REPORT

PART- D

1. PRODUCT AND SERVICE PROFITABILITY STATEMENT (For Audited Products/ Services) (Rs. in lakh)

Sales 
Cost of 

Sales 
Margin Sales 

Cost of 

Sales 
Margin

1 1,18,925.79
 

92,263.56
 

26,662.23
    

1,84,864.41
 

78,518.86
 

1,06,345.55
 

1,18,925.79
 

92,263.56
 

26,662.23
    

1,84,864.41
 

78,518.86
 

1,06,345.55
 

Total

SL. No.  Particulars

Current Year Previous Year

Sale of Coal

FOR NIRAN & CO.          For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Cost Accountants
FRN-000113

CMA Niranjan Mishra  Chief Execu�ve Officer  Company Secretary Head of Finance
Partner
M/13060

For the Financial Year : 2023-24

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
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2. PROFIT RECONCILIATION (FOR THE COMPANY AS A WHOLE)         (Rs. in lakh)

SL.No Par�culars Current Year Previous Year 

1 Profit or Loss as per Cost Accoun�ng Records

(a) For the Audited Product(s)/Service(s) 26,662.23
             

1,06,345.55
              

(b) For the Un -Audited Product(s)/Service(s)

2 Add: Incomes Not Considered in Cost Accounts

Interest from Bank deposits at amor�sed cost 2,834.03               3,687.44                   
Interest from advance & others 195.96                      
Interest on tax refund 1.18                          
Penalty,LD & Other recoveries 78.04                    509.26                      

Interest on Deposit with WESCO/ TPWODL 14.68                    

Prior Period Income                         16.43 

Sub Total 2,926.75               4,410.27                   

3 Less: Expenses Not Considered in Cost Accounts

Dona�on 2,000.00               2,000.00                   

Interest on TDS & TCS -                        

Sub Total 2,000.00
               

2,000.00
                   

4
Difference in Valua�on of Stocks Between Financial 

Accounts and Cost Accounts 1.97
                       

0.005
                        

5 Other Adjustments if Any 0.17
                      

0.03
                          

6
Profit or Loss As Per Financial Accounts (Excluding Other 

Comprehensive Income for Companies Following Ind-AS)
27,587.18

             
1,08,755.80

              

FOR NIRAN & CO.          For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Cost Accountants
FRN-000113

CMA Niranjan Mishra  Chief Execu�ve Officer  Company Secretary Head of Finance
Partner
M/13060

For the Financial Year : 2023-24

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
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3. VALUE ADDITION AND DISTRIBUTION OF EARNINGS (for the Company as a Whole) (Rs. in lakh)

SL. No. Par�culars Current Year Previous Year 

Value Addi�on:

1 Gross Sales  (excluding sales returns) 1,18,925.79             1,84,864.41               

2 Less: Excise duty, etc. -                             

3 Net Revenue From Opera�on 1,18,925.79
             

1,84,864.41
               

4 Add: Export Incen�ves -
                             

5 Add/Less: Adjustment in Finished Stocks (1,174.28) 1,356.15

6 Less: Cost of Bought out Inputs

(a) Cost of Materials Consumed -

(b) Process Materials / Chemicals

(c) Consump�on of Stores and Spares -

(d) U�li�es (e.g.Power & Fuel) -

(e) Others (if any) 77,742.45

                 

61,294.24

                   

Total Cost of Bought out Inputs 77,742.45

                 

61,294.24

                   

7 Value Added 42,357.62

                 

1,22,214.02

               

8 Add: Income from any other sources 2,969.31

                   

4,417.53

                     

Add: (i) Extra Ordinary Incomes, Excep�onal Income

        (ii) Other Comprehensive Income -

10 Earnings available for distribu�on 45,326.93 1,26,631.55

               

Distribu�on of Earnings to:

1 Benefits, etc. 1,410.89 1,276.98

2 Shareholders as Dividend - -

3 Company as Retained Funds 26,198.90 86,542.45

4 Government as Taxes (Specify) 8,323.85 28,332.64

5  Excep�onal and Extra Ordinary Expenses, If Any

6 Others (Finance Cost & Non Cost) 9,393.29 10,479.48

                   

7 Total Distribu�on of Earnings 45,326.93 1,26,631.55

               

9

FOR NIRAN & CO.          For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Cost Accountants
FRN-000113

CMA Niranjan Mishra  Chief Execu�ve Officer  Company Secretary Head of Finance
Partner
M/13060

For the Financial Year : 2023-24

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
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4. FINANCIAL POSITION AND RATIO ANALYSIS (for the Company as a Whole) (Rs. in lakh)

SL NO. Particulars Units Current Year Pevious Year

A

1 Share Capital Rs/Lakh 42,595.00                42,595.00                

2 Reserves & Surplus Rs/Lakh 99,858.95                80,595.63                

3 Long Term Borrowings Rs/Lakh 59,845.03                69,245.52                

4 (a) Gross Fixed Assets Rs/Lakh 2,13,818.19
             

1,93,407.62
            

(b) Net Fixed Assets Rs/Lakh 1,94,870.36 1,81,395.38

5 (a)  Current Assets Rs/Lakh 57,135.85 49,293.90

(b)  Less: Current Liabilities Rs/Lakh 35,530.40 65,046.45

(c) Net Current Assets Rs/Lakh 21,605.45 (15,752.55)

6 Capital Employed Rs/Lakh 1,91,059.32 1,67,183.43

7 Net Worth Rs/Lakh 1,42,453.95 1,23,190.63

B

1 Value Added Rs/Lakh 42,357.62 1,22,214.02

2 Net Revenue From Operations of Company Rs/Lakh 1,18,925.79 1,84,864.41

3 Profit Before Tax (PBT) Rs/Lakh 27,587.18

                

1,08,755.80

            

C

1 PBT to Capital Employed (B3/A6) % 14.44 65.05

2 PBT to Net Worth (B3/A7) % 19.37 88.28

3 PBT to Value Added (B3/B1) % 65.13 88.99

4 PBT to Net Revenue From Operation (B3/B2) % 23.20 58.83

D

1 Debt-Equity Ratio % 42.01 56.21

2 Current Assets to Current Liabilities % 160.81 75.78

3 Valued Added to Net Revenue From Operation % 35.62 66.11

E

1 Raw Materials Stock to Consumption Months

2 Stores & Spares to Consumption Months

Financial Position

Financial Performance

Profitability Ratios

Other Financial Ratios

Working Capital Ratios

FOR NIRAN & CO.          For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Cost Accountants
FRN-000113

CMA Niranjan Mishra  Chief Execu�ve Officer  Company Secretary Head of Finance
Partner
M/13060

For the Financial Year : 2023-24

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-



147

5
. R

EL
A

TE
D

 P
A

R
TY

 T
R

A
N

SA
C

TI
O

N
S 

(f
o

r 
th

e
 c

o
m

p
an

y 
as

 a
 w

h
o

le
)

(R
s.

 in
 la

kh
)

S
L

. N
o

.
N

am
e 

&
 A

d
d

re
ss

 o
f 

th
e 

R
el

at
ed

 P
ar

ty
C

IN
/P

A
N

N
am

e 
o

f 
th

e 

P
ro

d
u

ct
 / 

S
er

vi
ce

 

N
at

u
re

 o
f 

Tr
an

sa
ct

io
n

 (
S

al
e,

 

P
u

rc
h

as
e,

 e
tc

.)

Q
u

an
ti

ty
 

(M
T

)
Tr

an
sf

er
 

P
ri

ce
 (

R
s)

A
m

o
u

n
t

(R
s 

in
 L

ak
h

)

N
o

rm
al

 

P
ri

ce
 (

R
s)

B
as

is
 

A
d

o
p

te
d

 t
o

 

d
et

er
m

in
e 

th
e 

N
o

rm
al

 

P
ri

ce

1
O

di
sh

a 
P

ow
er

 G
en

er
at

io
n 

C
or

po
ra

tio
n 

Li
m

ite
d

U
40

10
4O

R
19

84
S

G
C

00

14
29

C
oa

l
S

al
e

64
84

14
7

   
  8

0,
83

6.
80

 

2
S

ri.
 S

ar
ip

ut
ta

 M
is

hr
a

A
B

D
P

M
88

80
A

R
em

un
er

at
io

n 
to

 K
M

P
S

er
vi

ce
s 

R
ec

ei
ve

d
   

   
   

   
68

.8
2 

3
S

ri.
 A

ja
ya

 K
um

ar
 M

aj
hi

A
Q

W
P

M
43

23
Q

R
em

un
er

at
io

n 
to

 K
M

P
S

er
vi

ce
s 

R
ec

ei
ve

d
   

   
   

   
18

.2
5 

80
,9

23
.8

7
   

 
To

ta
l

FO
R

 N
IR

A
N

 &
 C

O
. 

     
    

Fo
r 

an
d

 o
n

 b
e

h
al

f 
o

f 
th

e
 B

o
ar

d
 o

f 
D

ir
e

ct
o

rs
C

o
st

 A
cc

o
u

n
ta

n
ts

FR
N

-0
0

0
1

1
3

C
M

A
 N

ir
an

ja
n

 M
is

h
ra

  
C

h
ie

f 
Ex

e
cu

�
ve

 O
ffi

ce
r 

 
C

o
m

p
an

y 
Se

cr
et

ar
y 

H
e

ad
 o

f 
Fi

n
an

ce
P

ar
tn

e
r

M
/1

3
0

6
0

Fo
r 

th
e 

Fi
n

an
ci

al
 Y

ea
r 

: 2
0

2
3

-2
4

Sd
/-

Sd
/-

Sd
/-

Sd
/-



148

6. RECONCILIATION OF INDIRECT TAXES (FOR THE COMPANY AS A WHOLE)     (Rs. in lakh)

CGST
SGST/ 

UTGST
IGST Cess

Sl. No. Duties/Taxes Payable

Excise Duty

1 Domestic

2 Export

3 Stock Transfers (Net)

4 Others, if any

5 Total (1 to 4) -

                        

-

            

-

              

-

            

- -

Goods & Service Tax

6
Outward Taxable Supplies (Other than Zero Rated, 

NIL Rated and Exempted)
1,32,165.18

            

-

            

3,553.51

      

3,553.51

     

135.93 33,139.42

7 Outward Taxable Supplies (Zero Rated) 1,955.40 - - - - -

8 Inward Supplies (liable to Reverse Charge) 26,859.32 - 2,586.65 2,586.65 0.70 -

9 Other Outward Supplies (NIL Rated, Exempted) -

                                

-

            

-

              

-

            

- -

10 Non-GST Outward Supllies -

                        

-

            

-

              

-

            

- -

11 Toatl (6 to 10) 1,60,979.90 - 6,140.16 6,140.16 136.63 33,139.42

12 Total Duties / Taxes payable (5+11) -

            

6,140.16

      

6,140.16

     

136.63 33,139.42

Duties/ Taxes paid [by Utilisation of Input 

Tax Credit and Payment through Cash 

Ledger, as the case may be]

GST - Input Tax Credit Utilised

13 CGST 6,762.67 - 119.08 -

14 SGST / UTGST -

              

6,740.40

     

- -

15 IGST 12.06

          

34.33

          

16.84 -

16 Cess -

              

-

            

- -

17 Transitional Credit - - - -

18 Total Input Tax Credit Utilised (13 to 17) 6,774.73 6,774.73 135.93 -

19 Payment through Cash Ledger 2,586.65 2,586.65 0.70 33,139.42

20 Total Duties/Taxes Paid (18+19) 9,361.38 9,361.38 136.63 33,139.42

Difference between Taxes Paid and 

Payable (12-20)
(3,221.22) (3,221.22) 0.00 0.00

21 Interest/Penalty/Fines Paid

Particulars
Taxable Value 

/Assessable Value

Excise 

Duty

Goods & Service Tax

FOR NIRAN & CO.          For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Cost Accountants
FRN-000113

CMA Niranjan Mishra  Chief Execu�ve Officer  Company Secretary Head of Finance
Partner
M/13060

For the Financial Year : 2023-24

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
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ANNEXURE- VI(A)

MANAGEMENT REPLAY TO THE OBSERVATIONS AND SUGGESTIONS OF COST AUDITOR

Observa�on & Sugges�ons: -

a. The produc�on achievement is above par with the target set for the financial year 2023-24. 

 Reply:-Noted 

b. During the current financial year 2023-24, the profit margin per MT has decreased by Rs.974.82 

as compared to the previous year 2022-23. 

 Reply:-Profit Margin decreased due to fall in the market price of Coal for the F.Y.2023-24 

c.  Integra�on of Cost and Financial Accoun�ng should be done for real �me cost monitoring and 

repor�ng. 

 Reply:-Noted 

d.  Review of cost records needs to be carried out on regular intervals showing periodical cost 

comparison so as detect and control abnormal costs, if any. 

 Reply:-Noted 

e.  We have observed that the following expenses have increased significantly compared to the 

previous financial year 2022-23. 

Sl. 
No.

Expenses
FY 2023-24 FY 2022-23 Increase

(Rs. in Lakh)

1

2

3

Statutory clearance & filling fees

Repair & Maintenance expenses of Road, 

Bridge and Others

Insurance

113.16

133.36

47.65

35.79

30.93

4.40

77.37

102.43

43.25

Reply :-

Par�culars 2023-24 2022-23 Remarks

1528-Statutory Fees

Statutory clearance & filling fees

Consent to Establish for Dip side Rs. 81 

lakhs has been spent during 2023-24

1,06,90,920 35,09,995

150604-Filling Fees
150605-Registra�on Fee
150609-Processing Fee (Electrical)
Interest on TDS & TCS

43,153
86,730

4,95,223
298

1,13,16,324

68,700

35,78,695

Repair & Maintenance Expenses of Road, Bridge and Others

152701 Maintenance of Roads, Bridge & Culverts
152702 electrical Maintenance
152704 Maintenance of Township Complex Maintenance of Sewarage system in R&R 

colony-34 lakhs and Twonship complex 

Rs. 74 Lakhs has been done in the F.Y.23-24
138109 Maintenance of Weigh Bridge

6,64,411
18,09,183

1,08,28,950

11,93,096
12,59,395

6,40,748

33,350
1,33,35,894

44,06,523

30,93,239
Insurance

15122025-Insurance of Coal Handling Plant (CHP)

152202- Insurance Furniture, Fixture & Equipments
152203-Director & Officers Liability Insurance

As per the Agreement the insurance of CHP 

is Payable from 23-24 by OCPL
2,81,583

76,700
47,64,806

3,45,759
93,756

4,39,515

f. The opera�onal efficiency of the Coal Handling Plant (CHP) should be reviewed 

periodically, as it has a direct and significant impact on opera�onal revenue. Reply:-Noted
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ANNEXURE- VII

Form No. MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
For the financial year ended 31st March, 2024

[Pursuant to sec�on 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule
No.9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remunera�on Personnel)

Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,
Odisha Coal & Power Limited
CIN: U10100OR2021SGC018623
Zone-A, Ground Floor, Fortune Towers,
Chandrasekharpur, Bhubaneswar - 751023

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the 
adherence to good corporate prac�ces by Odisha Coal & Power Limited (hereina�er called the 
company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for 
evalua�ng the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verifica�on of the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records 
maintained by the company and also the informa�on provided by the Company, its officers, agents and 
authorized representa�ves during the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, 
the company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31st March, 2024 
complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper broad 
processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the repor�ng 
made hereina�er:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records 
maintained by Odisha Coal & Power Limited (“the Company”) for the financial year ended on 31st March, 
2024 according to the provisions of:

(i)  The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under;

(ii)  The Securi�es Contracts (Regula�on) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made there under; (Not 
Applicable to the Company during the Audit period);

(iii)  The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regula�ons and Bye-laws framed thereunder; (Not Applicable 
to the Company during the Audit period);

(iv)  Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regula�ons made thereunder to the 
extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial 
Borrowings; (Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit period);

(v)  The following Regula�ons and Guidelines prescribed under the Securi�es and Exchange Board of 
India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):-

 (a)  The Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (Substan�al Acquisi�on of Shares and 
  Takeovers) Regula�ons, 2011; (Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit period);

 (b) The Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (Prohibi�on of Insider Trading) Regula�ons, 
  1992; (Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit period);
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 (c)  The Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) 
  Regula�ons, 2009; (Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit period);

 (d)  The Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Op�on Scheme and 
  Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999; (Not Applicable to the Company 
  during the Audit period);

 (e)  The Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Lis�ng of Debt Securi�es) 
  Regula�ons, 2008; (Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit period);

 (f)  The Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer 
Agents) Regula�ons, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; (Not 
Applicable to the Company during the Audit period); 

 (g)  The Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (Delis�ng of Equity Shares) Regula�ons, 2009; 
(Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit period); and 

 (h)  The Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securi�es) Regula�ons, 1998; 
(Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit period).

 During the period under review, the provisions of the Acts, Rules, Regula�ons, Guidelines, 
Standards, etc. men�oned above are not applicable to the Company;.

(vi)  Other Laws as may be specifically applicable to the Company was as per representa�on given by 
the Management:

 1.  Mines Act, 1952

 2.  Mines Concession Rules, 1960

 3.  The Mines Rescue Rules, 1985

 4.  The Mines Voca�onal Training Rules, 1966

 5.  Mines (Pos�ng of Abstracts) Rules, 1954

 6.  Mines & Mineral (Development Regula�ons) Act, 1957

 7.  Indian Explosives Act, 1884

 8.  Indian Explosives Rules, 2008

 9.  Coal Mines Regula�ons, 1957

 10.  Coal Mines Conserva�on & Development Act, 1974

 11.  Coal Mines Pension Scheme, 1998

 12.  Coal Mines provident (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act, 1948

 13.  Environment Protec�on Act, 1986

 14.  The Water (Preven�on & Control of Pollu�on Act), 1974

 15.  The Air (Preven�on and Control of Pollu�on) Act, 1981

 16.  Indian Bureau of Mines (Electrical Supervisor and Electrician)
Recruitment Rules, 1990

 17.  Colliery Control Order, 2000

 18.  Colliery Control Rules, 2004

 19.  The Maternity Benefit(Mines) Rules, 1963

PRABHAT NAYAK & ASSOCIATES
Company Secretaries
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 20.  Indian Electricity Act, 2003,

 21.  Income Tax Act, 1961,

 22.  Wealth Tax Act, 1948,

 23.  GST Act, 2017,

 24.  GST Rules, 2017,

 25.  Na�onal Mineral Policy, 2018,

 26.  Forest (Conserva�on) Act, 1980,

 27.  Wildlife (Protec�on) Act, 1972,

 28.  Indian Stamp Act, 1889,

 29.  Right to Informa�on Act, 2005

 30.  Industrial & Labour Laws consis�ng of

  a)  Contract Labour (Regula�on & Aboli�on) Act, 1970

  b)  The Minimum Wages Act, 1948,

  c)  Payment of Wages Act, 1936

  d)  Maternity Benefit Act, 1961

  e)  Sexual Harassment of Women at work places (Preven�on, Prohibi�on and 
 Redressal) Act, 2013

  f)  The Orissa Shop & Establishment Act, 1956,

  g)  The Payment of Bonus Act, 1965,

  h)  The Industrial Dispute Act, 1947.

 We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

 (i)  Secretarial Standards issued by The Ins�tute of Company Secretaries of India.

 (ii) The Lis�ng Agreements entered into by the Company with Stock Exchanges. (Not 
Applicable to the Company during the Audit period).

A.  COMPOSITION OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS

During the financial year under review, the Board of Directors of the Company consists of the following 
Directors, as detailed below:

List of Directors during the Financial Year 2023 -24 

Sl.  
No.  

Name of Directors  Posi�on  
held  

Date of 
Appointment  

Date of 
Cessa�on  

1.  Mr. Vishal Kumar Dev, IAS  Chairman  18.11.2023  ---  

2.  Nikunja Bihar Dhal, IAS  Chairman  01.06.2020  17.04.2023  

3.  Mr. Satya Priya Rath   Nominee  
Director   

31.08.2023  ---  

4.  Mr. Saripu�a Mishra  Whole-�me 
Director  

22.09.2022  ---  

PRABHAT NAYAK & ASSOCIATES
Company Secretaries
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5.  Mr. Prasant Kumar 
Mohapatra  

Nominee 
Director  

27.04.2021  31.10.2023  

6.  Mr. Sailendra Dwivedi  Nominee 
Director  

16.05.2023  ---  

7.  Mr. Manasa Ranjan Rout  Nominee 
Director  

27.04.2021  ---  

8.  Mr. Sambit Parija  Nominee 
Director  

16.09.2021  ---  

9.  Mr. Lipsa Das  Nominee 
Director  

16.05.2023  ---  

10.   Nikunja Bihar Dhal, IAS  Chairman  02.06.2023  18.11.2023  

11.  Sanjay Kumar Singh, IAS  Chairman  17.04.2023  02.06.2023  

 
List of Key Managerial Personnel (KMPs) during the Financial Year 2023-24  

Sl.  

No.  

Name of KMPs  Posi�on held  Date of 

Appointment  

Date of 

Cessa�on  

1.   Mr. Saripu�a Mishra  Chief Execu�ve 

Officer  

22.09.2022  ---  

2.   Mr. Ajaya Kumar Majhi  Company  

Secretary  
31.05.2022  ---  

 
B.  MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

 During the financial year under report 6 (Six) Board Mee�ngs were held.  

 We further report that the Board of Directors of the Company is duly cons�tuted with proper 
balance of Execu�ve Directors and Non-Execu�ve Directors. The changes that took place in the 
composi�on of the Board of Directors during the period under review were carried out in 
compliance with the provisions of the Act.  

 Adequate no�ce is given to all the directors to schedule the Board Mee�ngs, agenda and detailed 
notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and 
obtaining further informa�on and clarifica�ons on the agenda items before the mee�ng and for 
meaningful par�cipa�on at the mee�ng. 

 The Directors have complied with the disclosure requirements in respect of their eligibility of 
appointment, reappointment, their being independent and compliance with the Code of 
Business Conduct & Ethics for Directors and Management Personnel. 

C. STATUTORY COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD: 

 Adequate no�ce is given to all the Members for all Commi�ee Mee�ngs held during the financial 
year. Agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent properly.

1. AUDIT COMMITTEE: 

  The Audit Commi�ee of the Company has been cons�tuted as per the provisions of Sec�on 177 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made there under with Guidelines, Regula�ons and 
Standards.  

PRABHAT NAYAK & ASSOCIATES
Company Secretaries
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  The Commi�ee consists of the following Directors upto 31.10.2023: 

   1. Mr. P. K. Mohapatra, Director       Chairman 

  2. Mr. Sambit Parija, Director   Member 

  3. Mr. Saripu�a Mishra, Director & CEO    Member 

  A�er 31.10.2023 the Audit Commi�ee is re-cons�tuted as follows: 

   1. Dr. Satya Priya Rath, Director       Chairman 

  2. Mr. Sambit Parija, Director    Member 

  3. Mr. Saripu�a Mishra, Director & CEO    Member 

 2. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) COMMITTEE: 

 The Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Commi�ee of the Company has been cons�tuted as per 
the provisions of Sec�on 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (CSR) Rules, 2014 
made there under with Guidelines, Regula�ons and Standards.  

  The Commi�ee consists of the following Directors upto 31.10.2023: 

   1. Mr. P. K. Mohapatra, Director      Chairman 

  2. Mr. Saripu�a Mishra, Director &  CEO   Member 

  3. Mr. Sambit Parija, Director      Member 

  A�er 31.10.2023 the Audit Commi�ee is re-cons�tuted as follows: 

   1. Mrs. Lipsa Das, Director     Chairman 

  2. Mr. Sambit Parija, Director      Member 

  3. Mr. Saripu�a Mishra, Director & CEO   Member 

 The CSR expenses of the Company during FY: 2023-24 is supposed to be a minimum of Rs. 8.64 
Crores considering 2% of preceding 3 previous years' average PBT i.e., Rs. 432.16 Crores. It 
includes Rs. 2.00 Crores on Protec�on of Tiger Landscape. 

  The Commi�ee further appraised that CSR Budget for the FY: 2023-24 is Rs. 8.657 Crores. Actual 
CSR spent during the year is Rs. 51,611,645.00. Balance unspent amount Rs. 34,958,355.00 is 
deposited in Unspent CSR Account maintained with United Bank of India. Total deposits in the 
account is Rs. 37,363,431.00 which includes unspent CSR amount of Rs. 2,405,076.00 pertaining 
to the financial year 2022-23.  

3. RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE: 

 The Risk Management Commi�ee of the Company has been cons�tuted as per the provisions of 
the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made there under with Guidelines, Regula�ons and 
Standards. 

  The Commi�ee consists of the following Directors: 

   1. Mr. Sambit Parija, Director      Chairman 

  2. Mr. Saripu�a Mishra, Director &  CEO   Member 

  3. Mr. Manasa Ranjan Rout, Director    Member 

PRABHAT NAYAK & ASSOCIATES
Company Secretaries
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  All decisions at Board Mee�ngs and Commi�ee Mee�ngs are carried out unanimously/with 
majority as recorded in the minutes of the mee�ngs of the Board of Directors or Commi�ee of the 
Board as the case may be. 

  We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in place in the Company 
commensurate with the size, nature of business and opera�ons of the Company to monitor and 
ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regula�ons and guidelines.  

 We further report that during the audit period, the Company has taken following ac�ons, which 
have a major bearing on the affairs of the Company:  

 1. The Company has adopted Whistle Blower Policy (WHP) to provide the employees with a 
framework/ procedure for responsible and secure repor�ng of improper ac�vi�es within 
the Company to protect the employee wishing to raise a concern about improper 
ac�vi�es. 

  2. The Company has revised Bank Guarantee of Rs. 1,539,200,000.00 from Canara Bank, 
Large Corporate Branch, Bhubaneswar and Rs. 1,758,720,000.00 from Punjab Na�onal 
Bank, Corporate Banking Branch, Bhubaneswar during the year under review. 

   For Prabhat Nayak & Associates 
     Company Secretaries 
 Place: Bhubaneswar  Sd/-
 Date: 10.08.2024  Prabhat Kumar Nayak 
         C. P. No. 7323 
      UDIN: F006643F000948540

Note: This report is to be read with our le�er of even date which is annexed as Appendix-A and forms an 
integral part of this report. 

PRABHAT NAYAK & ASSOCIATES
Company Secretaries
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To, 

The Members, 

Odisha Coal & Power Limited 

Zone-A, Ground Floor, Fortune Towers,  

Chandrasekharpur, Bhubaneswar - 751023 

 

Our report of even date is to be read along with this le�er. 

 

1. Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our 

responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit. 

2. We have followed the audit prac�ces and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable 

assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verifica�on was 

done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that 

the processes and prac�ces, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of 

Accounts of the Company. 

4. Wherever required, we have obtained the management representa�on about the compliance of 

laws, rules and regula�ons and happening of events etc., 

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regula�ons, 

standards is the responsibility of management. Our examina�on was limited to the verifica�on of 

procedures on test basis. 

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor 

of the efficiency or effec�veness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the 

Company. 

 

                                                               For Prabhat Nayak & Associates 

     Company Secretaries 

 Place: Bhubaneswar  Sd/-

 Date: 10.08.2024  Prabhat Kumar Nayak 

         C. P. No. 7323 

      UDIN: F006643F000948540

APPENDIX-'A' PRABHAT NAYAK & ASSOCIATES
Company Secretaries
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FOR FY 2023-24

la  Ric eo sS p oet na sr i bo ip lr ito yC
la  Ric eo sS p oet na sr i bo ip lr ito yC

CSR

FOR FY 2023-24
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ANNEXURE- VIII

ANNEXURE- II

Format for the Annual Report on CSR Ac�vi�es to be Included in the Board's Report For 

Financial Year Commencing on or A�er 1st Day of April, 2020

I. Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company:

 Objec�ve:

 ● The main objec�ve of CSR policy is to lay down guidelines for OCPL to make CSR a key 

business process for sustainable development for the society. It aims at supplemen�ng 

the role of government in enhancing welfare measures of the society based on the 

immediate and long term social and environmental consequences of coal mining.  

 ● This policy shall be called OCPL Corporate Social Responsibility Policy (OCPL CSR Policy) 

and will regulate the CSR ac�vi�es of the Company. While this policy has been formulated 

for general guidelines, all the provisions of sec�on 135 of the Companies Act 2013 (here 

in a�er called as the Act) and rules made there under will have same meaning & coverage. 

Any uncovered areas will be governed by the Act & rules there under. This policy shall 

apply to all the CSR ac�vi�es approved by the Board of Directors of the Company.

II. Scope of Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) ac�vi�es:

 Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) means and includes projects or programs or ac�vi�es 

pertaining to any of the following areas: 

 ● Eradica�ng hunger, poverty and malnutri�on, promo�ng preven�ve health and 

sanita�on and making available safe drinking water: Promo�ng educa�on, including 

special educa�on and employment enhancing voca�on skills especially among children, 

women, elderly, and the differently-abled and livelihood enhancement projects; 

Promo�ng gender equality, empowering women, se�ng up homes and hostels for 

women and orphans; se�ng up old age homes, day care centers and such other facili�es 

for senior ci�zens and measures for reducing inequali�es faced by socially and 

economically backward groups; 

 ● Ensuring environmental sustainability, ecological balance, protec�on of flora and fauna, 

animal welfare, agroforestry, conserva�on of natural resources and maintaining quality 

of soil, air and water; 

 ● Protec�on of na�onal heritage, art and culture including restora�on of buildings and sites 

of historical importance and works of art; se�ng up public libraries; promo�on and 

development of tradi�onal arts and handicra�s; 

 ● Measures for benefit of armed forces veterans, war widows and their dependents; 

 ● Training to promote rural sports, na�onally recognized sports, Paraolympics sports; 

 ● Contribu�on to the Prime Minister's Na�onal Relief Fund or any other fund set up by the 

Central Government for socio-economic development and relief and welfare of the 

Scheduled Castes, the Scheduled Tribes, other backward classes, minori�es and women; 
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 ● Contribu�ons or funds provided to technology incubators located within academic 

ins�tu�ons which are approved by the Central Government; 

 ● Rural development projects;

III. Modali�es for implementa�on of CSR projects:

 ● The CSR ac�vi�es shall be undertaken by the Company as per this policy framework as 

projects, programs or ac�vi�es (either new or ongoing) excluding ac�vi�es undertaken in 

pursuance of its normal course of business. 

 ● The Board may decide to undertake its CSR ac�vi�es through OCPL directly and/or, a Trust 

registered by the Company under the Indian Trusts Act 1882, and/or through companies/ 

NG Os/ specialized agencies/ trusts/ ins�tu�ons/ founda�ons/ socie�es /community-

based organiza�ons/ bodies etc. having an established track record of 3 years in 

undertaking projects or programs of the required kind. The Company may also 

collaborate with other companies for undertaking projects or programs or CSR ac�vi�es 

in such a manner that the CSR Commi�ees of all the companies involved are in a posi�on 

to report separate! on su~h projects or programs in accordance with this CSR Policy. All 

the CSR projects or programs or ac�vi�es shall be undertaken in Odisha only. 

 ● Any project or program or ac�vity that benefits only the employees of the Company shall 

not be considered as CSR. 

 ● The Company may build CSR capaci�es of its own personnel as well as those of its 

Implemen�ng Agencies through ins�tu�ons with established track records of at least 3 

financial years but such expenditure shall not exceed 5% of total CSR expenditure of the 

Company in one financial year. 

 ● Proposals/ Requests from a Registered and specialized body for providing financial 

assistance for carrying out specific CSR ini�a�ve subject to the condi�on that it fulfils the 

criteria as prescribed in point 7.2 and such body should have an established track record 

of three years in undertaking similar programs or projects (Rule 4(2)(i)). A CSR ac�vity 

through this mode would only be permissible when it is planned to be carried out in 

project mode. These proposals should be considered only a�er checking the credibility of 

the associated agency and the quality of its job as per the following procedure:

 ● In Line with the sec�on 135 of the Companies Act and CSR policy of OCPL, different 

Program were ini�ated in the project and periphery villages to improve the physical 

quality of life of the people living in the area. OCPL works in the core sectors of Rural 

Infrastructure, Educa�on, Community Health, Training and Skill development and 

support to Rural sports.  The Projects / Ac�vi�es are decided through a par�cipatory 

approach with all Key Stakeholders. All the projects have been prepared a�er necessary 

consulta�on of District Administra�on through SDPDS (Sundargarh District Peripheral 

Development society) to avoid duplicity and meet the requirements of the district. 

Further, the company is contribu�ng to District Mineral Founda�on as per the Govt. 

norms. 
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 ● The requirements under sec�on 135 of the Companies Act are met by OCPL and CSR 

commi�ee has been formed with three directors. All these programs were approved by 

CSR Commi�ees and looks a�er the day to day monitoring of CSR ac�vi�es.

2.  Composi�on of CSR Commi�ee:

3.  Provide the web-link where Composi�on of CSR commi�ee, CSR Policy and CSR projects 

approved by the board are disclosed on the website of the company. www.ocpl.org.in

4.  Provide the details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) 

of rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable 

(a�ach the report). Nil

5.  Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the Companies 

(Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required for set off for the 

financial year, if any: No such cases.

6.  Average net profit of the company as per sec�on 135(5): Rs. 432.16 Crores

7.    (a)  Two percent of average net profit of the company as per sec�on 135(5): Rs.8.64 Crores

 (b)  Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or ac�vi�es of the previous 

financial years. Rs.0 .24 Crores

 (c)  Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any: Nil

 (d)  Total CSR obliga�on for the financial year (7a+7b-7c).Rs. 8.68 Crores

Sl. 
No.

 Name of Director Designa�on 
/ Nature of 

Directorship

Number of 
mee�ngs of CSR 
Commi�ee held 
during the year  

Number of mee�ngs 
of CSR Commi�ee 

a�ended during the 
year  

1. Mrs Lipsa Das Director  05  05  

2 Sri Sambit Parija  Director    

3 Sri Saripu�a Mishra Director    

Sl. No. Financial Year Amount available for set off 
from preceding financial years 
(in Rs)

Amount required to be set off 
for the financial year, if any 
(in Rs)

1

2

3

Total
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8. (a)  Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year:  

-1  -2  -3  -4  -5  -6  -7  -8  -9  -10  -11

Sl. 
No.

 

Name of the Project.
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e
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N

o
).  

Mode of Implementa�on -
Through Implemen�ng Agency

State

 

Distri
ct

 

Name
CSR 

Registra�o
n number.

1

 

Sishu Mela & Sishu 
Mohatsaba Program in 
project affected schools on 
the occasion of 15th 
August and 26th January.

 

ii

 

Yes

 

Odisha/ 
Sundargarh

 

15 
days

 
        

3,00,000 

 

2,65,524

   

Direct

 

2

 

Nutri�onal support for the 
hostel inmates of UP 
school of New 
Manoharpur.

 

i

 

Yes

 

Odisha/ 
Sundargarh

 

3 
Mon
ths

 

        

4,00,000 

 

4,77,577

   

Direct

 
3

 

Health Camps at R&R 
colony-I, II & project area 
of Dip side

 

i

 

Yes

 

Odisha/ 
Sundargarh

 

1 
year

 
      

10,00,000 

 

6,20,892

   

Direct

 

4

 

Addi�onal Nutri�onal 
Support to TB Pa�ents of 
Hemgir Block under 
PMTMBA

 

i

 

Yes

 

Odisha/ 
Sundargarh

 

6 
mont

hs

 

        

6,00,000 

 

8,44,417

   

Direct

 

5

 

Nutri�onal support for 
inmates of Orphanage of 
Hemgir

 

i

 

Yes

 

Odisha/ 
Sundargarh

 

6 
mont

hs

 

        

5,00,000 

 

3,20,123

   

Direct

 

6

 

Suppor�ng District 
Administra�on for Road 
Safety Program

 

xii

 

Yes

 

Odisha/ 
Sundargarh

 

10 
days

 

20,00,000

 

20,00,000

   

Direct

 

7

 

Supply of Drinking Water 
through water tanker for 
summer season at Project 
Area

  

through Water 
tanker.

 

i

 

Yes

 

Odisha/ 
Sundargarh

 

3 
Mon
ths

 

22,00,000

 

10,70,496

   

Direct

 

8

 

Support to Dept of Forest, 
Environment and Climate 
Change-GoO for Tiger 
Landscape  scheme at 
Sundargarh Distrct of 
Odisha

 

iv

 

Yes

 

Odisha/

 

Sundargarh

 

15 
days

 

2,00,00,000

 

2,00,00,000

   

Direct

 

9

 

Promo�on of local sports 
through supply of sports 
kits and sponsorship to 
local sports events .

 

vii

 

Yes

 

Odisha/ 
Sundargarh

 

1 
year

 
        

3,00,000 

 

1,50,000

   

Direct

 

10

 

Support

 

to socio-cultural 
fes�val of the locality and 
events organized by Block 
and District Administra�on

 

v

 

Yes

 

Odisha/ 
Sundargarh

 

1 
year

 
        

4,00,000 

 

2,88,000

   

Direct

 

11
Providing employable Skill 
development training to 
local youths-(20 persons)

ii Yes
Odisha/ 

Sundargarh
1 

year 60,00,000 
5,59,489 Direct

12
Financial Support to SHGs 
group for skill 
development

ii Yes
Odisha/ 

Sundargarh

2 
Mon
ths

1,00,000 
25,000 Direct

13
Renova�on of internal 
village Road of Kathphali-
Dulinga (Inside Mine)

x Yes
Odisha/ 

Sundargarh

6 
Mon
ths

6,50,000 
7,07,172 Direct

14
Construc�on of Bus stop at 
Hemgir.

x Yes
Odisha/ 

Sundargarh

4 
Mon
ths

5,00,000 
5,64,661 Direct

15  
Renova�on of  Auditorium, 
Hemgir  

x  Yes  
Odisha/ 

Sundargarh  

5 
Mon
ths

 

      
10,00,000  

11,30,500    Direct  

16

 

Beau�fica�on of Sai 
Temple, Tankapani Road, 
Bhubaneswar

 

x

 
No

 

Odisha/ 
Khurda

 

3 
Mon
ths

 

      32,00,000 

 

36,61,025

   
Direct

 

17

 

Construc�on of Class 
Room, Centenary School, 
Khandagiri

 

x

 

No

 

Odisha/ 
Khurda

 

4 
Mon
ths

 

20,00,000

 

20,00,000

   

Direct

 

18 Installa�on of street Lights x No
Odisha/ 

Kendrapada

4 
Mon
ths

55,00,000 54,67,173 Direct
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19

 

Financial support for 
Renova�on of 02 Toilet 
Block, Ramakrushna 
Missan

 

x

 

No

 

Odisha/ 
Rayagada

 

4 
Mon
ths

 

11,25,000

 

11,25,000

   

Direct

 
20

 

Financial support to 
Artatrana Bidyanikentan 
for purchase of computer, 
Celling Fan, Invertor etc

 

x

 

No

 

Odisha/ 
Khurda

 

1 
Mon
ths

 

2,20,000

 

2,00,000

   

Direct

 21

 

Financial support for 
renova�on of School 
building and infra support 
to Sankalpa Vidyalaya

 

x

 

No

 

Odisha/ 
Kalahandi

 

6 
mont

hs

 

5,00,000

 

3,75,000

   

Direct

 

22

 

Other Rural Infra Project

 

x

 

Yes

 

Odisha/   
Sundargarh

 

1 
years

 
        

6,00,000 

 

627099

   

Direct

 

23

 

Supply of 14 Nos of ACs to  
SP, Sundargarh

 

x

 

Yes

 

Odisha/   
Sundargarh

 

3 
mont

s

 

        

3,00,000 

 
          

28,948 

 
  

Direct

 

24

 

Construc�on of Bathing 
Ghat-Chandantula

 

x

 

Yes

 

Odisha/   
Sundargarh

 

2 
Mon
ths

 

        

5,00,000 

 

379427

   

Direct

 

25

 

Renova�on of Pond and 
construc�on of bathing 
Ghat, Kiripsira, Hemgir

 

x

 

Yes

 

Odisha/   
Sundargarh

 

6 
Mon
ths

 

      

25,00,000 

 

22,19,953

   

Direct

 

26

 

Construc�on of Bus stop, 
Budajharia

 

x

 

Yes

 

Odisha/   
Sundargarh

 

4 
Mon
ths

 

        

5,00,000 

 

3,85,793

   

Direct

 

27

 

Renova�on of Comuunity 
Center, Parmanandapur

 

x

 

Yes

 

Odisha/   
Sundargarh

 

3 
Mon
ths

 

        

2,00,000 

 

1,58,240

   

Direct

 

28

 

Establishment of Food 
Processing Center.

 

ii

 

Yes

 

Odisha/   
Sundargarh

 

2 
Mon
ths

 

      

25,00,000 

 

24,93,260

   

Direct

 

29

 

Construc�on of 
Community Hall, 
Koilighughar

x

 

Yes

 

Odisha/   
Sundargarh

4 
Mon
ths

      

20,00,000 
17,06,236

   

Direct

 

30
Construc�on of Toilet 
Block, Orphanage

x Yes
Odisha/   

Sundargarh

4 
Mon
ths

8,00,000 
7,94,699 Direct

31
Construc�on of Kitchen 
room, Durubaga

x Yes
Odisha/   

Sundargarh

5 
Mon
ths

5,00,000 
4,94,285 Direct

32
Construc�on of Kitchen 
room, Budajharia

x Yes
Odisha/   

Sundargarh

5 
Mon
ths

5,00,000 
4,71,656 Direct

Total 5 ,16,11,645 3,49,58,355

  (b)  Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year:

(1)  (2)  (3)  (4)  (5)  (6)  (7)  (8)  

Sl. No.  Name 
of the 

Project  

Item from 
the list of 
ac�vi�es 

in 
schedule 
VII to the 

Act.  

Local 
area 
(Yes/ 
No).  

Loca�on of the 
project.  

Amount 
spent 

for the 
project 
(in Rs.).  

Mode of 
implementa�on -  
Direct (Yes/No).  

Mode of 
implementa�on -  

Through 
implemen�ng 

agency.  

State.  District.  Name.  CSR 
registra�on 

number.  

1.          

2.          
3.          

 Total         
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 (c)  Amount spent in Administra�ve Overheads

 (d)  Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable

 (e)  Total amount spent for the Financial Year (8b+8c+8d+8e)

 (f)  Excess amount for set off, if any

Sl. No. Par�cular Amount (in Rs.) 

(i) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per 
sec�on 135(5) 

 

(ii) Total amount spent for the Financial Year   

(iii) Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii) -(i)]  

(iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or 
ac�vi�es of the previous financial years, if any  

 

(v) Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years 
[(iii)-(iv)] 

 

9.  (a)  Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years:

Sl. No.  Preceding 
Financial Year.  

Amount 
transferred to 
Unspent CSR 

Account under 
sec�on 135 (6) 

(in Rs.)  

Amount spent 
in the 

repor�ng 
Financial Year 

(in Rs.).  

Amount transferred to any 
fund specified under 

Schedule VII as per sec�on 
135(6), if any.  

Amount 
remaining to  
be spent in 
succeeding 

financial 
years. (in Rs.)  

Name of 
the Fund  

Amount 
(in Rs).  

Date of 
transfer.  

1.        

2.        

3.        

 Total        

 (b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding 

  financial year(s):

(1)  (2)  (3)  (4)  (5)  (6)  (7)  (8)  (9)  

Sl. No.  Project 
ID.  

Name 
of the 

Project.  

Financial 
Year in 

which the 
project was 

commenced.  

Project 
duration.  

Total 
amount 

allocated 
for the 
project 
(in Rs.).

 

Amount 
spent on 

the 
project 
in the 

reporting 
Financial 
Year (in 

Rs).
 

Cumulative 
amount 
spent at 

the end of 
reporting 
Financial 
Year. (in 

Rs.)
 

Status of the 
project -  

Completed 
/Ongoing.  

1
         

2
         3
         Total
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10.  In case of crea�on or acquisi�on of capital asset, furnish the details rela�ng to the asset so 

created or acquired through CSR spent in the financial year : NA 

 (asset-wise details).

  (a)  Date of crea�on or acquisi�on of the capital asset(s).

 (b)  Amount of CSR spent for crea�on or acquisi�on of capital asset.

 (c)  Details of the en�ty or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such capital 

asset is registered, their address etc.

 (d)  Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired (including complete address and 

loca�on of the capital asset).

11.  Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as 

per sec�on 135(5):

 ● Due to non-availability if suitable project for implementa�on.

 ● Due to Model code of Conduct for General Elec�on of 2024, some of the program could 

not roll out and the same program will be implemented in Fy-2024-2025.

(Chief Execu�ve Officer or 
Managing Director or 

Director).

(Chairman CSR Commi�ee)  [Person specified under 
clause (d) of sub-sec�on (1) 

of sec�on 380 of the Act] 
(Wherever applicable).

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
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NOTES






